Ny

Hong Kong Education (Int’l) Investments Limited

HFEHE (BR) REEERRLQF

R

quality of life




CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTY

i
ot
A
EL
=
i
prs
igl]
Kl
=

HAEREDE

RAMBHRERME

AR RN E

TEMBHRE

TBREMFEZFHE

23

27

48

61

63

65

67

69

72

201

202

204




2

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 () R E =B AR A
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Chairman’s Statement
FHEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited
(“Hong Kong Education” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2014 (the “Year”).

During the Year, the Group’s revenue decreased by approximately
5.05% from approximately HK$248.35 million in 2013 to
approximately HK$235.81 million. The loss was approximately
HK$66.51 million as compared with last year of approximately
HK$26.67 million. Such increase in loss was mainly caused
by the loss on disposal of listed available-for-sale investment of
approximately HK$24.21 million and the impairment loss on listed
available-for-sale investment of approximately HK$28.27 million.

In the past financial year, Hong Kong Education continued to
expand its business through prudent mergers and acquisitions
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
This has helped the Group to diversify its business and extend the
services spectrum to address diverse education and learning needs
of a wider range of learners.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market — Continue to Broaden the Service
Spectrum

Competition in the tutoring services remains keen and intensive
in the dynamic Hong Kong market. To maintain our success and
the leading position in the industry, we need to keep abreast of
our competitors. Over the past year, we had launched massive
marketing programs through various media channels to promote
and elevate the Group’s brand awareness amongst students and
the general public. At the same time, we strived to broaden our
service spectrum beyond primary and secondary school students in
order to serve the diverse needs of knowledge seekers at different
age groups.

BAIRER :

AANERRBEHRE (AR REEKEERLAA([F
BHE K AR REMBRAR ([AEE])RA
EHRAEEBE2014F6 A30HIEFE (R FE])

RAFE R A5 E U A ;20139 #9 £9248,350,000
7 70 4 495.05% & 49235,810,0008 Tt ° BB 4 A
66,510,000/ 7T + M % 4 Bl /% £926,670,0007% 7T © 7%
BIEZENEEANEE EMAIEEEREZEIE
#924,210,00078 7T &2 L Al B IR E 2R E B L
28,270,000/ 7T FT 5K °

RE-—MBEE BEHEEBNEERPEARK
FE ([ ETEENHBIERARLER - IR
EORAEEZTTCARB RIBEBARBEE ARN
FREBENBEZZ T LHEMNBERK-

EHDOE
FETE-RHAMERKEE

RAEBENT AN S @EREOBRFDABR-
REFRPNZERNKY R BEWA - HPIERMER
FHFNPA-BE—F RACEBZAKERE
MERAREN SRS AEREIRARERAR
ATEAREERRERAE - B R R
RGBEERRENERHEEEIN ARRTRF
ERAR R R R ANENZ TTLFERK



Despite a decrease in revenue as compared with last year, the
secondary and primary tutoring services segment is still the key
income driver of the Group. We will continue to devote much of our
efforts and resources to reinforce our high teaching quality and to
deliver effective teaching methods and quality learning materials
to our students, thereby to enhance the students’ performance
in different public and school examinations. We believe the
outstanding examination results of our students would create word-
of-mouth effect among students and in the market. The enrolments
will maintain at a stable level so as the revenue from tutoring
services.

Through the acquisition of 50% equity interests in Full Profit Hong
Kong Development Limited (“Full Profit”) last year, the Group
had expanded into the pre-school education sector instantly, and
specialised in providing consulting and management services to
kindergartens in Hong Kong and in the PRC. During the Year, Full
Profit contributed steady profits to the Group. In addition, through
the acquisition of 47% equity interests in Seasoned Leader Limited
during the Year, the Group had entered the tertiary education
and vocational training services sectors. These acquisitions had
extended the service spectrum of the Group downward to early
education and upward to the tertiary education successfully
within short time span. Such expansions have helped the Group
to establish a solid foundation for a comprehensive business
development model as well as facilitating our future development
and creating synergies to the Group. We believe the pre-school
education and higher education and vocational training businesses
will continue to bring stable profits to the Group.

PRC Market — Encouraging Achievements in the
International Education Segment

Over the past year, the Group had achieved encouraging results in
developing the PRC market. We have substantially raised our brand
awareness and established quality brand image there, in particular,
our students of international courses had obtained distinctive
results in international standardise tests and examinations and
were admitted into world class universities. The success has
encouraged the Group to push further forward to work with strong
local partners and to explore the business opportunities in the
international education segment in the PRC market. We will, from
time to time, review the market situation and adjust the resources
to be deployed in order to tap the opportunities generated by the
emerging needs and trends in the private education and training
sectors in the PRC market. We strive to build up our brand and
confidence amongst students and parents in the PRC market.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEEBE

LOOKING FORWARD

The encouraging achievements attained by different business units
and the synergies gained through various acquisitions last year
had demonstrated that our development strategy was on the right
direction. We will strive to elevate our quality standard to achieve
higher target, to be the leading one-stop quality service provider
in the education services industry, to be the expert in providing
quality learning and training services to students and learners
with different study aspirations in the Greater China region. At the
same time, we will continue to explore new growth opportunities
and to cooperate with strong business partners in Hong Kong and
the PRC in order to strengthen our leading position in the industry.
With a prudent investment attitude, the Group will open to all
possible merger and acquisition opportunities with profit guarantee
or creative collaboration models with strong potential growth
partners; we aim to bring more high growth potential businesses
and income streams to the Group and hence higher returns to our
shareholders.

Lastly, on behalf of the board of directors of the Company, | would
like to take this opportunity to express our heartfelt thanks to our
directors, teachers and all staff of Hong Kong Education for their
dedication and diligence, and to our shareholders, investors and
business partners for their full support to the Group in the past
year.

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman
Hong Kong

26 September 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year ended 30 June 2014 (the “Year”), the Group was
awarded the Caring Company Logo 2013/14, granted by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service, to recognise the good corporate
citizenship of the Company and the Group’s well-executed social
responsibility.

Throughout the Year, the Group had completed several acquisitions
which were in line with its business strategy to diversify the Group’s
income source by expanding the services range to adjacent
educational services markets with high growth potentials in both
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

BUSINESS REVIEW
Provision of Private Educational Services

Secondary Tutoring Services

In the Year, the Group faced fierce competition in the secondary
tutoring service sector, and recorded a revenue of HK$189.50
million for the Year, representing a decline of 6.91% when
compared to the previous year. The Group keeps its competitive
edge by provision of quality instruction and advanced diagnostic
analysis on the intricacies of public examinations and test-taking
techniques through its star-rating tutors. We also endeavour
to utilise interactive and collaborative education channels to
facilitate its students with quality and integrated content wherever
and whenever they learn. To keep abreast of the trend and
enhance the learning passion of our students, an online live chat
platform, “WeChat Modern Class Room”, was set up to encourage
interactive learning between tutors and students outside classroom
during October 2013 to April 2014. The Group will continue to
explore different means to provide students with rich multimedia
experience that arouses curiosity and improves learning results.

TEEFIWE S

REZE2014F6 A30R I E ([REE]) ’$EIZ¥
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE RS

The following table sets forth the number of course enrolments, the
number of tutors and the average course fees of each category of

secondary tutoring courses for the Year:

Year ended 30 June

TRIERAFEAZSETEMERENREREA
RBMABKNTFHES:

§F6H30ALLERE
2014 2013

Number of course enrolments (in thousands) RERBAR (UF)
Regular courses BRI 275 306
Intensive courses T B I 26 35
Summer courses EHRE 38 37
T.I.P.S. courses FEFRRITIE 9 9
Special courses FERIRE 40 28
Number of tutors (Note 1) EEEANE (A1)
Regular courses R E 41 45
Intensive courses rEE T 36 42
Summer courses =HRE 39 44
T.I.P.S. courses JE AR T IR 27 29
Special courses =RIRRE 34 33
Average course fees (HK$) (Note 2) FgBe (Er) (Hi72)
Regular courses BIRRE 494 478
Intensive courses fEE T 614 624
Summer courses EHIRE 451 427
T.I.LPS. courses e SR TTHE 638 581
Special courses ERRE 242 357
Note 1: Tutors may provide secondary tutoring services for all or certain Bl - EBEIR]AFTAESE THEANRERHEPEFHER

categories of courses. Thus, the sum of the number of tutors BeoA NEEERRHERRE HEN =

for the provision of regular courses, intensive courses, summer HRERERRENEMAZSEN W TERE

courses and special courses is not equal to the total number of B 42 A -

tutors for the year.
Note 2: Being revenue divided by course enrolments for the year. Bizz : BVRABRIAREERBRA AR

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had 14 learning centres operated
under the brand of “Modern Education” (IR E ) .

R201466 A30H - AKBAIAEN [RAHE ] A
BEMREF L



Secondary Day School Education

In view of the increasing demand for quality day school educational
services, the Group has completed the restructuring of its day
school operations and has rebranded as “Modern Day School”
(IR BE®)and started offering day school program from the
academic year 2014-2015 onwards. The Modern Day School
has been authorised by the Education Bureau to offer regular
day school courses under the New Senior Secondary academic
structure, and the students are eligible to sit for the Hong Kong
Diploma of Secondary Education Examination (HKDSE).

English Language Training and Test Preparation Courses

During the Year, the Group recorded a substantial growth in
revenue and total number of course enrolments in this sector. The
Group offers the International English Language Testing System
(IELTS) preparation course and Diploma in Workplace English
(TOEIC) preparation courses under the brand “Modern Education”.
There were approximately 16,000 course enrolments recorded
for the Year, representing an increase of 1.67 times as compared
with last year. The enrolment results were encouraging. The Group
strives to maintain its high quality course materials together with
experienced and qualified tutors in order to provide continuous
support to the students.

Primary Tutoring Services, Skill Courses and Test Preparation
Courses

With keen demand on primary tutoring services in Hong Kong,
the Group is endeavouring to provide high quality services to
primary students and their parents. The primary tutoring services
is provided under the brand “Modern Bachelor Education Centre”
(“MBEC") and has been expanded rapidly over the past 3 years.
As of 30 June 2014, there were 9 directly owned learning centres
and 28 franchised centres being operated in Hong Kong. One new
franchised centre is underway and will be ready to start operation
in the coming financial year. A total number of approximately
11,100 course enrolments were offered by the Group’s directly
owned learning centres when compared with approximately 12,000
course enrolments in previous year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE RS

During the Year, the total revenue contributed by the Group’s
franchised centres to the Group was approximately HK$3.05
million, representing an increase of 3.53% when compared
with previous year. The Group believes this business sector will
continue to grow steadily and it will continue to devote resources
in enhancing the course materials in order to equip students with
essential learning skills to pursue further studies.

PRC Operations

Over the past years, the Group has successfully built up a quality
brand in the educational services segment in the PRC market and
raised the brand awareness amongst students and parents. The
Group has attained encouraging achievements with remarkable
success in operating international courses with top secondary
schools, providing international education opportunities to local
students who want to pursue tertiary education overseas. Some of
the Group’s students achieved distinctive results in international
standardised tests and were admitted to world class universities.
In addition to the determination and diligent work of individual
students, the passion and quality of the Group’s teachers are also
conducive to the good results of our students. All teachers of the
Group are well-experienced in international curricula, most of them
with master’'s degree from internationally renowned universities;
their enriched overseas study experience and inspiring teaching
methods has enlightened our students of the Group with global
vision. Furthermore, the student to teacher ratio of 6 to 1 ensures
that personalised attention and an effective learning environment
can be provided to individual students. With the trend of PRC
students studying abroad at a younger age, the Group envisions
that the demand for international courses will continue to grow.
The Group will ride on this demand surge and is looking forward
to expanding the network of international courses to cover over 10
cities in coming 2 to 3 years.

RAFER AEBHRFFEER LA RERR AR
Y A #33,050,00078 7T+ 8K F 18 113.53% © AL B 1
B WEBEHABEERPIER MAKEBEEE
HRREMHTERABRR EMEELEZESTEN
BERTNEEEE-

i EE

RBEFE AEBEERINDETIZOHRE REE
BEIBERE YERSMEENELE MR
FE-AEECESC ARENRE  LERTARHTE
FRHBEIRRE T ERSEEXR RS REIE
tHENEHBELRUBEHERE - AEENED
SLEERFRERNRFISERKELAF LR R
REZ -REBEFEANROEBHEI FAEEHREOHZ
REREXMEDHBERGHRE -AEENMEH
BEBRRIENTESAREEER ETABOHE
EEBRMBABRTRLIEM: REEENEINESE
RERMEANRBN L EAKENEERZRM
WESBERRE -t/ BERKB LR B6:1 - R
A RERNEERHIH MBI ARNBEERE &
RAESELHEBEEREFENBY NREERE-
BERRENTREEHER R -AKERKEBLFK
AL MERNAAME=-FABBRREBEEAS
H E 8 B 1OfEIE T -



On 11 September 2013, the Company entered into a non-binding
joint investment memorandum with A 7 <& 3k B B8 48 % B fiT &
YEB A A (in English, for identification only, Henan Jincheng
International Economic-Technical Cooperation Company Limited)
in relation to the proposed joint investment in an international
vocational education, training and examination centre in B
M= BEELZAERE (in English, for identification only,
Zhengzhou Airport Economic Comprehensive Experimental Zone)
in Henan Province of the PRC (the “MOU"). There has been no
significant progress on the transaction contemplated under the
MOU (the “Proposed Transaction”) up to 30 June 2014. Further
announcement will be made by the Company if and when there is
any prominent progress on the Proposed Transaction.

Investments

Properties Investments

During the Year, the Group recorded a rental income of
approximately HK$1.45 million on properties investment and a
gain of approximately HK$0.87 million on disposal of investment
properties. As at 30 June 2014, the Group recorded a revaluation
gain of HK$1.50 million on investment properties. The Group will
maintain a prudent investment strategy and will review regularly
on the return on investment portfolio in order to bring values to
stakeholders.

Securities Investments

During the Year, the Group has devoted some resources in the
securities investment. The Group (i) acquired shares of listed
companies on the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange in a total amount of approximately HK$12.83
million; and (ii) disposed of some shares in the securities
investment portfolio of the Group during the Year, and recorded a
net realised gain of approximately HK$1.92 million. The gain was
offset by the unrealised loss arising from fair value changes in
securities of approximately HK$1.96 million as at 30 June 2014.
Such unrealised loss has no impact on the cash flow of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE RS

Other Investments

(i)

(i)

Early Education

Quality pre-school education is also a key area that the
Group has been focusing on. This is in line with the Group’s
development strategy to expand its educational services
portfolio vertically downward in both Hong Kong and the
PRC markets. During the Year, Full Profit Hong Kong
Development Limited and its subsidiary (“Full Profit Group”)
had generated stable revenue through providing consultation
and management services to early education centres and
kindergartens. Full Profit Group has fulfilled its first year’s
profit guarantee of not less than HK$4 million made to the
Group pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, details
of which are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 April 2013.

Continuing and Tertiary Education

During the Year, the Company acquired an aggregate of
47% equity interest of Seasoned Leader Limited (“Seasoned
Leader”) pursuant to two sale and purchase agreements
both dated 10 July 2013 and a supplemental agreement
dated 8 November 2013 at the aggregate consideration of
HK$47,000,000 (subject to adjustment). The acquisition was
completed on 30 September 2013. Details of the acquisition
and the supplemental agreement were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 July 2013 and 8
November 2013 respectively.

Through Seasoned Leader, the Group had entered into the
tertiary education and vocational training market instantly, as
well as tapping into the growth opportunity in this segment
within short time span. The acquisition has expanded
the service scope of the Group to (i) high-quality vocation
oriented academic programmes in business management
and hospitality and tourism management which are operated
under the brand “Compass College”; and (ii) vocational
professional training courses in wedding planning, hair and
makeup styling and event management which are operated
under the brand “Bridal Academy”. These are hot vocational
tertiary study disciplines pursued by post HKDSE students
who prefer practical experience rather than pure academic
subjects. As the demand for tertiary and continuous education
keep increasing, the Group believes this acquisition will bring
high potential growth benefit to the Group by sharing the
reasonable profits expected from Seasoned lLeader and its
subsidiaries.

RHURE

(i)

(ii)

FPRIHE
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The Group has been accredited by the Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
(“HKCAAVQ") through Modern Education since 2012 with
Initial Evaluation status at Qualifications Framework Level
1 to 3. The Group is actively participating in the Learning
Programme Accreditation of various vocational and continuous
education courses which aims to diversify the scope of
services of the Group.

(iii)  Consultation Services

The Group completed the acquisition of 43% equity interest
on Link Resources (Asia) Limited in February 2014 pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement dated 4 September 2013
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$9,500.000. The
acquisition provides the Group with an opportunity to expand
its educational business horizontally into consultancy and
corporate training segment in the PRC market and diversify its
business by cooperating with strong market player in relevant
segment. Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 September 2013.

Money Lending Business

On 13 June 2014, the Group acquired China Rich Finance
Limited (“China Rich”) which holds a valid money lenders licence
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), from an independent third party at a consideration
of HK$850,000. Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 June 2014. Subsequent
to the acquisition, the money lending business operating segment
has been introduced to the Group. The Group is going to
commence its money lending business in the coming financial year
which is expected to diversify the income stream of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$235.81 million, representing a decrease of 5.05% as
compared with approximately HK$248.35 million recorded
last year. Such decrease was primarily due to (i) the decrease
in revenue from secondary tutoring services to approximately
HK$189.50 million, representing a decrease of 6.91% as
compared to approximately HK$203.57 million recorded last
year; and (ii) that no revenue was recorded from secondary day
school education during the Year. Moreover, there was a decrease
in revenue from primary tutoring services (including franchising
income) to approximately HK$16.17 million, representing a
decrease of 15.92% as compared with the previous year.

On the other hand, there were growth in revenue from English
language training and test preparation courses to approximately
HK$24.30 million, representing an increase of 32.40% as
compared to approximately HK$18.35 million recorded in the
previous year. For technical consultation, management and
software licensing services, there was an increase in revenue to
approximately HK$3.91 million, representing an increase of 154%
as compared to approximately HK$1.54 million recorded last year.

For the Year, the Group recorded rental income generated by the
investment properties of approximately HK$1.45 million (2013:
approximately HK$0.74 million).

Other income, gains and losses

For the Year, the Group’s other income, gains and losses increased
to a net gain of approximately HK$2.33 million (2013: net losses
of approximately HK$2.79 million). Such increase was due to
the combined effect of, among other things, (i) realised gain on
disposal of listed held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$1.92 million; (ii) gain on disposal of subsidiaries of
approximately HK$1.92 million; (iii) the absence of impairment
loss on other intangible assets as compared to last year of
approximately HK$2.96 million; and (iv) the decrease in change
in fair value of other financial assets of approximately HK$1
million; and (v) the impairment loss on interests in an associate of
approximately HK$2.01 million.
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Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs decreased by approximately HK$6.24
million or 9.80% compared with the last financial year. Such
decrease was primarily attributable to the combined effect of
(i) the net decrease in directors’ emoluments and other staff
salary of approximately HK$5.11 million; (ii) the increase in staff
training of approximately HK$1.38 million; and (iii) the decrease
in management consultancy fee of approximately HK$2.07 million
during the Year.

Tutor contractor fee

The Group’s tutor contractor fee decreased by approximately
HK$9.74 million or 11.91% compared with the last financial year.
Such decrease was in line with the decline in revenue derived from
secondary tutoring services and secondary day school education.

Operating lease payments

The Group’s operating lease payments decreased by approximately
HK$2.69 million or 5.14% compared with the previous year. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the operating lease
payments of our secondary learning centres.

Marketing expenses

The Group’s marketing expenses decreased by approximately
HK$3.16 million or 13.83% compared with last year was mainly
attributable to the reduction in media placement during the Year.

Other operating expenses

The Group’s other operating expenses increased by approximately
HK$5.41 million or 13.04% compared with the previous year.
Such increase was primarily due to the net effect of (i) the share-
based payment expenses for the share options granted by the
Company to a consultant of the Group and other eligible grantees
of approximately HK$2.45 million during the Year; (ii) the increase
of approximately HK$4.18 million in sales commission paid to
external agents for introducing potential students to the Group;
and (iii) the decrease of approximately HK$1.94 million in building
management and air-conditioning fees in relation to the Group’s
leased properties.
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Finance costs

The Group has incurred finance costs of approximately HK$1.56
million from bank and other borrowings during the Year (2013: Nil).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$66.52 million (2013: approximately HK$25.24
million). Loss per share was HK8.92 cents for the Year (2013:
HK5.05 cents).

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will maintain its prime focus on the
educational services and language training segments within the
Greater China region. At the same time, the Group is seeking
growth opportunities by diversifying its services into other adjacent
segments or related industries through strategic mergers and
acquisitions or investment in businesses with strong development
potential including but not limited to companies in Hong Kong and
the PRC in order to generate extra income streams to the Group.
The Group has the leadership skills and capabilities to make the
most benefit to its stakeholders, and the Group aims to achieve
synergy in providing all-round services in the market.

In Hong Kong

The demand for quality educational services still remains high in
Hong Kong. The Group strives to maintain its leading position in
Hong Kong's private educational services sector. The Group will
continue to invest resources to hire quality teaching personnel,
to expand its existing service spectrum to cover pre-school
education and tertiary education in order to strengthen its market
leader position as well as to reinforce its competitive edge as
an experienced versatile one-stop educational services provider.
Further mergers and acquisitions of businesses will be considered
when the actions can help the Group to enhance competitiveness
by adding value and creating synergy to its existing services. The
Group believes co-operation with partners who are with sound
background and strong capabilities in Hong Kong, the PRC and
overseas markets is an effective means to enable the Group to
branch out to other new markets for new growth opportunities
within short time span.
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In the PRC

In recent years, the PRC has seen stable economic development
and increased commercial, technological and cultural exchanges
with other parts of the world. This has given rise to a pressing
demand for internationally recognised qualification with a particular
emphasis on English proficiency and international curriculum. The
Group successfully mirrored its sophisticated education model and
tapped into the PRC market. Over the past years, the Group has
achieved sound results in our PRC business by capturing first-rated
opportunities to deliver quality educational services. The Group
will continue to seek out collaboration opportunities with strong
market players across different segments by further developing its
presence in the PRC.

In view of the high growth potentials in the PRC market, the Group
will continue to expand its geographic network and services range
in Mainland China. The Group believes it will achieve great results
in the Chinese educational services market in the years to come
and that new business opportunities will bring to the shareholders
of the Company a profitable future.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management system to manage its short, medium and long-term
funding and to satisfy liquidity management requirements.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group's total balance of cash and
cash equivalents and unpledged bank deposits amounted to
approximately HK$56.35 million (30 June 2013: approximately
HK$40.17 million) which is held in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any bank
and other borrowings (30 June 2013: Nil). Current ratio (defined
as total current assets divided by total current liabilities) was 5.22
times (30 June 2013: 4.11 times).

As at 30 June 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was 8.61%
(30 June 2013: 11.78%). Gearing ratio is computed as the total
debts divided by the sum of total equity and total debts. Total debts
refer to total liabilities minus the sum of tax payable, deferred tax
liabilities and dividend payable (if any).
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Set out below are fund raising activities conducted by the Company

during the Year and the usage of the net proceeds up to 30 June
2014.

(i)

(i)

On 18 September 2013, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place through the
placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to 272,800,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company (the
“Shares”) at a price of HK$0.220 per placing Share to not
less than six placees, who are independent third parties,
professional, institutional or other investors under a specific
mandate to be obtained from the shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company. The price of
the placing Shares represented a discount of approximately
16.98% to the closing market price of the Shares on 18
September 2013, the placing was completed on 29 November
2013 and 272,800,000 placing Shares were placed. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$58.20 million from the
placing were fully utilised during the Year as intended in
which approximately HK$37.80 million was used for financing
the acquisition of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader and
approximately HK$20.40 million was used for repayment of
borrowings and as general working capital of the Group.

On 13 May 2014, the Company and a placing agent entered
into two placing agreements pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place through the placing agent,
on a best effort basis, up to (i) 115,200,000 new Shares
under a general mandate granted to the Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 November
2013 (“GM Placing”); and (ii) 394,080,000 new Shares under
a specific mandate to be obtained from the shareholders at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company (“SM Placing”),
to not less than six placees, who are professional, institutional
or other investors and who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners are independent third parties. The price of the placing
Shares of the GM Placing and the SM Placing was HK$0.145,
which represented a discount of approximately 14.71% to the
closing market price of the Shares on 13 May 2014.
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The aggregate nominal value of the placing Shares placed under
the GM Placing and the SM Placing were HK$11,520,000 and
HK$39,408,000 respectively. The net issue price of the placing
Shares placed under the GM Placing and the SM Placing was
approximately HK$0.140 per placing Share. The Directors were of
the view that the GM Placing and the SM Placing can strengthen
the financial position of the Group and can provide working capital
to the Group to meet any future development and obligations.
The GM Placing and the SM Placing also represented good
opportunities to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital
base of the Company.

The GM Placing was completed on 30 May 2014. The net proceeds
from the GM Placing were approximately HK$16.11 million
and were intended to be used as general working capital of the
Group. As at 30 June 2014, the entire net proceeds had not been
utilised. The SM Placing was completed after the reporting period
on 31 July 2014. The net proceeds from the SM Placing were
approximately HK$55.43 million, which were intended be used for
the development of the existing business and the development of
online education business of the Group. It was intended that (i)
approximately HK$8 million would be used for development and/or
acquisition of the primary school tutoring services, skill courses and
test preparation courses; (i) approximately HK$25 million would
be used for brand image building and promotion campaign; (iii)
approximately HK$15 million would be used for the development
and operation of online education platform; and (iv) approximately
HK$7 million would be used for the rental expenses of the Group’s
education centres.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group consistently employed a prudent treasury policy during
its development and generally financed its operations and business
development with internally generated resources and equity and/or
debt financing activities. The Group also adopted flexible and
prudent fiscal policies to effectively manage the Group’s assets and
liabilities and strengthen the Group’s financial position.
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EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The income and expenditure of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and as such the impact of foreign exchange
exposure of the Group was considered minimal. Hence, no hedging
or other arrangements to reduce the currency risk have been
implemented.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had a total of 312 employees
(30 June 2013: 300 employees). They receive competitive
remuneration packages that are constantly monitored with
reference to the market circumstances, with incentives such
as discretionary bonuses based on the Group’s and individual
performance. The Group provides a comprehensive benefits
package and career development opportunities.

Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
11 June 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant
options to eligible persons, including employees and Directors,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. During the Year, the
Company had granted options to subscribe for an aggregate of
97,600,000 Shares pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2014, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (30 June 2013: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2014, there were respective capital commitments
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounting to approximately HK$10.05 million (30
June 2013: approximately HK$71.20 million) and authorised but
not contracted for amounting to HK$0.50 million (30 June 2013:
HK$0.50 million).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 30 June 2014, an investment property of the Group with
carrying value of HK$27.50 million (30 June 2013: approximately
HK$44.43 million (including assets classified as held for sale))
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.
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PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the Year, saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Group

had the following material acquisitions and disposals:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 30 May 2013, the Group entered into the provisional sale
and purchase agreements with certain independent third
parties to dispose of properties situated at Rooms 1001,
1002 and 1003 on 10th Floor, Sino Centre, Nos. 582-592
Nathan Road, Mong Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong at total cash
consideration of approximately HK$19,303,000. The disposal
was completed on 31 July 2013.

On 22 January 2014, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of the entire issued share capital of Achieved
Success Company Limited, a company incorporated in the
BVI with limited liability, at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$35,400,000 (subject to adjustment). Achieved Success
Company Limited held two properties indirectly through its
subsidiary, both of which were leased to independent third
parties immediately before the disposal. Details of the disposal
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 January 2014. The disposal was completed on 14 March
2014.

During the Year, the Group acquired an aggregate of 47%
equity interest in Seasoned Leader from three independent
third parties. See paragraph headed “Business Review —
Investments — Other Investments — Continuing and Tertiary
Education” for further details.

During the Year, the Group (i) acquired certain convertible
notes issued by M Dream Inworld Limited (“M Dream”) from
independent third parties, all of which have been converted
into conversion shares of M Dream; and (ii) disposed part
of such conversion shares on the market through the Stock
Exchange. See paragraph headed “Significant Investment
Held” below for further details.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (Continued)

(v) During the Year, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of China Rich from an independent third party. See
paragraph headed “Business Review — Money lending
business” for further details.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

On 17 June 2013, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire
the convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$60,000,000
issued by M Dream from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$60,000,000. The acquisition was completed
on 15 August 2013 and the convertible notes were converted
in full on 28 August 2013 into 555,555,555 conversion shares
of M Dream at the conversion price of HK$0.108 each. On 20
December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire
the convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$7,794,615
issued by M Dream from an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$4,546,859. The acquisition was completed
on 20 December 2013 and the convertible notes were converted
in full on 30 December 2013 into 72,172,360 conversion shares
of M Dream at the conversion price of HK$0.108 each. During the
period from 6 February 2014 to 20 May 2014, the Group disposed
of an aggregate of 419,380,000 shares of M Dream on the market
through the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of
HK$20,676,620 (excluding stamp duty and related expenses). As
of 30 June 2014, the Group held an aggregate of 409,607,915
shares of M Dream (representing approximately 7.26% of the
issued share capital of M Dream). In connection with the Group’s
investment in M Dream’s shares, the Group recorded loss on
disposal of listed available-for-sale investment of approximately
HK$24.21 million and the impairment loss on listed available-for-
sale investment of approximately HK$28.27 million during the Year.
The Group will from time to time monitor the price movement of
M Dream'’s shares and may adjust its securities investment portfolio
as and when appropriate.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, aged 64, is an executive Director and
the chairman of the Group. Mr. Wong was appointed as an
independent non-executvie Director on 10 August 2012 before
his redesignation as an executive Director and appointment as
the chairman of the Board on 8 March 2013. Mr. Wong obtained
a bachelor degree and a master degree in Education from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in October 1992 and December
1996 respectively. He was the headmaster of Kei Sau Primary
School from 1989 to 1990, the headmaster of Kei Tze Primary
School from 1990 to 1993, the headmaster of Kei Wai Primary
School from 1993 to 1995 and the headmaster of Heep Woh
Primary School from 1995 to 2010. He served as a board member
in the centralised board of manager for feeder schools of The Hong
Kong Council of the Church of Christ in China for approximately
12 years. He was also a committee member of the Basic Law
Promotion Steering Committee of the Constitutional and Mainland
Affairs Bureau for the period from 2004 to 20009.

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, aged 44, is an executive Director, the
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, who is in
charge of the Group’s overall management and development. Mr.
Lee has been with the Group since the Group's inception in 1997
and has rich experience in teaching and managing an education
organisation. He has devoted himself to the education industry for
the past 22 years teaching mathematics and related subjects. He
is a permitted teacher under the Education Ordinance. Mr. Lee
is an author of a series of mathematics reference books and the
consultant editor (mathematics) of mathematics reference book.
He had been a columnist in the education section of a Hong
Kong newspaper since September 2007, commenting on the
mathematics teaching methodology and current education issues.
His experience spans such diverse areas as private education,
mathematics teaching, chain store management, marketing
strategy and computer aided management systems. Mr. Lee
graduated from the University of Hong Kong, with a Bachelor of
Science degree with honors in Applied Mathematics in 1992 and
obtained a Master of Science degree with Dean’s List honors in
Mathematics Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2012. Mr. Lee was appointed as an executive director of Hong
Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited in
September 2013 and as an alumni manager of Salesian English
School with effect from 30 June 2014.
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Ms. Wu Mei Chu, aged 50, is an executive Director of the Group.
Ms. Wu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 21 December 2012 and was redesignated as an executive
Director on 18 June 2013. Ms. Wu graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Arts with honors in 1987.
Ms. Wu has been holding various management positions in a
number of multinational corporations across office technology,
telecommunications and satellite communications business. Ms.
Wu has over 20 years of experience in the field of marketing and
business development in the People’s Republic of China and Asia
Pacific region. Ms. Wu was an executive director of China Natural
Investment Company Limited, a listed company on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 8250) from February 2011 to
November 2011.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ong Chi King, aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 February 2014. Mr. Ong received a
bachelor degree in business administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a master degree in
corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Ong has more than 18 years of
experience in accounting, finance and company secretarial fields
and held senior positions in finance and company secretarial
departments in various listed companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ong is currently the company secretary
of Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock
code: 2324) and China Environmental Resources Group Limited
(stock code: 1130), both of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and King Force Security Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8315), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ong was a director of Fitness Concept International Holdings
Limited prior to its dissolution. The said company was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and was dissolved on 30 June 2005 by
striking off due to cessation of business.
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Ms. Chan Lai Yee, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 8 March 2013. Ms. Chan obtained a
master degree in professional accounting from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms.
Chan has over 16 years of experience in the field of accounting and
financial management and previously worked in various listed and
unlisted groups. Currently, Ms. Chan is a non-executive director of
First Credit Finance Group Limited (formerly known as First Credit
Holdings Limited), a listed company on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8215).

Mr. Lee Shu Fai, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 18 June 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a
bachelor degree in Social Science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in October 1972. He has also obtained from the
University of Hong Kong a Certificate in Education in June 1977, an
Advanced Diploma in Education in June 1984 and a master degree
awarded with distinction in Education in November 1985. Mr. Lee
has more than 30 years of experience in the field of education and
has extensive administrative experience. He was the headmaster of
Lai Chack Middle School from 1987 to 2005 until his retirement.
Mr. Lee has a strong commitment to the community and
particularly involved in the education field which continues after
his retirement. He was a member of the Court of the Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2010 and 2011 and has been the supervisor
of Baptist Lui Ming Choi Primary School since 2007. He is also the
manager of various primary and secondary schools.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chau Kai Man, aged 58, has been joining the group as
Business Development Director since January 2013 and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chau has over 26
years' experience in the field of sales, marketing and business
development and around 8 years’ experience in accounting and
company secretarial matters. Mr. Chau was an executive director
of Hanergy Solar Group Limited (formerly known as RBI Holdings
Limited), a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 566) since July 2007 and appointed as
Chairman of this company in January 2009. Mr. Chau resigned
both positions in August 2010. Mr. Chau then joined RBI Industries
Holdings Ltd as vice Chairman and executive director from
September 2010 to December 2012.

Miss Cheung Po King, aged 34, joined the group in February
2013. She is the financial controller of the Group. Miss Cheung
holds a bachelor degree of Business Administration (with honours)
in Accountancy from Lingnan University and a master of science
degree in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Miss Cheung has over
9 years of experience in the field of accounting and financial
management and previously worked in certain unlisted and listed
groups.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of Hong Kong Education (Int'l)
Investments Limited (the “Company”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2014
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries as of
30 June 2014 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s operation for the Year by business
activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraph headed “Business Review” of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 63 to 64 of this annual report.

The board of the Company (the “Board”) did not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the Year (2013: Nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Company’s issue of new shares in the
initial public offering (after deducting expenses relating specifically
to the issue of new shares in the initial public offering and expenses
relating generally to the listing of all the shares of the Company,
whether existing or new) amounted to approximately HK$130
million. As at 30 June 2014, the net proceeds from the initial
public offering had been utilised as follows:

IHRERIRAE
KERRBNBERAFEEPBITHROAEKEF
B(KHIBRESEERBERAMEERBITHRARY
Xk —REARBAARD (TwmARB AL
AR X&) 497130,000,0007 7T © 120144
6HA30B REBRAMEENMERBFRCH A
LN

Planned Amount

amount per utilised up to Balance as at

Prospectus 30 June 2014 30 June 2014

#BE20145 #R2014%

BRREED 6A30H 6A30H

FHEIRRIR FREh A YRR IR Hes

HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million

&% L=V L=V

Repayment of loans EEER 50 50 -

Setting up secondary learning centres 3837 F E % F th () 15 11.57 343

Setting up primary learning centres ML NEHEBE L 6 4.04 1.96

Setting up kids learning centres (Note) &3 SBEHE 0 (H1at) 15 11.97 3.03
Provision of overseas studies RGN B E AR

consultation services (Note) (K13t) 6 6 -

Provision of test preparation and R ER R ATERIE
bridging courses 4 4 -
Strategic merger and acquisition (Note) R BV GFEE (H#722) 34 34 -

Note: As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
March 2013, the Board decided to expand the use of net proceeds
from the initial public offering for investing into non-educational
business, in addition to the original purposes as stated in the
Company’s prospectus dated 20 June 2011 (the “Prospectus”).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 202 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 68 of this annual report and the
statement of financial position of the Company on page 201 of this
annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves available for distribution of the
Company during the Year are set out on page 201 of this annual
report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Income from the Group’s five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 30% of the Group’s total income during the
Year.

During the Year, tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the Group’s top
five tutors, who entered into service contracts with us, accounted
for 61.52% of the Group’s total tutor contractor fee for the Year
(2013: 56.58%), and tutor contractor fee paid/payable to the
Group’s topmost tutor accounted for 21.95% of the Group's total
tutor contractor fee for the Year (2013: 19.96%). None of the
Directors, their associates as well as substantial shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) was anyone out of such
top five tutors (2013: None).

Contracts with the other five largest suppliers of the Group,
excluding the independent tutors, combined by values which are
not of a capital nature, contributed to less than 30% in value of
such supplies purchased during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Norman (Chief Financial Officer)
(retired with effect from 19 November 2013)
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary
(retired with effect from 19 November 2013)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Ong Chi King (appointed on 28 February 2014)

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (resigned with effect from 28 February 2014)
Ms. Chan Lai Yee

Mr. Lee Shu Fai
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Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting of the Company (the “Annual General
Meeting”), one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation and all such retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election thereat.

As such, each of Mr. Wong Yuk Tong and Ms. Chan Lai Yee shall
retire from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Mr.
Wong Yuk Tong, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as
an executive Director at the Annual General Meeting. Ms. Chan Lai
Yee will not offer herself for re-election due to her other business
commitments, and will retire as an independent non-executive
Director upon conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. To
ensure the continuing compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), which
requires the Board to be comprised with at least three independent
non-executive Directors, the Company will make appropriate
arrangement and will make further announcement as and when
appropriate.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received from Mr. Ong Chi King a confirmation of independence
from the Group upon his appointment with effect from 28 February
2014. The Company also received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of independence. Based on these confirmations, the Company
considers that each of such Directors is independent from the
Group during their respective tenures as an independent non-
executive Director.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings or determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into either a service contract or

letter of appointment with the Company as follows.

Name

]

Contract type
SHRE

EENREESH

Directorship term

BEEEN

BRERDEARFBF LA TREA DB E RS-

Prior notice of
termination

BIEZEREHN

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong

FTEREE

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

FEELE

Ms. Wu Mei Chu

HERZ L

Mr. Ong Chi King

FrEEs

Ms. Chan Lai Yee

BRBRZL

Mr. Lee Shu Fai

THIBEE

Service contract

REEH

Service contract

RB&EH

Service contract

R#BEH

Letter of appointment

ZE1ERH

Letter of appointment

ZER M

Letter of appointment

ZERM

Initial term of three years commenced on
8 March 2013 and continue thereafter

B201353A8R T R =%
RREREE

Initial term of three years commenced on

1 September 2013 and continue thereafter
B20135F9R 1R T RBM=4

R EEEE

Initial term of three years commenced on
18 June 2013 and continue thereafter

B2013%6 A 18H LA 1 REI=4F
RREEEE

Initial term of three years commenced on
28 February 2014 and continue thereafter
B201452A28H B 1 REI=F
RREREE

Initial term of three years commenced on
8 March 2013 and continue thereafter
B201343A8H M F RE=4
L HEEBE

Initial term of three years commenced on
18 June 2013 and continue thereafter

B2013%6 A 18H LA 1 REI=4F
RREEEE

Two-month notice in writing

i {E A & mE A

Six-month notice in writing

N EA B EBEA

Two-month notice in writing

MEAEEEA

Two-month notice in writing

w8 A & E R A

Two-month notice in writing

w8 A & E R A

Two-month notice in writing

MEAEEEA



These appointments are subject to directors’ retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association. There
is no service contract between Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, being the
Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, and with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on page 23 to page 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number
of transactions with entities in which an executive Director and
former executive Directors have substantial shareholding. Details
of those transactions are set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to which the
Company, any of its controlling entities or its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2014, the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had the following interests in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the registers
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO; or notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

EFRERTHARREKY #HMKGRESFH
HRRRE

R2014%6A30H - EF LA RAEBITHABRA
NEMERBER (EXREFMBEED ([EH5 R
HIE 501 EXVER) Rt - BRI EHPHE
THREEZ MG IRPIEI2GALARREFE
BB M AR s - SRR £ R RIMT SR 10FT 8 L 2
TAEFETEFXZNFEESTR ([F2FRI])A
HMEARNRA RSN T

RELTHBAKRGHEFE
Number of Approximate
underlying % of

shares of the  shareholding of

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests Company held the Company
D EE R SN EATFRER

EENE i3 BaHHE HER R B #BHhaask

Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious Beneficial owner Personal interest 8,488,000 (Note) 0.88%

TRELE E=EAA &l A 2 (K7at)

Ms. Wu Mei Chu Beneficial owner Personal interest 8,488,000 (Note) 0.88%

MAERR LT EmEA A [EPN: (K7at)

Note: Hiat -

These represented the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the
section titled “Share Option Scheme” on page 181 to 184 of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2014, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the registers required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ZEBRMRRA QB AR BRIENERMR D ED AR
HHBHNANFRELBIEIIE M [EAAEFT 2] — &5 -

B XA EE &SN - 1201496 A30H - EE AR A
TETRABMERARRNEEMAREE (&
RES KB GG EXVER) B Bty - A8 R IR 00 sl (B 55
PHAREE S KR R F352(F AL AR R RF
ENERMHEMEEIORE  HRBRETRIZAM
SARF RO EMEEIORE



DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosure in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report, was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate, nor had
exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2014, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than a director or chief executive of the
Company) who had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into by the Company or subsisted during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As set out in the Prospectus, according to the non-competition
deed (“Non-competition Deed”) entered between the Company
and the then controlling shareholders of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholders”) and certain non-competing covenantors (“Non-
Competing Covenantors”) on 7 June 2011, the non-compete period
under the Non-competition Deed refers to the period during which:

(a) in case of the Controlling Shareholders, any of the
Controlling Shareholders or his/its respective associate is a
controlling shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of the Listing Rules in force from time to time;
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(b) in the case of the other Non-Competing Covenantors, any of
them is interested in 5% or more of the total issued share
capital of the Company from time to time or such Non-
Competing Covenantor is a Director or member of the senior
management of the Group; and

(c) the shares of the Company are and remain listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Accordingly, before the commencement of the Year, the non-
compete period expired for (i) the Controlling Shareholders (i.e.
Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Speedy Harvest Investments Limited),
and (ii) some of the Non-Competing Covenantors, namely Ultra
Strong Group Limited, Mr. Ng Kam Wing, Ms. Lau Yue Lan, Ms. Ng
Choi Fong, Creative Master Holdings Limited and Ms. Yiu Wai Yee,
Catherine.

During the Year, the respective non-compete periods for Beautiful
Choice Investments Limited, Ms. Chu Wai Ling, Classic King
Development Limited and Mr. Ng Norman expired. As at 30 June
2014, the non-compete period for Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious has
not expired. Each of Beautiful Choice Investments Limited, Ms.
Chu Wai Ling, Classic King Development Limited, Mr. Ng Norman
and Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious has confirmed to the Company of
his/her/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed during their
respective applicable non-compete period. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and
confirmed that all of these non-competition undertakings have been
complied with by the relevant covenantors during their respective
applicable non-compete period.

As at 30 June 2014, except for Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, who
remained as an executive Director, the non-compete period has
expired for all other covenantors of the Non-Competition Deed.

(b) BEMAHEFREAGAMNS EAREER
ARR AR D BETRAERZ5%HIA L
KEBTHFRERFARETIAEESH
BEHEEKE R

€ ARFBMNRRERFRBEFT LM e

Et RAFERBAA ROERBRE (BIRBMHE
4 K Speedy Harvest Investments Limited) X (ii)& T
TR F R A A (BlUNra Strong Group Limited ~ R
tRER oA~ BB 2 - RIS &~ Creative Master
Holdings Limited R #kEEz L) M5 THFHFEE =
o

R E A - Beautiful Choice Investments Limited *
RE I 2+  Classic King Development Limited & 2
LW ERB 2 THEFHMECE M R201456 R
30H  FEL KL 7 T 5 T HIM M 2K JE R  Beautiful
Choice Investments Limited * 2 3% %2 £ - Classic King
Development Limited * R 2418 5o 4 R T E 2L £ X H
ERAARER HREESEBEACTHEFHER
BFTHEFRE - BUFATESCEHNETRRL
ERBELERAFACRESSAEAZ THT M
WBFHBZETHF AR

MR2014F6 A30R R IDEERTEST 2 FTRESLE
S A B FRIBZ AR EMREARAME - T
FHFECEm -



CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

(A) Tenancy agreements and licence agreements in relation to
properties and advertising spaces

Transaction details

On 15 August 2013, Modern Education (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Modern Education HK”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and certain connected persons of the Company
have entered into the following licence agreements, whereby
such connected persons granted licences to the Group for the
use of the following premises as the learning centres of the
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HEXS
HRMEXS
(A) FRHERRELZAEYIR T TERE GBS

R ZFFIE

M2013F8H15H  RARIMEEMB QA IRMK
HE (BB)ERAT ([BRHE (HF)])HAR
NEINE TRIBALFT A THFAF A &
b ZEREATRAEBREBERAUTSME
BAEENRER LR,/ SEERSEMRIER
BFOBEBHRE T OO ESALAT A 5 AR

Group and/or the advertising spaces to promote and advertise

the respective learning centres located in the same buildings:

Actual rental/

licence fee
(Approximately
HK$)
EREg
RHERE
(#t481)
Year ended
Licensor/Landlord Licencee/Tenant Premises/Advertising spaces 30 June 2014 Term (Note 1)
HE20145%
HAEAA RE BETEAAHE B REM 6A30ALEE FH(WiZD
Online Global Limited Modern Education HK Shops 9A and 9B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 11-17 1 July 2013 to
Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, New Territories, 31 May 2014
Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
EREBRAA BRHE (F8) BENRDELBEHIL-I7REERL 4492000 2013%7R81B%
2BIAROB & (Hit2K3) 2014F5A31H
Online Global Limited Modern Education HK 14 advertising spaces at Wai Wah Centre, 11-17 1 July 2013 to
Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, New Territories, 31 May 2014
Hong Kong (Note 3)
ERARAA BRYE (BF) ERMALEYBEGLL-TREERLE 220000 2013F7A1HZ
\MERER (H7#3) 2014654318

8/
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Actual rental/
licence fee
(Approximately
HK$)
EREg
HHERR
(#48T)
Year ended
Licensor/Landlord Licencee/Tenant Premises/Advertising spaces 30 June 2014  Term (Note 1)
HE20145%
HAEAA RE BHEEAAHE B REMR 6H30ALEE FH (W7D
Modern English Limited Modern Education HK (i) Shop 220a, Park Central, 9 Tong Tak Street, 1 July 2013 to
Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, New Territories, 4 May 2014
Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
BREZERAF BRYE (B%) () BAETAREREREEHIRBERRL 184,000 2013F7A31B%
22025548 (H1it2R3) 2014F5R4H
(i) Shop 220b, Central Heights, 9 Tong Tak 1 July 2013 to
Street, Tseung Kwan 0, Sai Kung, New 4 May 2014
Territories, Hong Kong (Notes 2 and 3)
(i) BAFAREREREEHHERRE 2,438,000 2013F7R1HZE
22005 8 (Hit2K3) 2014F5R4R
Subtotal
Nt 2,622,000
World Wide Resources Modern Education HK  Shops 8A and 8B, 2/F, Wai Wah Centre, 11-17 1 July 2013 to
Management Limited Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin, New Territories, 31 May 2014
Hong Kong (Notes 2 & 3)
RFEAREEERARA BRYE (BH) ERMALEYBEGLLITREERL 9,086,000 2013F7A1BZ
21E8AR8B # (HTit2K3) 2014F5A31H
Total
At 16,420,000

The annual cap in relation to the transactions contemplated
under the licence agreements for the year ended 30 June
2014 was HK$16,861,000.

BRRTRIE M R T EBETTH X HEE20145F
6H30H (FFEHFE LR 716,861,000/ 7T °



Notes:

(1)

(2)

3

The licences expired on the expiry dates of the respective
tenancy agreements or licence agreement entered into between
the relevant connected persons and the landlord or licensor of
the premises or advertising space.

The landlord refused to novate the relevant then existing
tenancy or licence agreements entered into with the relevant
connected persons to the Group without providing any specific
reasons.

The Group has notified the relevant landlords or licensor about
the use, possession and occupation of the premises or the use
of advertising space by the Group. However, despite the Group'’s
requests to the relevant landlords or licensor to novate the
relevant existing tenancy or licence agreements to the Group
while they were still in force or provide licence or consent for
the Group to continue to use, possess and occupy the premises
or continue to use the advertising space, the Group has not
obtained such consent from the relevant landlords or licensor.
The relevant connected persons were therefore in breach of the
relevant then existing tenancy or licence agreement entered into
between the relevant connected persons and the landlords or
licensor.

The licence fees paid by the Group to each of these

connected persons in relation to the premises and/or

advertising spaces were be the same as the rental and/or

licence fees (including service charges and other expenses,

if any) payable by Online Global Limited, Modern English

Limited and World Wide Resources Management Limited to

the landlords and/or licensors under the relevant then existing

tenancy and/or licence agreements. As such, these connected

persons had no direct and indirect interest in those continuing

connected transactions.

Annual Report 2014 4F &

Report of the Directors
EEERE

Hisz -

(1)

(2)

(3)

ZEAFAME AN AR E A T RIGMES K
X SRETRIME A AT M AE B AR 40 3R AT R A 15
BB E -

EXIRERHAEMARIER EBUFHBENK
BEAARERERENERRAHOREAR
BB ANLRI L ZRFRIE R -

AEECBHNAWEINAAICAABRAEE
R A REAZEMELERESA A
BEAKEERERET X AERAFNE
W AAREREHENRAROLFAE
i MAARENRARORFFAIERBEDA
ERFFARRABEAEEEEER FERIER
SZEMESBEERESM - ANEEHARRSE
BT AERANRE - Bt - BARAREAL
BRAMBESATEZISFAERATLINS
MERRABORFFAEBHE-

AEERSH R, HEELIN TFEZE@EBEA
TR BREEREGRAR AREZFARAT
rBRFEREERARAPRERBEERREAHELY
R,/ SAHAERGHEENEE R HFFAIEAA
e KRR EARR (BEREEREMX
H(nA) ) Hit ZFAEALTLBERNZFR
BRERSTHRBER N HZEER-

8



40

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 () R E =B AR A

Report of the Directors
EEERE

(B)

Connection of the parties

At the date of the licence agreement, Mr. Lee Wai Lok,
Ignatious (“Mr. Lee”), an executive Director, and Ms. Yiu Wai
Yee, Catherine (“Ms. Yiu"”), a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group, each held 50% shareholding in Online Global
Limited. Online Global Limited became an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from 1 June
2014. Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, a former executive Director, and
Ms. Yiu hold 66.67% and 33.33% shareholding respectively
in Modern English Limited. Ms. Yiu is the sole shareholder
of World Wide Resources Management Limited. As such,
Modern English Limited, Online Global Limited (for the period
between 1 July 2013 and 31 May 2014) and World Wide
Resources Management Limited are connected persons of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
above licence agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules. As
the above licence agreements are similar in nature and
entered into with the same group of connected persons,
the transactions contemplated under these agreements
were aggregated under Rule 14A.25 of the Listing Rules.
Further details of the licence agreements were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 August 2013 and
the circular of the Company dated 18 September 2013.

Tutor service contracts
(i) Contract with Italy Limited and Mr. Ng Norman
Transaction details

On 15 August 2013, Italy Limited and Mr. Ng Norman
(“Mr. Ng") entered into a service contract with the Group,
pursuant to which lItaly Limited agreed to procure Mr. Ng
to provide tutoring services to our students of the Group
for a term commencing on 1 July 2013 and expiring on
30 June 2016.

ol

REFRERARZEAER BT EEFTELEE ([F
FE])RAEEETHBARNESHERL L
(Mt 1) ZB8PRFBEEBRAR A AB50%MK
E-BHEARATB2014F6A1IEREMARA
ANEEEEWNB AR - RiBMELE (RQFIK
AIITES) Rk AT RBAERREEERA
A H66.67% K&33.33% R E -k L T BIRFEIR
EEERAFME—RE-F MREEBAER
ANEEEARAAF (H2013F7A1HE20144F
5H31B M) RRFEREEERAA AR AT
BIREEA T - MAREE EHRA] - LA EFF R A i
BTE#ETHORBERARRNBERERS -
MR A LA AR E B R AR F — 40k
BATEY MZERRETHETHZHER
B LEMRBIEIAAETLAE et E - FTRIE A
EAE — S B HN A AR B HA201348A
158 A RN AE BB A201349 A 18A H &

(B) BETFRFEEH

(i) HEEAFERLARREEE LT LAIER
RBFIE
M201358A15H  BAMABR A A N R %
MAE(TREEDBAKRETLRB A
#) B BANBRAFRERKREE
AN B R B AR B RS - FHIN2013
F7H18 A RR201656 A30H & °



Pursuant to the service contract, Italy Limited is entitled
to a fee payable by the Company calculated at a
commission rate of HK$2,838 per student per course
(with lecture conducted by Mr. Ng only) or HK$4,015 per
student per course (with lecture conducted by Mr. Ng
and tutorial class conducted by other teaching assistants)
or (as further agreed by a supplemental agreement
dated 28 September 2013 entered into between the
parties) HK$1,800 per student per course (with lecture
conducted by other teaching assistants). In a lecture, Mr.
Ng would be teaching a larger group of students with key
concepts and their application demonstrated, whereas
in a tutorial class, tutors would focus more on question
answering skills.

The commission rates aforesaid are calculated based
on (i) the tuition fees charged from students net of any
refunds or discounts; and (ii) fee per student which
the Group should pay for lecture and tutorial classes
which Mr. Ng is in charge of, and were determined after
arm’s length negotiation. Given that the duration of the
lecture component of each course is 45 hours whereas
the duration of each course which consists of both
lecture and tutorial class components is 90 hours, the
commission rate for courses with both lecture and tutorial
class is more than that applicable to courses with lecture
only. The fee payable by the Group to Italy Limited would
be the product of the relevant commission rate aforesaid
and the number of students attended the courses which
Mr. Ng is in charge of subject to deductions of other
expenses, such as the costs of teaching assistants and
certain other costs associated with his classes, including
certain promotional and marketing events, reference
materials and copyright licence fees. The respective
annual caps of the above transactions for the three years
ending 30 June 2016 are set out below:
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Annual Caps Year ended/ending 30 June
BECAALEEMEELR
2014 2015 2016
20145 20154 20165
Estimated number of students (A) CREEIN () 620 682 750
Commission rate payable to RELELEERE
Mr. Ng per student per course (B) EXHTREENESB) HK$4,015% T HK$4,015% 1T HK$4,0157 1T
Estimated other expenses (C) EErE AR HK$809,000% 1t HK$889,9007% 1t HK$978 89075 1T
Fee payable to Mr. Ng and/or EXHFREER/& Approximately Approximately Approximately
ltaly Limited EAFIERAGAMNER HK$1,680,000 HK$1,848,000 HK$2,032,000
471,680,000/ 70 #1,848,000 1T #12,032,0007% 1T
Note: /’%‘E .

(1) Fee payable to Mr. Ng and/or Italy Limited =AxB -C

The actual annual transaction amount for the Year was
approximately HK$1,612,000 (2013: approximately
HK$1,566,000).

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Ng, a former executive Director (who retired with
effect from 19 November 2013), is the sole shareholder
of Italy Limited, both Italy Limited and Mr. Ng are
connected persons of the Company during the Year and
the transactions contemplated under the service contract
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

(1) BINFREER LEAFNERAGNE
FA=AxB—-C

AEEERFERHE A R1,612,0007%
7T (20134 : #)1,566,0004 7T, ) °

=Wsl-ol)

BRATMITERREA (R E2013F11 719
RERE) REAFERAFMME R
BWEANERAARREERAFERAR
AIMEEAL  MRELTARR ZRBEE
WA T REETTH R BB R B FHERRE



(i)~ Service Contract with Sense Publishing Company Limited

and Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
Transaction details

On 15 August 2013, Sense Publishing Company Limited
and Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (“Mr. Lee”) entered into a
service contract with the Group, pursuant to which Sense
Publishing Company Limited agreed to (i) procure Mr.
Lee to provide tutoring services to students of the Group;
and (ii) grant a sole, exclusive and non-transferable
licence to the Group to use and reproduce the teaching
materials prepared by Mr. Lee for the tutorial courses
organised by the Group for secondary school students
and conducted by teaching assistants with the said
teaching materials for a term commenced on 1 July
2013 and expiring on 30 June 2016.

Pursuant to the service contract, Sense Publishing
Company Limited is entitled to certain fees calculated
at a commission rate (comprising of the commission
and gratuity components) of 60% of the tuition fees net
of any refund, discount or rebate paid by the students
to the Group to attend the tutorial courses conducted
entirely by Mr. Lee in person. If the tutorial class is not
entirely taught by Mr. Lee in person but by other tutors
or teaching assistants using the teaching materials
prepared by Mr. Lee and/or his teaching assistants, the
commission rate is adjusted downwards by 1.5% to
8%. The fees payable by the Group to Sense Publishing
Company Limited is the product of the relevant
commission rate and the net tuition fee aforesaid subject
to further other deductions such as the costs of teaching
assistants and certain other costs associated with his
classes, including certain promotional and marketing
events, reference materials and copyright licence fees.
The respective annual caps of the above transactions for
the three years ending 30 June 2016 are set out below:

(if)
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Annual Caps Year ended/ending 30 June
BECAALEEMEELR
2014 2015 2016
20145 2015% 2016&
Estimated number of students (A) fEEr2EARN 13,500 14,175 14,884
Net tuition fee (B) FHEE®B) HK$39073 7T HK$3907% 7T HK$39075 7T
Estimated average commission rate (C) ErFHAE%(C) 54.6% 54.6% 54.6%
Estimated other expenses (D) ERE-LuEET) HK$1,000,000%7  HK$1,050,000% 7  HK$1,102,500% 7T
Fee payable to Mr. Lee and/or BXHFERER/& Approximately Approximately Approximately
Sense Publishing Company Limited HEERRARANNER HK$1,875,000 HK$1,968,000 HK$2,067,000
491,875,000/ 70 #71,968,000% T #)2,067,0007% 1
Note: /’%‘E .

(1) Fee payable to Mr. Lee and/or Sense Publishing Company
Limited=AxBxC-D

The actual annual transaction amount for the Year
was approximately HK$819,000 (2013: approximately
HK$1,971,000).

Connection of the parties

As Mr. Lee, an executive Director, is the sole shareholder
of Sense Publishing Company Limited, both Sense
Publishing Company Limited and Mr. Lee are connected
persons of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the service contract constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

(1) EIRFFERAER SEBEERERERD A
HEMA=AXxBxC—D

AKEEEBRFERHEEEL AE819,000% T
(20134 : 491,971,000/ 7T ) °

=Wsl-ol)
HRRTEEFTERERBEZHRABR LD
AR WARELRARA R RZE
FEAR/ARBNBEAL MRELTR
Al ZRBENAETERETORZEBRAR
BINIERER S -

Further details of the above (i) service contract with Mr. Ng and (ii) (VR ERTIMRIEE L (DA LB
service contract with Mr. Lee were set out in the announcement of RIS & HHE — P BN AL A HHA2013F8H
the Company dated 15 August 2013. I5EKRMHEA -



Annual Review

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

and have followed the pricing policy pursuant to the relevant
contracts when determining the fee payable during the Year.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the auditors of the Company,
were engaged to report on the above continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and reported
their findings to the Board that the transactions:

(i)  have been approved by the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(ii) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed
above.
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OTHER RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements (except the lease by Tellet Investment Limited
to the Group, management fee expenses to Creative Education
Technology Limited and commission expenses to China Vantage
International Holdings Limited) constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

PENSION SCHEME

Details of the pension scheme of the Group are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own corporate governance code (the “CG
Code”). During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
provisions of the CG Code except for the deviation as disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report which is set out on pages 48 to
60 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year and as at the date
of this annual report.

HthEALRS
RAMBRRMEIMBAEA LR S (HERERE
BERARAAEEEE XN FABHERTARA
AZEREBMNTHEEREEERARZAEH
RO RIBE ETTRAF IAAR B ER 5 Sl i5 48
BERH - BEWR ARFERNERBRATES LT
MAIFIAAT IR T B I 5R SOB  BOR L SR E -

Rtk atE
AEBERNRARSEFBHNGE W RRM 4L -

BENEER

AEERRERROBREFEFBHRNGA U BHRE
BEEa2 o

®RER

ARECEA ETRAMSRI4AME N EE AT RIP
B R A R R E ST AR SE R E AR H R EE AT A
(TEXBEARTA) -RAFEAR ARBDETEE
EORSTRIM AT B 1630 IEARF M BASEG0A PRy
XERMEFTRENRBERSIN

BHALRKBEKRE
REARFAFESNENRBESEHAM RAFE
RAFEHRBBARR G EMRAARENTDRA
NAIEBEITHRN25%H BHRRFFIRE



AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2014 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”)
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of HLB as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

During the Year, HLB have been appointed as the auditors of
the Company with effect from 5 February 2014 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) which took effect from 30 January 2014,
The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
years ended 30 June 2012 and 2013 were audited by Deloitte.
Deloitte has confirmed in its letter of resignation dated 30 January
2014 that there are no matters connected with its resignation that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders. Save for
the above, there has been no other change in the auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Yuk Tong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2014
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Hong
Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles in and adopted the code
provisions of the corporate governance code set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own corporate governance code (the “CG Code”).
During the year ended 30 June 2014 (the “Year”), the Company
has complied with all the provisions of the CG Code except for the
deviations as disclosed below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman of
the Board (the “Chairman”) to hold meetings at least annually with
the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the executive Directors present. The Chairman,
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, during his tenure was himself executive
Director and as such, compliance with this code provision was
infeasible.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries of the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed
his/her compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
members, three of which are executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Yuk Tong (the Chairman), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious (Vice
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Wu
Mei Chu. The other three members are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi King, Ms. Chan Lai Yee and Mr. Lee
Shu Fai.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 23 to 26 of this
annual report.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has established various
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference. All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflicts of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. During
the Year, nine Board meetings were held to perform the above
mentioned duties and responsibilities.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board. The Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

Management Functions

While the Board is responsible for the overall strategic direction and
governance by considering and approving the Group’s strategies,
policies and business plan, the functions of implementing the
approved strategy and policies as well as managing the day-to-
day operations and administration are delegated to the executive
management under the chief executive officer’s leadership
and supervision. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Appointments of the Directors are subject to retirement from office
and retirement by rotation under the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”).

In accordance with the CG Code, any new Director appointed to fill
a causal vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the
first general meeting after the appointment, and according to the
Articles of Association, any new Director appointed as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to the Articles of Association,
at every annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the
Directors (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director is eligible
for re-election at that general meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) with effect from 1 September 2013. The Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of its Board,
to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board.
A diversity of perspectives can be achieved through engaging
directors in possession of diversified skills, regional and industry
experience, educational background, race, gender and other
qualities, etc. The composition, experience and balance of skills
of the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains a core of members with longstanding knowledge of the
Group alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who
bring fresh perspectives and diverse experience to the Board. The
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board. During the Year,
the Policy was taken into account by the Nomination Committee
and the Board in the appointment of Mr. Ong Chi King as the
new independent non-executive Director in February 2014. The
Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its continued
effectiveness on an annual basis.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the Year, all of the
Directors received regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments of the Group’s business and the legislative and
regulatory environments in which the Group operates. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses. Effective
from September 2012, all Directors are required to provide the
Company with his or her training record on a yearly basis. During
the Year, each of Mr. Wong Yuk Tong, Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious,
Ms. Wu Mei Chu, Mr. Ong Chi King, Ms. Chan Lai Yee and Mr.
Lee Shu Fai participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
materials relevant to the Company’s business, amendments on
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules, or directors’ duties
and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company met the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code which stipulates that the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the Year, the role of the Chairman was performed by Mr.
Wong Yuk Tong, who provided leadership for the Board and was
responsible for chairing meetings, managing the operations of the
Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues were
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. He
was also responsible for the strategic management of the Group
and for formulating the Group’s overall corporate direction and
focus.

During the Year, the role of chief executive officer was performed
by Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, who was responsible for the overall
management and operations of the Group. He was also responsible
for running the businesses of the Group and implementing the
Group’s strategic plans and business goals.
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To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the Chairman co-ordinated with the
senior management to provide adequate, complete and reliable
information to all Directors for consideration and review during the
Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing at least one-
third of the Board under the CG Code with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. All independent non-executive Directors were appointed
for a specific term of three years.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received a written confirmation of independence from the
independent non-executive Director appointed during the Year
and an annual written confirmation from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 4 July 2011 with its role and
function set out in its specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Year, which are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Board on
the policy and structure for remuneration of all the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policies on such
remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration packages of all
individual executive Directors and the senior management and
making recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors; and (iii) reviewing and approving compensation
payable to the executive Directors and the senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi King (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious, Ms. Chan
Lai Yee and Mr. Lee Shu Fai.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
to review the remuneration policy, remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management in accordance with the
Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.
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The annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by bands for the Year is set out below:

RAFE RERNE D 2= REREKE 2 FEFH B
IR

igi]

Number of
Remuneration bands Individuals
FrEf#a B A8
Nil to HK$500,000 = 500,000 T 1
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 21,000,000/ 7T 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the Year are set out
in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established by the Board on 9 March 2012 with specific written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code, which are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yuk Tong (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Ms. Chan Lai Yee and Mr. Lee Shu Fai.

The major functions of the Nomination Committee is to assist
the Board to identify suitable individuals qualified to become
Board members, assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, propose re-election of retiring Directors,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee resolved to nominate
the new independent non-executive Director to the Board and the
Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, and review the arrangement for
re-election of all the retiring Directors at the forthcoming general
meetings of the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 4 July 2011 with specific written terms of reference
in compliance with the provisions set out in the CG Code, which are
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
by providing an independent view on the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
systems of the Group, overseeing the audit process and performing
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ong Chi
King (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Chan Lai Yee and
Mr. Lee Shu Fai. During the Year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the annual and interim results of the Group
and make recommendations to the Board and the management
in respect of the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has also reviewed, with
the management and the Company’s auditors, the Group's
significant internal controls and financial matters in accordance
with the Audit Committee’s written terms of reference and made
relevant recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee’s
review covered the audit scope and findings, external auditors’
independence and performance, the Group’s accounting principles
and practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training
programmes and budget.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with written terms of reference equivalent
to Code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the
corporate governance policies of the Company were reviewed by
the Board. The Board also reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management, the Company’s compliance with the CG Code,
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report and the policy on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee during
the Year are set out below:

BEKELEERTRIMNTRNEXEDS.1

TEXERBE -NAFEAR:
CHEFER uﬂ‘ EE DT%
I

BRCEREATAZETRER R ﬁ%a/mi& Z
WEIARFEIERIERBTE 2K

EFHEERZIER

RAFERN SEFHFEARTABRRAS EF8E
@ ERZBeeR VHEZEeemER%RES
’.;E%Z’I%/REU%UZD"F-

Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

HE/ BTEERR (171

Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination

general Extraordinary Board Committee Committee Committee
Director meeting  general meetings meetings meetings meeting meeting
EZ BREFEXE REBIKE EXGEeR ENZAGeR FHZAGEE RETHedR
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wong Yuk Tong TEREE 1 213 719 NA T E R NA TEA mn
Mr. Lee Wai Lok, lgnatious TREESE 1 23 79 N/A NE A n NA &R
Ms. Wu Mei Chu WHERZT 1 33 719 N/A NE A N/A N iER N/A T
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary (Note 2) BRERE (f7722) 01 213 13 NA T E R NA TE A NA T iE R
Mr. Ng Norman (Note 3) REWEE (H73) on 13 03 N/A 7 E N/A TE A N/A T iE
Independent non-executive Directors BUEMRTES
Mr. Ong Chi King (Note 4) TFHEE (Hi74) N/A M E R N/A NEF 1 N/A NE A NA TNEA N/A N &R
Ms. Chan Lai Yee RERZT n 33 8/9 202 17 n
Mr. Lee Shu Fai FhgLE o1 13 5/9 202 mn 1n
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (Note 5) DRERE (H1725) 01 13 38 22 1N 01



Notes:

1. Attendances of the Directors appointed/retired/resigned during the
Year were made by reference to the number of such meetings held
during their respective tenures.

2. Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary retired as an executive Director with effect
from 19 November 2013.

3. Mr. Ng Norman retired as an executive Director with effect from 19
November 2013.

4. Mr. Ong Chi King was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 28 February 2014.

5. Mr. Kwok Shun Tim resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 28 February 2014.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year. The
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of
the Group on a going concern basis, and have selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently, with applicable
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and pursuant to the
relevant statutory requirements.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 61 to 62 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group. Relevant procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposal; for controlling excessive capital expenditure; for
maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability of
financial information used in the operations or for publication.
Qualified management personnel of the Company will maintain and
monitor the internal control system on a going concern basis.
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The Board has reviewed the internal control system of the Group,
which covers financial, operational, compliance procedural and
risk management functions, and in particular, considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function. The Board concluded that the internal
control systems are effective and efficient.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all of these non-competition
undertakings have been complied with by the relevant covenantors.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, for their audit services for
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year was
HK$630,000.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company maintains a two-way communication channel
to report the performance of the Company to its shareholders
and investors. Annual reports, accounts and interim reports
containing full details of the Company’s activities are despatched
to shareholders and investors. Such reports and other
announcements of the Company can be accessed on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Company also
communicates and discloses its latest business development plan
via road shows, seminars with institutional investors and analysts,
and telephone conferences.

To ensure effective disclosures made to shareholders and investors,
and to ensure that the same information is made available to the
public at the same time, price sensitive information is released in
the form of official announcements in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lei Keng Kuong, an external service provider, is engaged by the
Group as the Company Secretary and is responsible for facilitating
the Board processes, as well as communications among Board
members, with shareholders and management. The Company
Secretary’s primary contact person at the Group is Miss Cheung
Po King, the financial controller of the Group. During the Year, Mr.
Lei Keng Kuong has taken not less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Under the Articles of Association, the Board, on the written
requisition of either (i) two or more shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders” or each a “Shareholder”) holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company, or (ii) one Shareholder
which is a recognised clearing house holding not less than 10%
of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board shall convene
an extraordinary general meeting to address specific issues of the
Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written notice
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. If
the Board does not so proceed to duly convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves, or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s)
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the inaction of the Board to duly
convene an extraordinary general meeting shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

There is no provision under the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands regarding procedures
for Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for selection as a Director.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.
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Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. Other general enquiries
can be directed to the Company through those communication
channels as shown on the Company's website www.hkeduii.com.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its Shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages the Shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
Shareholders. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting.

A proxy form for use at a general meeting of the Company is
enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are
unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form and
return the same to the branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company in Hong Kong, so as to appoint a representative,
another Shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HONG KONG EDUCATION (INT'L) INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 63 to 200, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30 June
2014, and of its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5769

Hong Kong, 26 September 2014
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FeRakEtZEla®

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014F6H30H It F =

2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt F#ET FET
Revenue WA 7 235,805 248,348
Other income, gains and losses HaA -~ e R E1E 8 2,328 (2,792)
Staff costs 8 TR 10 (57,362) (63,597)
Tutor contractor fee BEENEAB B 10 (71,996) (81,733)
Operating lease payments LA E 10 (49,669) (52,360)
Marketing expenses MiGHEERX (19,665) (22,822)
Printing costs N2 A (469) (600)
Depreciation and amortisation e R g (6,616) (8,526)
Change in fair value of investment BEWEZ NFEES
properties 1,500 6,020
Change in fair value of unlisted EBERZEAFEN AERZN
convertible notes designated as financial 4 RIEEMIE LT
assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ AI#RR ZiE 2 A FEEH 21 628 5,144
Change in fair value of listed LTAREEBRREL
held-for-trading investments N EE (1,961) (5,224)
Loss on disposal of listed HE EmAHEE
available-for-sale investment &2 EBE 21 (24,207) -
Impairment loss on listed LA ERE 2
available-for-sale investment B EE 21 (28,273) (1,628)
Other operating expenses Hih &M (46,923) (41,512)
Finance costs Ve R 9 (1,561) -
Share of results of joint ventures BIRE & RNBIEE 20 830 (3,394)
Share of results of associates iy ieal/N 19 1,299 -
Loss before tax BRELRIERE 10 (66,312) (24,676)
Income tax expense Fris®if < 12 (195) (1,990)
Loss for the year FEBER (66,507) (26,666)
Other comprehensive (expense) HthZm (M)A
income, net of income tax HIBRFR 2R
Items that may be reclassified HEGJEEHAEE
subsequently to profit or loss: HEZH9HEE -
Exchange differences arising on B G IME R TS
translating foreign operations EAMERZ5 2 (16)
Reclassification adjustment HE B R R
on exchange differences released BEIMEREZEN
upon disposal of a subsidiary EFOEAE (85) -
Fair value loss on revaluation of EHAIHEERERN
available-for-sale investment R~ EEE (52,480) (1,628)
Reclassification adjustment upon AHEERERER 2
impairment of available-for-sale BN EAE
investment 28,273 1,628
Reclassification adjustment relating to BHERNFEREAHEE
available-for-sale investment REZEFDERARE
disposed of during the year 24,207 -
Share of exchange differences of i e RN /N P
an associate PE X Z R (2) -
Other comprehensive expense FREMEMEFAS - HIBRATEH
for the year, net of income tax (85) (16)
Total comprehensive expense FEZEMAXEE
for the year (66,592) (26,682)
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FERGRAMZEKGEER

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FEIT FET
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: A N A L EEFE
(BE)RH:
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ FSUN (66,517) (25,239)
Non-controlling interests AR E = 10 (1,427)
(66,507) (26,666)
Total comprehensive (expense) income A FATEMEFEE2TE (FX)
for the year attributable to: LONGE-CE
Owners of the Company KRARHEE A (66,602) (25,255)
Non-controlling interests e AR S 10 (1,427)
(66,592) (26,682)
Loss per share (=10 ] 13
— Basic (HK cents) — B CGEM) (8.92) (5.05)
— Diluted (HK cents) — 85 GEN) (8.92) (5.05)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FRERBERAE

At 30 June 2014 120144F6 B30H

2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FETT FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- HE KR 15 14,344 13,182
Investment properties KEME 16 27,500 60,000
Goodwill EES 17 60 -
Other intangible assets HEMELEE 18 1,286 1,484
Interests in associates R & N B R = 19 53,691 -
Interests in joint ventures REERAIRER 20 10,936 10,856
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 21 15,565 23,547
Non-current deposits FERBIEE 22 14,796 11,138
138,178 120,207
Current assets mENVEE
Trade and other receivables B REMmERFIE 23 25,030 27,108
Amounts due from related parties FEYL B A 5B 24 975 544
Other financial assets EthemEE 31 4,054 2,582
Held-for-trading investments FHEEEMIRE 25 8,420 19,066
Current tax assets BNERRIH & B 384 -
Fixed deposits held at banks with REIE B BB =EAK
original maturity over three months IR1TEETFERK 26 17,430 11,250
Bank balances and cash WRITEBR MRS 26 38,922 28,917
95,215 89,467
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFBEHENEE 27 - 18,430
95,215 107,897
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals EMEFRIEMEREA 28 10,331 13,567
Deferred income JRAE WA 7,509 9,873
Current tax liabilities BIEAf B B (& 185 2,272
Amounts due to related parties FETRR:E A T RUIE 29 232 559
18,257 26,271
Net current assets MEEEFE 76,958 81,626
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRBAR 215,136 201,833
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Non-current deposits EmBIEE = 197
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 30 1,022 1,286
Provision for long service payments RHRS 2B HE 32 1,921 2,264
2,943 3,747
Net assets BEFE 212,193 198,086
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FEMBRRAE
At 30 June 2014 7201446 530H
2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bz FET FiET
Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital & 7R 33 96,400 57,600
Reserves B 115,568 139,544
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIEB AEGEER
the Company 211,968 197,144
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR A 225 942
Total equity R 212,193 198,086

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 200 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

September 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Yuk Tong

Director
EEE
EE

HNFE63E200E MR A M EIRAZEMN20145F9 H26H
EEFSHENMRENE Wh MIIALTRREE:

Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEaBExR

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014F6H30H It F =

Attributable to owners of the Company

L YGE EPN ]
Attributable
Investment Accumulated to non-
Share Share Merger Capital revaluation Translation Statutory profits controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Subtotal interests Total
#E Ritas FHRER
2 BRER AR [:23:1 | EfiffE EREE HEGR (5H#) i 411 A
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET AT FET FET FET FAT FET FET
(Note 1) (Note i) (Note i)
(Hiti) (Hiiti) (Hratii)
At 1 July 2012 201267818 40,000 125,624 (28321) 446 - 193 % 22,264 160,300 2,369 162,669
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - - - (25,039) 25,039) (1427) (26,666)
Exchange differences arising on b
translating foreign operations EXEE - - - - - (16) - - (16) - (16)
Fair value loss on revaluation o~ BfAIEHERENATE
available-for-sale investment B - - - - (1,628) - - - (1,628) - (1,628)
Reclassfication adjustment upon ~ ATEEEER AN ERMNER
impairment of available-for-sale AEHE
investment - - - - 1,628 - - - 1,628 - 1,628
Total comprehensive expense EEREMILE
for the year - - - - - (16) - (25,239) (25,255) (1,427) (26,682)
Issue of ordinary shares eSO 17,600 47,200 - - - - - - 64,800 - 64,800
Transaction costs atiributable to B/ THTEBREERAKAE
issue of new ordinary shares - (2,701) - - - - - - (2,701) - (2,701)
AL30 June 2013 RO013567308 57600 170,123 (28321) 446 - 177 “ QI 197,144 Ll 198,086
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeEGenx

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L YAGE EPN
Attributable
Investment Share Accumulated to non-
Share Share Merger Capital  revaluation options  Translation Statutory profits controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Subtotal interests Total
#E RHEH FAREE
123 BRER AHERE BEEE EfiGR BRERE ERERE EERE (EH) it 411 a
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET AT FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note i) (Note i) (ote i)
(Hiti) (Hiiti) (#iii)
At 1July 2013 H2013%7A1A 57,600 170123 (28321) 446 - - 177 9% (2.975) 197,144 942 198,086
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (66,517) (66,517) 10 (66,507)
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations - - - - - - 2 - - 2 - 2
Reclassification adjustment on
exchange differences released
upon disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - (85) - - (85) - (85)
Fair value loss on revaluation of i
avallable-for-sale investment AYEEE - - - - (52,480) - - - - (52,480) - (52,480)
Reclassification adjustment upon T EER AR ERH
impairment of available-for-sale ENNERE
investment - - - - 28,273 - - - - 2273 - 28273
Reclassification adjustment relating  EEAEZHEMEHE
o available-for-sale investment RENHENHERE
disposed of during the year - - - - 24,207 - - - - 24,207 - 24,207
Share of exchange differences of B —HBERF 2
an associate EREE - - - - - - 2 - - (2 - )
Total comprehensive expense FERERREE
for the year - - - - - - (85) - (66,517) (66,602) 10 (66,592)
Issue of ordinary shares BEaRA 38,800 37,920 - - - - - - - 76,720 - 76,720
Transaction costs atiributable to ~ B/THT SRR AE(E
issue of new ordinary shares RERE - (1,918) - - - - - - - (1918) - (1,918)
Recognition of equity-settled 3
share-based payments - - - - - 5897 - - - 5897 - 5,897
Share options forfeited ARERK - - - - - (398) - - 398 - - -
Changes in ownership interests ERg
in a subsidiary without change
of contral (Note 40) - - - - - - - - 721 721 (721 -
Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - (94) 9% - - -
At 30 June 2014 2014567308 96,400 206,125 (28321) 446 - 5499 R? - (68.273) 211,968 225 212,193
Notes: Btaz -
(i)  The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal (i) AP EIESIn0 Network Group Limited ([Sino

(i)

(iii)

value of the shares of Sino Network Group Limited (“Sino Network”)
and the Company issued in exchange for the entire issued share
capital of Express Education Limited in 2010 and Sino Network
pursuant to group reorganisation in 2011.

The capital reserve represented capital contribution arising from
transfers of interest in subsidiaries to shareholders and waiver of
amount due to a shareholder in prior periods.

The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from profit
after tax of a subsidiary established in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") in accordance with the relevant PRC laws until the
PRC statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiary. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except where
the approval is obtained from the relevant PRC authority to apply
the amount either in setting off the accumulated losses or increasing
capital.

Network ] ) B8 22 &) 418 1% £ B & 40 70 20104F Bt 2 BL
Express Education Limited % #20114F Sino Networkf) 2

BEBITRAMEBETHBRDNEEZFWEER-

(i) BAFEHEENBEHERBREENNBARNER
EEHTE LM REN —BREOFE-

(iii)

EERBEREERTBEENPEARLME ([H

BRI zZMBAREREARTREN 2 EE BEE
HEDEERBEEBRNE AR ZEMEARL0% AL
EEREB R HEEISERE T B R R AR
BERSBEAEHERFBRIEMERERI
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeEHEeERER

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014F6H30H It F =

2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FEIT FET
Cash flows from operating activities BEIDREHALTE
Loss before tax BRELRIEE (66,312) (24,676)
Adjustments for: FATHEEL AR
Share of results of associates VA AN E S (1,299) -
Share of results of joint ventures NS E (830) 3,394
Interest income from bank balances RERITEHR K
and loan receivable FEU & SRR B A (406) (892)
Finance costs recognised RiEHFRRANMEER
in profit or loss 1,561 -
Change in fair value of unlisted BEABRAFERTA
convertible notes designated BamMerREEN
as financial assets at fair value LA R IE
through profit or loss NEEED (628) (5,144)
Change in fair value of other financial HtemEE
assets N EEE 620 1,656
Change in fair value of listed ETAREEBRRE
held-for-trading investments N EE 1,961 5,224
Change in fair value of investment "EMEQNTEE
properties (1,500) (6,020)
Gain on disposal of assets classified LESEAFHEHED
as held for sale BENKER (873) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QR MRS (1,923) -
(Gain) loss on disposal of listed HEEMEBEEBERERN
held-for-trading investments (Uhas) BB (1,924) 22
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE HE R
and equipment H B EE 1,431 2,014
Loss on disposal of listed HE WA HEE
available-for-sale investment wREWEE 24,207 -
Depreciation of property, plant and W WMERREBITE
equipment 6,418 8,328
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESH 198 198
Loss on acquisition of a subsidiary g — M B ARMEE 59 -
Impairment loss on listed LA ERE
available-for-sale investment N REY SRl 28,273 1,628
Impairment loss on interests REtE N aERZ
in an associate REEE 2,014 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEAERERER - 2,957
Reversal of doubtful debts REREMD - (86)
Provision for long service payments REIIRIE & B 12 138
Expense recognised in respect R AE S AEE
of equity-settled share-based LARS 10 B ERAT 5K
payments A 5,897 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEaBeREBR
For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE
2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B at F#&TT FET
Operating cash flows before movements & E & & & FTHY
in working capital KEESME (3,044) (11,259)
Decrease in rental deposits, trade and Heke BH5K
other receivables Eh W SRR R 2,148 1,299
Increase in amounts due from related JE U B8 53 A - FRIEE N
parties (431) (276)
Decrease (increase) in listed FRHIEEERE
held-for-trading investments A (g ) 10,609 (24,487)
(Decrease) increase in deposits, other e B EMARER
payables and accruals FEETE R CRA)Em (3,141) 5,134
(Decrease) increase in deferred income  EFEU A (55 4>) 1E AN (2,364) 4,212
Decrease in long service payments & B AR 7% R (355) (50)
Cash generated from (used in) EEELE (FTA)MES
operations 3,422 (25,427)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENBEEFER (2,611) (4,698)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRI RSN (47) 9)
Net cash generated by (used in) LEVEBIRTS (FTA) &
operating activities REFRE 764 (30,134)
Cash flows from investing activities BRETDFRENRALRE
Withdrawal of fixed deposits held IR RI AR R
at banks with original maturity =@ A ZRITEHFR
over three months 11,250 41,124
Interest received B U F B 351 1,234
Dividends received from a joint venture 2 U A E R RS 750 -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REEEPRITFER - 437
Proceeds from disposal of listed HE FmAREERE
available-for-sale investment FriS 38 20,677 -
Proceeds from disposal of assets HESBAFBEHEEN
classified as held for sale BESEHE 19,303 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HER
plant and equipment HEPTSR 182 124
Purchase of investment properties BEREWE - (65,294)
Purchase of convertible notes EEBRRRE (64,547) (20,000)
Payment for acquisition of associates Uy B B 2 N BB -F 3R 19 (56,500) -
Payment for acquisition of/ WiE B S ERRMNNR
investment in joint ventures - (14,250)
Placement of fixed deposits held GFARZEREB
at banks with original maturity =@ A ZRITEHFR
over three months (17,430) (11,250)
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BELXRE
equipment (6,628) (10,670)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, 3 {TUEEWE  HE K&
plant and equipment HENES - (2,310)
Loan advances to other entity HihERNERIBMAR (5,978) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of W B B B8 A R IR & 07 i F ER
subsidiaries 37 (154) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of HENBARIRERAFHE
subsidiaries 38 35,049 -
Net cash used in investing activities REREBFTAMNRE FH (63,675) (80,855)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeEBaRER
For the year ended 30 June 2014 #%=2014F6A308 It F[E
2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
it TF#ET FET
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHRENEQRE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 277 % @D TS 2B 76,720 64,800
Payment of transaction costs XA BT B
attributable to issue of FEAER SRR
new ordinary shares (1,918) (2,701)
Repayment to related parties EBEBAEATRE (327) (161)
Proceeds from bank and RITREMEEMEFIA
other borrowings 61,000 -
Repayments of bank and EHERTREMEE
other borrowings (61,000) -
Interest paid BF B (1,561) -
Net cash generated by financing RMEEEMEMNIRSFE
activities 72,914 61,938
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRB2ZEY
cash equivalents B CRd ) F5E 10,003 (49,051)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYNREeRREEEY
beginning of year 28,917 77,968
Effects of exchange rate changes [EXEFHNTE 2 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FEROBE R
of year, represented by bank ReFEWH
balances and cash RITEHR MRS 38,922 28,917
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Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 () R E =B AR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # Z=2014F6H30H It F/E

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 4 July 2011. As of the end of the reporting period, due
to the diverse shareholding of the Company, the Company has
no controlling shareholder.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
principally engaged in the provision of private educational
services, investment in securities, property investments and
money lending business as set out in Notes 40, 19 and
20 respectively. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

—HREH
ARBRAEHRSRERMSHE R RDAEMAL
R—HEHR AR AR B2011F7 A4HER
EEBMARZAERATE (TBRA]) EREM -
RABREHR ARARBORED B KA F)
I SR AL R o

KRalB—BREERAR M0 IR
40 19 20FBE T EHBA R - B AT RA
BATEERFRELARERE REES
WIS IR A T B ST A T B O B s b
FE B S B MR AN R0 A AR — B
R -

RAMBHRRARNRRNEEEET ([ET])
EX]

o



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year the

following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle

Government Loans

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities
Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MBERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

2.
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REBXFEERXERAATHEES
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BB IRE R
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ERZ 150 2T

R W
BB TR
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BB 105% -
BRMB®RE
HERIE11I5R &
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HERIE 125 B E]

BRI RE
RIS 1057

BAEMBRE
AERIE115%

BABMBRE
ERIF125%

BB RS
AR 135

BB ST ERE195%
(PR2011F#&&1&5T)

BT ERE275%
(FRA20114F & 183T)

BB G AR F285%
(2011 &1835])

575 (BBMB®RE
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— R EE20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation,

joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) /nvestments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, together with the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group
as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

ERAHITRESETERMBEREEN([F
BMBWEEN]) (&)

B TR BN RAFERAHET REERTE
AUBHREENTEBHAREARNFRE RBEFE
ZHBRBERMRAR, Az EHEE M BRERAEH
ZBEBEFEREATE -

FRGES AER - REAFAREMED
¥R R A ERT 2R

RAFE AEBERER-RINEHEEE A
BRYBERAREREZREER BREER
MG mEENEI0MA A HHFHE BEWHR
SEUFIRAS s BAYBRELERE]L2
SRRBEBRAME R Ez BB GFERIE275
(R2011FREFT) BV BEHENELGE
A156285% (R2011FREF ) RBELNFIR A E
A ARy IR E - BRI RS 2 R 551055 -
FEVBREERNELIRNEEMBREERNE
125 B RABIR MR Sl BB R -

N,

R E B G ERIFE279E (R2011FL£ER]) &
BB MBS EHE Y NERARAEE -

FER L EHER 2 FEIN T

EREEMBEEEEREIZRZEE

BEM GRS ERNFEL25R ) — B E LR NE
ARENBAR AL L BERARR AR
REREEREARANER - —RME KM
FEMBMEENFI2RBHNRA M B HRER D
tEHE R,z -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERWMIREESITEEMBEBEERN([F

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,

joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad;
the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13
apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for
the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for
impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 prospectively for its annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013. In addition, specific
transitional provisions were given to entities such that they
need not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the
standard in comparative information provided for periods
before the initial application of the standard. In accordance
with these transitional provisions, the Group has not made
any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013
comparative period. Other than the additional disclosures,
the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

BMBEEEN]) (&)

FRGES SERF - BEATIRBED
AT REERTEER (5)

EEMBHEEEREIM L FHEIHE
AEECRAFEEREAEBVERELELE
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HELRNBIIFBERZ  BEMBREERE
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BremTAEBLISMTARR HERES
B MEERNE2RU RO BERZ A BER
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R ERHERE B 2 EREE) RN

FEVBRELRNEIIRHEEZ A FERER
RAERREEE (KFAM)MH2RITHR
TETAKFRIHEEERKR (AREEA
B2 AHERERRERIN) 2B - BEWH
BELNEIIR 2 AFERFRE THAER
EEEATERAEAEMKETAGEESL -
BAN BRM B REERFISFHB B WER
o

ANEED 201397 A1 A% tE 2 FE BRI
AITIE 1 th FE R BB B 5 RS 2E RIS 135 o b AN
EHHEREEREMETREKR JEZEE
BEEXERALEEARGTTECHERER 2L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 9 (as revised 2014)

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transitional
Disclosures®

Investment Entities?

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers®

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions?
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets’

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Hedge
Accounting?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for grant date, acquisition date or annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2014 as appropriate, with earlier
application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

2. ERWIREETERMEBREEN([F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FeMBERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

e  The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of
a financial liability (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future will not have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
based on the analysis of the Group’s financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. ERWMIREESITEEMBEBEERN([F

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. It supersedes current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue, HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes, HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate, HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers
of Assets from Customers, and HK(SIC) — Int 31 Revenue-
Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. HKFRS 15
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when
to recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise.
The core principle is that an entity recognises revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. HKFRS 15 is to be applied on an individual contract
basis. However, a portfolio approach is permitted provided
it is reasonably expected that the impact on the financial
statements will not be materially different from applying
HKFRS 15 on an individual contract basis.

The steps to be applied in the new revenue model are as

follows:

e Step 1: Identify the contract with customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

In addition, HKFRS 15 also includes requirements for
accounting for some costs that are related to a contract with
a customer. With respect to disclosure, HKFRS 15 requires
an entity to disclose certain quantitative and/or qualitative
information so as to help investors better understand the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 is effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
on 1 July 2017 with early application permitted. It applies
to new contracts created on or after the effective date and
to existing contracts that are not yet complete as of the
effective date. The Group can choose to apply HKFRS 15
retrospectively or to use a modified transition approach. The
management anticipates that HKFRS 15 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 July 2017. The application of this
standard may have significant impact on amounts reported in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, the
management is in the process of ascertaining the financial
impact on application of this standard.

The Group has not applied other new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of other
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these other new and revised HKFRSs would have
a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards
prior to their mandatory effective date.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for the investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than business
combinations involving entities under common
control) (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above),
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts

or additional assets or liabilities are

and circumstances that existed as at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as at
that date.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities in which
the common control combination occurs as if they had been
combined from the date when the combining entities first
came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling parties’
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or
excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling parties’ interest.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations involving entities under
common control (Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented or since
the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate
or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after
the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Franchising income includes initial fees and continuing
franchise fees. Initial fees are recognised when the Group has
performed substantially all initial services and other obligations
required of the franchisor (the Group) under the franchise
agreements. Continuing franchise fees represent fees charged
for the use of continuing rights granted by a franchise
agreement, or for other services provided during the period
of a franchise agreement, are recognised as revenue as the
services are provided or the rights are used.

Income from provision of tutoring and education services is
recognised when the tutoring and educational services are
rendered.

Management and consultancy fee income is recognised when
the management and consultancy services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive the payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents the tuition fee received in
advance. Deferred income is recognised as revenue when the
tuition services are rendered.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
“prepaid lease
in the consolidated statement of financial position

for as an operating lease is presented as
payments”
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “translation reserve” (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset) all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
is re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of a joint arrangement that do not result in
the Group losing joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
and government-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Provision for long service payments

Provision for long service payments under the requirements
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is recognised when
the employees have rendered services entitling them to the
benefits. The amounts recognised are determined at the
management’s best estimate of the future cash outflow for
settlement of the obligations and measured on a discounted
basis, if the effect is material.

Share-based payments arrangements

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments arrangements (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits/losses.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

BEXEEE (&)

RE (&)

EERE ()
HEFEURFEEAAENREMENETEH IR
BEIEEHBREEMS  EEEENBRRES
HEMEHKE  BRIFFEARIERD -ERE
MERATHERAMERZEFREMEAMBENE
REDEEMNSENERRATHRA  MIFEBH
S BRRRE KD

FEBZHHREEZERE

BUHR KRR A R B s P SR M E B E A
SHEBASEERNEERNIBEEE TULB
AT BBV REEH B DRIRE4EEK
AR BEZER R HER - WA AR A SRR IR
REBAHPVRARSES IR E T
AEBEMZERE -

W%k BERER

ME -BEIRREEEFFEESHES Rk
BREIFEEENEFTRLEE L (RERR
BHA) AR BEERNRFNERERNR
FHREE R (A ) RERE MR BRI

BEREAEAFRIABREMBR AL NG E
RepBEERNE AT EAFEH RREE
RITETERERE MR T g - b2
BB IR AT RE B AR o



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transactions costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified into the
following specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
fixed deposits held at banks with original maturity over three
months and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under equity. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reserved
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including other payables and accruals and
amounts due to related parties) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that management has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the Directors have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group's investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any

income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.

Annual Report 2014 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

4.

EE®

A ER M A M AN R B & 5 R B E

AHREE S BRMIREENEENBENR

T B 1F th ) 7 - 5 5t SRR - P 1E th 9 il 5t &2 4R

F'WE““ELALEZ‘«%&E{ﬂz%ﬁ?ﬁ%*@?@E’\J%7,\%
HEE - BRERMERZEMF TR

B REHSRAREEDERR

1&.#&76@!55@ RTIFFERE © WY FE AR E
FHEREEITETERE - BN Z HEER X
fii & ;.T?/’E“EHIJ&%EPKH@F? EIESCRESINICES
KA RERR o

FER SRR EE PR
MREREEERERARENSTERBRETIE
HEHERAMBERRAMERSEAREAY
ENERHE (T RMGFERI)

REWHEEERE

A BEUARFERAAENREMEELNRT
HARBEIEEHRREEMNS EFCEHAE
BHEREMEEES XRHAER FARENKRE
WMELIFREBIZZHERE (MIBEBHEE)H
RIREMEMBESNBAR D EBEN RN EBE
AFH At EHEAKEREYENELTHR
BN CEFRHTEBHERBWORARAFER
AFTENREMENREEARER T HEER - i
RASEEEARHEHLREMEBNERFAF
B BMAEEY ERIREMENRFEZBER
EARAEFRIE

113



114

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 (B ) R E =B AR A &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fe BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of intangible asset with indefinite
useful life

Determining whether the intangible asset is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which intangible asset has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Provision for long service payments

The provision for long service payments is based on the
best estimate of the future payments required to settle the
obligations under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in
relation to the employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

In making this judgement, the management mainly considers
the number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group, at the
end of the reporting period, who are eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the
employee turnover rate as well as salary growth. Any change
in these estimates will affect the provision to be recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where observable
market data are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation and works closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. The use of
valuation models and assumptions in valuing these financial
instruments is subjective and requires varying degrees of
judgement. Notes 6 and 16 provide detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The management reviews the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new shares issues and debt financing.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &#MTITH
Categories of financial instruments emMTARAERN
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FiET
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss BAFEAEBR
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBHRE 8,420 19,066
Derivative financial instruments PTESMT A 2,199 2,582
Contingent consideration HAR(E 1,855 -
Loans and receivables (including B e W kIE
cash and cash equivalents) (REREMREEEY) 91,656 70,216
Available-for-sale investment A EIRE 15,565 23,547
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost B # A A 4,960 4,753
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEAERERIK

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties, derivative financial instruments,
contingent consideration, held-for-trading investments,
fixed deposits held at banks with original maturity over
three months, bank balances and cash, other payables and
accruals and amounts due to related parties. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate the effects of these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate on bank balances. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk related primarily to its fixed deposits
held at banks with original maturity over three months. The
Directors consider the Group’s exposure of fair value interest
rate risk on fixed deposits is not significant as the interest
bearing fixed deposits are within short maturity period.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure of the cash
flow interest rate risk on its bank balances is insignificant.
Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities (Notes 21 and 25). The
management has appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective listed equity securities had been
10% (2013: 10%) higher:

e the post-tax loss for the year would decrease by
approximately HK$2,260,000 (2013: HK$3,220,000)
as a result of the change in fair value of listed security
investments; and

e the investment revaluation reserve for the year would
increase by nil (2013: approximately HK$727,000) as
a result of change in fair value of the listed security
investments.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued)

If the prices of the respective listed equity securities had
been 10% (2013: 10%) lower, the post-tax loss for the year
would increase by approximately HK$2,260,000 (2013:
HK$3,947,000) as a result of the change in fair value of listed
securities investments.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has concentration of equity
price risk on its investments in listed equity securities as all of
its available-for-sale investment represents an investment in
one Hong Kong listed company which is principally engaged
in computer software, E-learning, securities investment,
money lending and insurance and MPF schemes brokerage
business. In addition, the group is exposed to concentration of
equity price risk on its held-for-trading investments as 100%
(2013: 99.35%) of the balance is concentrated on two (2013:
three) listed securities in Hong Kong. The Group's investments
in listed equity securities are exposed to equity price risk due
to the fluctuation of price of the security investments in the
market.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is the carrying amount
of those assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Except for the financial assets described as below,
the management considers the credit risk on the remaining
financial assets minimal.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits held
at banks with original maturity over three months and bank
balances is minimal as such amounts are placed with banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies or good reputation.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings or
good reputation, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and
reserve borrowing facilities which are deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has available short
and medium term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$12,000,000 (2013: HK$18,000,000).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay and includes both interest and
principal cash flows for non-derivative financial liabilities.

Moreover, the following tables detail the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross
outflows on those derivatives instruments that require gross
settlement. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative
financial instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of
the cash flows of these derivatives.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from market interest rates
prevailing at the end of reporting period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

6.

&MIA(#)
MERBREREREREE (£)

ERERE (&)
BRERREXSEETAAEBRINRITORN
PEeNEPEERRIN AREL B ERMEMD
BEETEERR-

Vi g A

REERBDEZRRE AEEEERGRFES
ERESEDALFBEIREENEEERR
FERR K - AR AN SR B 2 8 NORUE IR £
ERBNTE-

R201456 A30H » A& E Z A& 2 R HI Ko
H YR 775 B %8 /E 912,000,000/ 7T (20134
18,000,000 7T ) °

TRENAEENETESRABEHR TAOEH
B -JIRDIRBEAREREERNKE RS
RETESRAENAMARSREMRE £
EETESRAENMNERASRERE -

BEAN TREAHAKEREITES B T AMED
MEEDHT - FIRTIRIBARERBEENITET
AENARMBEERS RO MAER -BAKETES
BT EFTERRBNME D T TIIRIR A KO HABR O E A
RS AAEREERSANIRIIZEEZEIT
ATARSRERBAOER-

TERBHERAS BT A SRBRIH
MR BREN AFRLEDEREHRY
BPITPIBFIRIGHE -
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

6. &#MTIA (&)

MERREREREREE (£)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) AEELmEE (&)
More than
1 year
Weighted On demand but not Total
average or within more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
mEFY BRERE 1€ EE FURAS
flE 1R FBBs5FE mEME IREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2014 ®20145%6A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilities  FF#T4 2@ E B
Other payables and accruals Hi B FIE R ERE R N/A TEF 4728 - 4728 4728
Amounts due to related parties  FEfH#AE A L FIE N/A i F 232 - 232 232
4,960 - 4,960 4,960
Derivatives - gross settlement PTETR-IEEREE
Vendor Put Option (as defined B 7R H 04 (F& EH1i#31)
in Note 31) (note ii) (Bi#tii) N/A i A - 4,826 4,826 -
As at 30 June 2013 #2013%6A30H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ F#T4 2B E B
Other payables and accruals Hib e FIBREER N/A 738 £ 4,19 - 4,194 4,194
Amounts due to related parties  JE{BAE A L FIB N/A T E F 559 - 559 559
4753 - 4,753 4,753
Derivatives - gross settlement ITETRA-IEEREE
Contingent consideration arising ~ ¥##$AHE4H HFHARE
from business combination (Hreti)
(note i) N/A A 2,000 - 2,000 -
Vendor Put Option (as defined in & 7 A5k 834 (F& £ 11:#31)
Note 31) (note i) (H1tii) N/A T EA - 17,160 17,160 -
2,000 17,160 19,160 -




6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Notes:

0]

(i)

The amount included above for contingent consideration arising
from business combination is the maximum amount the Group
could be required to pay under the Acquisition Agreement, if
the conditions set out in the Acquisition Agreement have been
fulfilled (see Note 31). Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the management considers that it is unlikely
that any amount will be payable as contingent consideration
as the specified level of the net profit after tax (“NPAT") for the
financial years ended 31 August 2012 and 2013 has not been
achieved.

The Vendor Put Option refers to a put option held by the non-
controlling shareholders of Able Investment Development
Limited (“Able Investment”) arising from business combination
and the amount disclosed above is the maximum amount
the Group could be required to pay under the Acquisition
Agreement, if the conditions specified in the Acquisition
Agreement have been fulfilled (see Note 31). Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the management
considers that it is unlikely that any amount will be payable
under the Vendor Put Option.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group

determines fair values of various financial assets and financial

liabilities.
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6. &MIA (&)
MERBREBEAERBRK (&)

REELREE (&)
Biat

() LAREBEHEENIARERENSHEAL
SE A ERIRBWE R SRR - R
B EIR AT EETT (RMES1) - RIER
EHRPITAS B AR E B A 220124 22013
FOASIALMRFE 2 RBILAN ([FRBIEL
MDWREKRF BEEERR/TATREERNE
BB ERRARE -

(i) BEAREHBENRREZRAR2AF ([FR
WE]) I FHERBRRASE B EXB A HAELED
RGHE MELAMRESERAREARER
REBWRBHEINOESEE HRBBERR
G /ABERTT (RMEE3L) < BIRHmE BARMMIE
O ERERATAAREEMNESEBREES
RhHAE T A AT -

SMIAZATEIE
WA AL AETEToREARER
BEBNATEREEH

K>
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &MIA (&)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SMITAZATFEIE (£)
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that IR MR EZ L TFEIBENERELHEE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis REBRHLTFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities AEETHSHEERSHMAEBERSREBRIZ
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. NEEFE TRAFBERHBUMNEEZES
The following table gives information about how the fair values BEERCRMABEsAFE(LERABMERS
of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined ERBANEIER) ©

(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2014 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
#20145E6 83008 LFE BEFER AAEREARNER
eMEE EMAR OLOFE A EX@ABE NEERFE
Held-for-trading Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A
non-derivative in Hong Kong — an active market
financial assets approximately
HK$8,420,000
(Note 25)
BIEEBEHITE BELMRABS — F— TERTISFmE AE N iE A
TREE #78,420,0007% 7T
(K7a£25)
Listed Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A
available-for-sale in Hong Kong — an active market
investment approximately
HK$15,565,000
(Note 21)
IHAHIEERE BB LETRAE S — R EBRTISFTRE AR 38 A

#915,565,0007% 7T
(Hti21)



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

e MBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E
6. &#MIA (&)

EMITAZAFEHE (&)

REERRBEZL FEIBEHFIEALHEE
REGHLTFHE (&)

Valuation Relationship of

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2014 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
201456 A30HEY "FEE GERER AAER R A S i
SHMHEE SMAR LFHE R B EX@mASE DFEERE
Derivative financial Purchaser call option on Level 3 Binomial option The higher the
instruments issued share capital pricing model volatility, the higher
of Able Investment — the fair value
Insignificant (Note 31) Key unobservable
input is: volatility of
28% over the option
life by making
reference to volatility
of the similar
companies in
education business
PTEE®MIA MREEBBITREAZ B A BT EER IR RS
B RERE-TEX NHERS
(K#7#31) FENAHERE AR
B g2ERUHBE
EBREZKE - H
RERNANZ KB
28%
Derivative financial Vendor Put Option on Level 3 Binomial option The higher the
instruments equity investment in pricing model volatility, the higher
Able Investment — the fair value
Insignificant (Note 31) Key unobservable
input is: volatility of
28% over the option
life by making
reference to volatility
of the similar
companies in
education business
THEemITA MERKRERAREZ E=M —IENREERK g
B R -TEX N ERS

(B1a£31)

TETAERBAK
& K2ERUHE
EH AR ZKNE - B
BFRA KRS
28%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 (B ) R E =B AR A &

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and liabilities that

6. &#MTIA (&)

EMIAZAFEHE (&)

BRI EZELTFHENENTRAEHETE

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) REBHLFE (Z)
Valuation Relationship of
Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2014 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
#2014 6A30H® KFEE BEFER ARG A SRR
SHHEE SWAR LFE BB EX@ABE NFEERE
Derivative financial Purchaser put option Level 3 Binomial option The higher the
instruments on equity investment pricing model volatility, the higher
in Able Investment the fair value
— approximately Key unobservable
HK$1,915,000 input is: volatility of
(Note 31) 28% over the option
life by making
reference to volatility
of the similar
companies in
education business
PTES®MIA MREEREAREZ B A BT EE R8RS
B Rh B — NTHERS
#91,915,0007% 7T FENAEERE AR
(K73£31) B g2ERUHE

E YNGR

RERAZBZIER
28%
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6. @MIA (&)
SEMIAZATFEIE (&2)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and liabilities that

REERRBEZL FEIBEHFIEALHEE
REGHLTFHE (&)

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Valuation

Relationship of

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2014 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
#2014 6HA30H® KEE GERER AR HERGASENR
eMEE EMAR OLFE BB EX@ABE NFEERE
Derivative financial Purchaser put option Level 3 Discounted cash flow The higher the
instruments on equity investment analysis projected NPAT,
in Link Resources the lower the fair
(Asia) Limited Key unobservable value; the higher
(“Link Resources”) inputs are: the discount rate,
— approximately projected the lower the fair
HK$284,000 (Note 31) consolidated NPAT value; the higher
of Link Resources the probability
and its subsidiary assignment
ranging from for favourable
approximately scenarios, the lower
HK$952,000 to the fair value and
HK$4,743,000 vice versa
for the financial
years ending 31
December 2014,
2015 and 2016;
discount rate
ranging from 3.44%
to 3.49%; and
scenario probability
distribution ranging
from 20% to 60%
TEemIE R AT &R (SR F= FRBEREDN il ET BRI 12 4B A X
BRAA ([BEA =R ETE T
BERBREAREZ FERAHRZE REDR N THERD
B 7RG B ABIE - BRI & K BRIERZ A8
—#9284,0007% 7T FEWBRREHZE Mok - AFE
(K#7#31) 20144 - 20155 & K R Z TRA
2016 12A31H Ik
TR E 2 fhEtiR

BBRBELEFN T
#9952,000/% 7T &
4,743,000/ 7T, * 37
WENT3.44% 2
3.49% : KI5 Al gE
5 IEN TF20%E
60%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 (B ) R E =B AR A &

6. &MIA (&)
EMIAZAFEHE (&£)

REERRBEZL FEINBEHZI XA LHEE
RE@ALTFHE (&)

Valuation Relationship of

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2014 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
201456 A30HEY NFEE GERER AR A S i
SHHEE SWAR LFE BB EX@ASE DFEERE
Contingent Contingent consideration Level 3 Discounted cash flow The higher the
consideration receivable for analysis projected NPAT,

HARME

equity investment
in Seasoned
Leader Limited

(“Seasoned Leader”)

— HK$1,497,000
(Note 31)

A4 B

Seasoned Leader

Limited ([ Seasoned

Leader | ) B ARI& &
ZHARE

— 1,497,000/ JT
(#15#31)

the lower the fair
value; the higher
the discount rate,
the lower the fair
value; the higher
the probability
assignment

for favourable
scenarios, the lower
the fair value and
vice versa

Key unobservable
inputs are:
projected average
of combined NPAT
of Seasoned Leader
and its subsidiaries
for each of the two
years ending 31
December 2014
and 2015 ranging
from approximately
HK$11,175,000 to
HK$18,625,000;
discount rate
of 3.46%; and
scenario probability
distribution ranging
from 12.5% to 50%

E=H FHRRERENN b ET R 1% 4 A X
[SRVARSI=- iy

FETAEHRE A WRAS AP ER
214 : Seasoned K BHIES 28
Leader X E I B A HEoRRRE  AFE
AEHE2014F K K =2 IR
20154 12H31H
IEREFE 2 (E5T

RAEBRBEHAFN
F#911,175,000%
TTZE18,625,000/%
TC PTIR E3.46%
T 1B AT RE 1 o
NF12.5%E50%



6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
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Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

e MBERERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E
6. &#MIA (&)

EMITAZAFEHE (&)

REERRBEZL FEIBEHFIEALHEE

REGHLTFHE (&)

Valuation

Relationship of

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value technique(s) and unobservable input(s)
financial liabilities 30 June 2014 hierarchy significant input(s) to fair value
201456 A30HEY "FEE GERER AAER R A S i
SHMHEE SMAR LFHE R B EX@mASE DFEERE
Contingent Contingent consideration Level 3 Discounted cash flow The higher the
consideration receivable for analysis projected NPAT,
equity investment the lower the fair
in Link Resources Key unobservable value; the higher
— approximately input are: the discount rate,
HK$358,000 (Note 31) projected aggregate the lower the fair
consolidated value; the higher
NPAT of Link the probability
Resources and its assignment
subsidiary for the for favourable
two years ending scenarios, the lower
31 December the fair value and
2014 ranging from vice versa
approximately
HK$4,737,000 to
HK$7,086,000;
discount rate
of 3.12%; and
scenario probability
distribution ranging
from 20% to 60%
HAKE BRSO N AR N E=R TR\ REDN il 5T BR 15 12 A A R
REZSHARE = AT ETE T
—#9358,000/% 7T FERAHEH AR WEAS N THER
(H#7#31) B BRI AR LA K BAERZ AR
Bt A R & 22014 MokEE  AFE
F12A31H LA K R2Z TR
FE 2 b4

EBRBBELEFN T
#)4,737 00078 7T &
7,086,000/ 7 * 47
WK3.12% : 215
SR BEME D TR T T
20%ZE60%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &MTIA(E&)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMITAZAFEME (£2)

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial HHREEREBEZ L TFEIBEZEEELH

liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring BERLHEGBS L FE

basis

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial EERAEBECEBHEHKRARGAWBEHREREENS

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in BEERCHEBENFEREREERFEES-

the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair

values.

Fair value hierarchy KFERE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—#R ot BE=HR &

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

As at 30 June 2014 "201456A30H

Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 15,565 = = 15,565

Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 8,420 = = 8,420

Derivative financial instruments T4 €@ I A = = 2,199 2,199

Contingent consideration HARE - = 1,855 1,855
23,985 - 4,054 28,039

As at 30 June 2013 72013F6 A30H

Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 23,547 - - 23,547

Held-for-trading investments BEEELRE 19,066 - - 19,066

Derivative financial instruments ~ $74 &8 T E - - 2,582 2,582
42613 - 2,582 45195

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.

HAN 58 — AR B 3 — AR 2 0 AT S8 RS o



FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E
6. &#MIA (&)

EMIAZAFEHE (&)

BRI FEHBHHENT -

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TFET FET

At the beginning of year NG 2,582 4,238

Change in fair value recognised REZER2AFEEDY

in profit or loss (included in (BT AEMUA - W R EE)

other income, gains and losses) (620) (1,656)

Acquisition of associates (Note 19) W kg & R A (HF£19) 2,092 -

At the end of year NS 4,054 2,582

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating and reporting segments have been
identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies conform
to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the executive
Directors, being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”)
of the Group, in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performances.

Following the acquisition of a subsidiary with a valid money
lenders licence in the current year, the Group's operations
have been organised based on four operating divisions as
described below. Similarly, the information reported to the
CODM is also prepared on such basis. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group.

WA RSEBEH

AEENEERREN B RRIETEEEMB
BEENNSTHRERONBEEREEET
AR BRmEmIERARENE R EERE
E([EREEERARENATESTEHEMMN
A0 E D B ER R ERERR -

R YRR — 458 B R E AR RA KB 2
A& - AR B H) RS B AR T AT ro /{48 2
DET LA - R MERKERRERS
MEMTEREBEZELRFEH - FEERAKEA R
TR W B BREERREMAROL

o
o D

I
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
are as follows:

U Provision of — secondary tutoring services,
private secondary day school education,
educational primary tutoring services, skill
services courses and test preparation

courses, franchising income,
English language training and test
preparation courses, technical
consultation, management and
software licensing services,
overseas studies consultation
services and the international

foundation year (the “IFY”) courses

o Investments in - trading of securities
securities

° Property —  investments of properties for rental
investments income and capital appreciation

° Money lending -  providing loans as money lender

BARSBEH (&)

ABME AKEORREREED LT :

o RHAA — HEMEBERSE LERAR
A RENEHERYG R
AR# BRiE L EERE R

BB EBIE I M R
ARRIE  BTRE R B
KB R AL AR ~ S Tt
SR ARGIASGINKE
Sl ([BINREERE])

i

s REEFR - EHEEEF

o MEKRE - REDEURDEEA
REXRIEE

s fBE - EREFRARHEER
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSBEH (&)
(Continued)
(@) Segment revenues and results

(a) FEBUAREIR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REEIREERAMED D BEAORARE

results by operating and reportable segments: BEAT
Year ended 30 June 2014 #iE2014F6A30HLLFE
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending  Consolidated
RELA
HERS REES MERE EE HEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FETT FET FET
Segment revenue D EUA 234,357 = 1,448 > 235,805
Segment results DEELE 3,693 (237) 2,481 (10) 5,927
Change in fair value of BEBERAFEFA
unlisted convertible notes BEamNeREER
designated as financial FEmAl R
assets at fair value SBRATEED
through profit or loss 628
Change in fair value of He@mEEy
other financial assets NEEEZH (620)
Loss on disposal of HEEMAfEE
listed available-for-sale REZEE
investment (24,207)
Impairment loss EHAEEERE
on listed available-for-sale WEEE
investment (28,273)
Impairment loss on interests ~ PABEE A AR 2
in an associate WEBE (2,014)
Finance costs BisE R (1,561)
Share of results of joint e ARNER
ventures 830
Share of results of associates JE{R B = A &) 2 4E 1,299
Unallocated corporate KHBARBA
income 4,699
Unallocated corporate RAOBARFAY
expenses (23,020)
Loss before tax B 75 A B 1B (66,312)
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

7. WARSEHEH (&)

(@) FWBMARER (&)

Year ended 30 June 2013 HE2013F6A30H I FE
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property
services in securities investments Consolidated
REALA
HE R BEES MERE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue D EUA 247,611 - 737 248,348
Segment results DEELE (19,106) (5,594) 6,507 (18,193)

Change in fair value of unlisted BEREAFERA

convertible notes designated ERMEeREER
as financial assets at fair value JE LA
through profit or loss ERNTEE
Change in fair value of other HMemEEATES
financial assets
Impairment loss on listed FAEEERE
available-for-sale investment EEE
Share of results of joint ventures ~ FEIE& &R RIH %4
Unallocated corporate income RHBARBA

Unallocated corporate expenses K2 Bt /A A1F 52

Loss before tax BRI AT

The CODM assesses segment results using a measure of
operating profit whereby certain items are not included in
arriving at the segment results of the operating segments
(i.e. change in fair value of unlisted convertible notes
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and other financial assets, loss on disposal of
listed available-for-sale investment, impairment loss
on listed available-for-sale investment and interests in
an associate, finance costs, share of results of joint
ventures, share of results of associates, unallocated
corporate income and unallocated corporate expenses).

5144
(1,656)
(1,628)
(3,394)

892
(5,841)

(24,676)

BREERRENRL RN ERFED
MEME EPETHELAREGRREEIR
BRI D BEEAENR  BIHEE /iR A TFER
ABSENEREEMNIF LM A RERERE
fEMEENNFEZS)  HE Lm A
EREMEE - EHAHEERERNE S
NEEGREER MEER EEEE
NEFE BEBERREE KOERA
WARARDBEARFX -



7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

BWARSHEH (

(b) BRERRAR

43 )
B /

AEBREERABREDHFOENEERE

liabilities by operating and reportable segments. BT :
As at 30 June 2014 ®2014%6A30H
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Consolidated
RELA
HERE BREES MERE HE =Ee
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT F#ET FEIT F#EIT FET
Assets ®E
Segment assets DEEE 45,434 8,420 27,878 951 82,683
Unallocated assets ANMEE
Fixed deposits held at REIHFA A
banks with original = @A MR
maturity over three TEHIF R
months 17,430
Bank balances and cash R{TEB LA S 38,233
Interests in associates NN Op 53,691
Interests in joint ventures REERAIRER 10,936
Other financial assets HibemEE 4,054
Current tax assets BIEARTHE & 384
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investment 15,565
Other corporate assets Hib AR &E 10,417
233,393
Liabilities aff
Segment liabilities DEEE 19,186 - 116 - 19,302
Unallocated liabilities AOWMBE
Current tax liabilities EHTRIEE & 185
Deferred tax liabilities EEREBAR 1,022
Other corporate liabilities HARBE 691

21,200
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

7. WARSEHEH (&)

(b) PMRERAR (&)

As at 30 June 2013 720136 A30H
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property
services in securities investments Consolidated
REFLA
HE R RERS MERE o)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets ®E
Segment assets DEEE 52,014 19,782 60,067 131,863
Unallocated assets RANLEE
Fixed deposits held at banks REIERA A
with original maturity over =@ A MR
three months TEEF 11,250
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB RS 28,917
Interests in joint ventures RNEERAIRER 10,856
Other financial assets HieméEE 2,582
Available-for-sale investment AEEERE 23,547
Assets classified as held for sale  DIEAF{EHENEE 18,430
Other corporate assets HAREE 659
228,104
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities HHERE 25,823 116 464 26,403
Unallocated liabilities ANEEBE
Current tax liabilities BN IEE & 2,272
Deferred tax liabilities BREVEEE 1,286
Other corporate liabilities HARIERE 57

30,018



7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to the operating segments
other than fixed deposits held at banks with original
maturity over three months, bank balances and
cash (other than those included in the money
lending segment), interests in associates and joint
ventures, other financial assets, current tax assets,
available-for-sale investment, assets classified as
held for sale and other corporate assets. Goodwill is
allocated to operating segment as described in Note
17; and

e all liabilities are allocated to the operating segments
other than current tax liabilities, deferred tax

Annual Report 2014 4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E
7. WARSDETBEE (&)

(b) BEERAR (£)
MEESFRRERD B2 ERERN B
Hy

s KRRIHBEEBHE=MEANRITENF
K ROTEREBES (FFABEDH
ERIN) REERRRAZERAINE
s HEMeMEE NMHEEE A
HIHERE DEAFEHENEER
HpRREEIN FIEEEARKEED
Mo -FBERLENE DI (K
AEL7RTAL) ¢ R

o REHIHEAGE ELHBERBENEM
RAEBEIN FIBERBEHRKED D

liabilities and other corporate liabilities. fid o
(c) Other segment information (c) HtamrBMEH
Year ended 30 June 2014 #HE20145%6A30HLLEE
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property Money
services  in securities  investments lending Consolidated
REHLA
BERE BEES MERERE EE e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Capital additions EAXRE 7,308 1,630 - 315 9,253
Depreciation and ER#H
amortisation 6,376 235 - 5 6,616
Provision for long service RERE €% E
payments 12 - - - 12
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued)

7. WARSEHEH (&)

(c) v BEHE ()

Year ended 30 June 2013 HZ=2013F6 A30H L F[E
Provision of
private
educational Investment Property
services in securities investments Consolidated
REFLA
HERH REES MERE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET
Capital additions BRARE 3,136 7,884 65,294 76,314
Depreciation and amortisation W R 8,235 291 - 8,526
Provision for long service RHRME S EE
payments 138 - - 138
Reversal of doubtful debts REHD (86) - - (86)

The Group's assets, revenue and results for the year
derived from activities located outside Hong Kong are
less than 10% of the Group’s total assets, revenue and
results for the year.

No individual customer accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue during both years.

AEERAFEREREBENINRBNEE
WARZBEIPRARERARNFENREE

WA K ZEERL0%

REEFER  BEER F P05 EE Rk

ABB10% °
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

Total revenue

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WARSDETBEE (&)
(Continued)
(d) Revenue from major services (d) ERBBBKA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by services is as AEEERBDEHRADTAT
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#T FET
Secondary tutoring services & E RS 189,501 203,566
Secondary day school education FHARRE - 4,082
Primary tutoring services, skill courses /NEEERE  BERER
and test preparation courses JE A AR AE 13,123 16,289
Franchising income FRRr s g I 3,048 2,944
English language training and test BB R EHRE
preparation courses 24,295 18,349
Technical consultation, management and ST 5% 54 ~ & I & 804 7F 7] IR
software licensing services 3,910 1,539
Overseas studies consultation services /89N E74 R 480 555
IFY courses TBINK B ST - 287
Rental income HaWA 1,448 737

ONE- 235,805 248,348
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Fe BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HMBEA -WREER

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FET
Change in fair value of other financial assets  Efth & gl & &= A FEE (620) (1,656)
Impairment loss on LT &IERREEE
— interests in an associate — B N B M (2,014) -
— other intangible assets —Hi\BEEE - (2,957)
Interest income on KBTI EIEHFEMA
— bank deposits —IRITIEK 212 892
— other loan and receivables — H B 5 % e W R IE 194 -
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEUTSERN R (F8)
— listed held-for-trading investments — FTTHIEEBEKRE 1,924 (22)
— property, plant and equipment —M% - WEREE (1,431) (2,014)
— assets classified as held for sale — P ERFBIEHEZEE 873 -
— subsidiaries —MERE] 1,923 -
Loss on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) W EEHKI B AR 2 &8 (#:i237) (59) -
Reversal of doubtful debts REREME - 86
Supporting services income SR RIEBA 629 1,707
Others H A 697 1,172
2,328 (2,792)
FINANCE COSTS 9. M¥BHEHA
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Interests on bank and other borrowings wholly 787 i F A& E(E B W ETT &
repayable within five years H B E 1,561 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

10. LOSS BEFORE TAX 10. BRI ATES IR

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

BRI AIEEC IR THIER

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FiET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) BEEHM (HFIL) 8,304 13,056
Other staff costs Efh 8 TAA 48,168 53,824
Other staff's retirement benefit scheme Hh B TH:RIRAEFIGH B K
contributions 1,794 2,034
Share-based payments MEME TN
to other staff AR BB 1,527 -
59,793 68,914
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MEEXZHEMEBE
(Note 11) (H1a£11) (2,431) (5,317)
Staff costs 8 TA 57,362 63,597
Auditors’ remuneration 2% £ A 357 630 1,350
Provision for long service payments REARIE & B 12 138
Gross rental income from REMERS
investment properties LU A 1,448 737
Less: direct operating expenses from AR EARNEERSKWARN
investment properties that generated WEMENEELERE
rental income during the year (176) (130)
1,272 607

Tutor contractor fee is calculated based on (i) certain
percentage of revenue derived from secondary tutoring
services and English language training and test preparation
courses; and (ii) fixed hourly rate on primary tutoring services,
skill courses and test preparation courses.

Operating lease payments represent the minimum lease
payments under operating leases paid or payable to lessors
which mainly are independent third parties.

D B TYIRE () A P B RS DAL 24 48
EH R ERRRUANETESL R i) 25
SR BRI RAEARIENES N BEE N E
HE-

REMENRERBEEEENLEA(ZER
BUF=77)ENHEMNNREREMNK-

139



140

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 (B ) R E =B AR A &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fe BB RMEE
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

1. EERFETRARNME R A6 &S HH

EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID Ax
INDIVIDUALS
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Directors’ fees Y0k 613 649
Other emoluments to Directors MESFSAHEMRE
— basic salaries and allowances —EAKFH e MER 3,223 5,141
— bonus — B4 75 1,899
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIKEFFT 8 5K 38 50
— share-based payments — AR 9 B ER AT R 1,924 -
5,873 7,739
Tutor contractor fee to Directors MESESAEMEARE 2,431 5,317
8,304 13,056

The bonus is determined with reference to the operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics during both years.

AR 2ERMEANLEERE ABARAER

A] L BT 5 SRR BUR T A E
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FREMBERERME
For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E
11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11. EERFETBRABNMER AR SFHFM
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID Ax (&)
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors and AEERNEENTETHAEXMNOMESFEN
chief executive are as follows: T:
Year ended 30 June 2014
HE201456A30A LEE
Mr. Lee
Mr. Chow Wai Lok,
Mr. Wong Kai Wah, Ms. Wu Mr. Ng Ignatious Mr. Kwok Mr. Ong Ms. Chan Mr. Lee
Yuk Tong Gary Mei Chu Norman ~ (‘Mr. Lee”)  Shun Tim Chi King Lai Yee Shu Fai Total
3t ]

IZREE  RBEEE ARGKE  RRMEE  ((FEE]) PABRE  ITHEE WERXL FHEEE @it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS0OO  HKS00O  HKS0OO  HKS0OO  HKS0OO  HKS0OO  HKS0OO  HKS00O
FET FET &7 FET FET FET FET FET TET TET

(note ) (note fi) (note fi) (note ) (note v) (note v} (note vi) (note vi)
(W) (W) (W) (W) (i) (Webi)  (etii)  (Witi)
Director's fee EEZiE) 20 93 - - - 48 40 7 120 613
Other emoluments Ebie
Basic salaries and allowances EAEL R - - 906 425 1,892 - = = = 3,203
Bonus Tt - - 75 - - - - - - 75
Tutor contractor fee EHERE - - - 1,612 819 - - - - 2431
Reirement benefit scheme contributions RIVEREEIRT - - 17 6 15 - - - - 38
Share-based payments PUOEE e - 398 564 398 564 - - - - 1,924
Total szt 240 491 1,562 2,441 3,290 4 40 72 120 8304
Year ended 30 June 2013
HE013F6R0RLLER
. Yiu
Mr. Chow Mr. Ng Wai Yee, Ms. Chan M. Yu
r. Wong Kai Wah, Ms. Wu Kam Lun, Cathering Mr. Ng Mr. Kwok Ms. Chan Mr. Lee Mei Bo, Cheeric, Mr. Choi
Yuk Tong Gary Mei Chu Bie  ("Ms. Yiu') Norman . Lee Shun Tim Lai Yee Shu Fai label James  Kin Cheong Total
IIFRE  BRERE  BEERT RERRE REMAE FRE JERRE  WERAT  EBEL RRERT  ANARE EREAE 5
[ HK$000 HK$000 HIS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 { [ { HK$000 HIS000
& AT 7T AT AT & : FAT AT
(note i} (note i) (notev) (note vii)
(ki) (W) (i) (sti)
Director’s fee. ESe 120 209 68 - - - - o4 3 4 4 8 2 649
Other emoluments Ape
Basic salaries and allowances EREEREY - - - 1851 748 1151 191 - - - - - - 5141
Bonus iz - - - 549 450 40 450 - - - - - - 189
Tutor contractor fee JESON 4 - - - 1640 140 1,566 1971 - - - - - - 5317
Retiement beneitscheme conrbutions & RHIA 8431 - - - 1 9 15 15 - - - - - - 50
Total Eh ] 120 219 68 4051 1347 318 3827 o4 3 4 4 8 2 13056
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Wong Yuk Tong was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 August 2012 and re-designated as
an executive Director and Chairman of the Board on 8 March
2013.

Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 August 2012 and retired from the position on 19
November 2013.

Ms. Wu Mei Chu was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 December 2012 and re-designated as
an executive Director on 18 June 2013.

Mr. Ng Norman retired as an executive Director on 19
November 2013.

Mr. Kwok Shun Tim was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 August 2012 and resigned from the
position on 28 February 2014.

Mr. Ong Chi King was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 February 2014.

Ms. Chan Lai Yee and Mr. Lee Shu Fai were appointed as
independent non-executive Directors on 8 March 2013 and 18
June 2013, respectively.

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric, Ms. Yiu, Ms. Chan Mei Bo, Mabel, Mr. Yu
Cheeric, James, and Mr. Choi Kin Cheong resigned as executive
Directors/independent non-executive Directors during the year
ended 30 June 2013.

Details of tutor contractor fee of the five highest paid

individuals (excluding Directors) during the year are as

follows:

1. EERFETRARNME R A6 &S HH
A (&)

sz

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

FEEEETIN2012F8A10B EZ T A B IF
HMITEEWN201343A8AERT ANTESH
BEEXF-

AR ETIN2012F8 A3R R ERMITES
2013511 A19H R »

AR T T0R 20126 12 A21 B E R R RE L I
HITEEWN2013F6 A 18R EFTRMITESE -

REREER2013FIIAIORRERITES -

SR S ER2012F8 A 108 E LT A B I
1TEERN2014F2 A28 H BH E -

T FAE ER2014F2 A28 H E R BB IFH
TEE-

BRER T LE/ELED BIR2013F388A K
20136 18R EL I BB IERITEE -

R[Rivfmed hat BREELLT REAKLER
EREESREDNEE201356A30H L E N EF
ERTES BUFRTES-

RERN EuGRSHFMAL (TEEESE) A
EBEFBENT:

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Tutor contractor fee ER AR E 44,291 46,246




11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
EMOLUMENTS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Tutor contractor fee was collected by individuals through their
service companies during the year. Their tutor contractor fees
were within the following bands:

Annual Report 2014 4F &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

1. EERFETRARNME&R A G &SHH
A (&)

BEIABERENALTRNFRBBERE AR
YeER - R ) BRI AR BN F T HIAER -

2014 2013

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A& AZ

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7t £2,500,000/% 7T -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001,% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7t £3,500,0007% 7T - 2
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,500,001/ 7t £8,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 7t 210,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 7T £13,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$15,000,001 to HK$15,500,000 15,000,001 7t 215,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 16,000,001 7t 216,500,000 7T - 1
Tutor contractor fee BHABE 5 5
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors or the AEBVEMEEKANE B A £ 32 A5 B

five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During
the year ended 30 June 2014, none of the Directors (2013:

none) waived their emoluments on a voluntary basis.

EAERW B INA SR INA K & B B 1 B 2 3k 1
B E - NELE2014F6 A30R IEFE - &
(013 B)EZEHEMEEME -

143



144

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 (B ) R E =B AR A &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fe BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRRMAX
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Current tax: BVHAR I8 -

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEEFER 7 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS 39 17
46 17

Overprovision in prior years: BT FE BB
Hong Kong Profits Tax BABFIEH (25) (23)
Deferred tax (Note 30) RIERIAE (K77230) 174 1,996
Total income tax recognised in profit or loss ~ RIBZZHPER Z TS T 25 195 1,990

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax is based
on the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes
at the rate of taxation applicable to each year. Subsidiaries
established in the PRC were subject to Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for both years.

BB TS TR B M 8 F 2 00 b 5T R B0 A1
16.5%H i K5+ H o

TECEMSRBEFERERTENANS 24
AERTRA RS EFEEAREAE NP EK
SZEV B A B O PR (B R R R IR 25 % BN I E 1S
e



12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

12. FRBWEAX (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to loss before AEEMHRBETHEGEERMEMEEWER
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FIRHIBR AT BB RN T -
comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FET
Loss before tax B A E 18 (66,312) (24,676)
Tax credit at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of REBNEHHE1I6.5%EH
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) TIAH % (20134 : 16.5% ) (10,941) (4,072)
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBRANH B E
for tax purpose (1,486) (1,966)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAMHE T R E
for tax purpose 10,514 1,094
Tax effect of share of results of associates JE(REEE RRI BTG E (214) -
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures JE{G & & A T & W TG 5 £ (137) 560
(Utilisation) tax effect of deductible R TR ] HRL L I“_fL%%EEI'\]
temporary differences not recognised (BA) BT E (791) 2,145
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR IAEREBN G £ 3,710 4,244
Utilisation of tax losses previously BERERNTIAEIENE A
not recognised (482) -
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEBERH (25) (23)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries R B E R E R RB X
operating in the PRC TR FE 1 (1)
Others HAb 46 9
Income tax expense for the year FEMEBHAX 195 1,990
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13.

14.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company for both years is based
on the following data:

13.

BEREBR

ARBVEE AR MIEFERIESHRES R
BIORBEATEIRAE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FET
Loss for the purpose of basic and RERERREESE
diluted loss per share (loss for the year mEMEE (RRRHEE A
attributable to owners of the Company) IR FEEE) (66,517) (25,239)
Number of Number of
shares shares
& A [SE 4=
Weighted average number of RERERLEEEIR
ordinary shares for the purpose of & < & mAx hnie F 198
basic and diluted loss per share 746,042,740 500,120,548

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
30 June 2014 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those
options are higher than the average market prices of the
Company'’s shares during the year.

The denominator used is the same as those detailed above
for the computation of both basic and diluted loss per share
for the year ended 30 June 2013 as there were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended 30 June
2013.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).

14,

HEHZE2014566 300 FFEEN R EEEE
B R BREBITEARTNARITENERE BA
REANZEERENTEESRAQRRN /T
HmE-

MR E £2013F6 A30R IEFZ B8 = AR EITH
BEEBER BAERZY B8R EXAFRAE
B E2013F6A30H L FEBREA R EFEE
FrAE R

R
EFS NEENEHE2014F6A30H IEFE R
RERMEE (20134 - &) -



15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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For the year ended 30 June 2014 #ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E
15. ME -BERKH

Leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehold and Office Computer Motor
building  improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
BELHR
L HERE BRHRRE BOZRG BHRE RE it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FiET FET FET
COST % 3
At 1 July 2012 201247 A18 - 31,289 8,187 10,485 3575 241 53,777
Additions NE 7,386 1,764 H8 676 1,136 - 11,020
Reclassified to assets classified B P EEHBAHEHEN
as held for sale (Note 27) BE(WiE27) (7.386) - - - - - (7.386)
Disposals/write off HE /s - (4,436) (2,679) (1,173) (443) - (8731)
At 30 June 2013 1201346 A308 - 28,617 5,566 9,988 4,268 241 48680
Additions AE - 5,734 241 1,243 1,404 316 8938
Disposals/write off HE /s - (7,286) (251) (924) (361) (240) (9,062)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-EHEL
(Note 37) (W37 - - - - - 255 255
At 30 June 2014 12014464308 - 27,065 5,556 10,307 5,311 b72 48811
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 July 2012 20124 7A18 - 18,856 5,876 6,577 2,527 197 34033
Depreciation expense FERY 270 5112 837 1,454 561 44 8328
Eliminated on reclassification ENNBENBAREREN
to assets classified BERH (HiH27)
as held for sale (Note 27) (270) - - - - - (270)
Eliminated on disposalshwrite off & /#5815 84 - (2.962) (2,285) (947) (399) - (6,593)
At 30 June 2013 12013464308 - 21,006 4478 7,084 2,689 241 35,498
Depreciation expense FERY - 3,801 607 1,206 667 47 6,418
Eliminated on disposalswrite off & /HisEE 45 34 - (6,971) (219) (698) (321) (240) (7,449)
At 30 June 2014 R2014%6A308 - 18,926 4,866 759 3,035 18 34,467
CARRYING AMOUNTS BEE
At 30 June 2014 12014964308 - 8,139 690 2,715 2,276 h24 14,344
At 30 June 2013 12013F6 A30A - 7,611 1,088 2,904 1,579 - 13,182
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BEREE (&
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant ME BEREEORAEBAESRZITE H
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the (et FERF UM BENTERD T :

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the shorter of the term of HE+TRET FH A FHI sk 254F

and building the lease, or 25 years (ABAE & B E)
Leasehold improvements 20% HEXE 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% R REE 20%
Office equipment 20% /NS 20%
Computer equipment 20% e R 20%
Motor vehicles 20% T 20%
The leasehold land and building is situated in Hong Kong HET M EEFMNRES  BRIEBEPEHBELOES-

under medium-term lease.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. ¥ EMXE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FET
At fair value SFEHE
Balance at beginning of year FHHE#R 60,000 -
Additions NE = 65,294
Change in fair value recognised RIBR BRI R EEE
in profit or loss 1,500 6,020
Reclassification to assets classified as EHOBEENBERIFEHE
held for sale (Note 27) MEE (Wit27) - (11,314)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEWB AR (Ki#38) (34,000) -
Balance at end of year FIREE TR 27,500 60,000
The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to AEBRBLEEHERBURDRE S IEE AL
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured BENHNERRDEAATERXGFEALDE
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted RABRTIEREYZ -

for as investment properties.



16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties of HK$27,500,000 (2013:
HK$26,000,000) has been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

All of the investment properties are situated in Hong Kong
under medium-term lease.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 30
June 2014 and 30 June 2013 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by
RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group. RHL is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The fair value was determined based on the market approach
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating the
fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2014 are as
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16.

wEME (&)

7K 82 E #927,500,00078 TT B 42 & ) % (20134 -
26,000,000 7T) BAEH I ARE T AEEH
RITRAEVERER -

FrEREMEURER  TRIEFHEOF
5o

FRERBEMEHLOTFEME

M2014F6 A30H K£2013F6 A30H @ AL B K
EMENRFEDNERERAEENEBENE L
AERGEMXFITHEBRBBRAR ([KF
THRZBETHEEMER - KFTTEEER

BEgEE-

AFENHSEBUNER HBOTSB BN T
BEEE - L —FEAER 2 R RED-
R RS NE DT ER RENELRBR
BERRTEAAR -

AREER2014F6 A30R 2R EMEFHIBRAF
BERBOERETINT :

follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BF—1 ot B=W HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Commercial property units located 7 FAE B 2 8 A MEEN
in Hong Kong - 27,500 - 27,500
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17. GOODWILL 17. @&
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
COST BE
Balance at beginning of year NG = -
Additional amounts recognised from WEE—ENB A RIS
acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) (H15#37) 60 -
Balance at end of year RERER 60 -
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at 30 June ReHA30H 2z &8k 60 -

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash-generating unit (“CGU”) during
the year ended 30 June 2014.

Money lending

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covering
a five-year period, and a discount rate of 29.17% per annum.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The Directors were of the opinion that based on value in use
calculation, there was no impairment of goodwill during the
year ended 30 June 2014. The Directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which
the recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount of the unit to exceed its recoverable amount.

B Z2014F6A30R LLF & - R BB T = -
HEOHRETIRSELEMN ((REELE
fi)) e

B8
ReELEUzAIREeBREREEE A
MABENTFHPREZ PHRREEFRSR
EURMBRELSEF2.17%tH - EABENE
MERBRRAEBERANMENIRE BERA
REEXHORER ZEBRRAEEERBENGE
MEBMEEEHMSRROPEEE -

BERR BE2014F6 A30H IEFE - WRIR(E
REEFELIZBERE-EFHE TE2RKR
(AIRE SRR BEE) ZEAAE AT LS
BAEEHEN 2 REAEBHEATKREEE-



18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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18. HfttfEfiL R E

Franchise
Trademark rights Total
iR EFiE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET
COST 5% 3
At 1 July 2012, M2012F7H18
30 June 2013 and 20136 A308 &
30 June 2014 2014F6 A30H 2,957 1,979 4,936
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION &8 R iR {E
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 July 2012 201296 7H1H - 297 297
Amortisation expense BIHER - 198 198
Impairment loss recognised RiERPBRZREESE
in profit or loss 2,957 - 2,957
At 30 June 2013 R2013F6 A30H 2,957 495 3,452
Amortisation expense HBiHE A - 198 198
At 30 June 2014 720146 A30H 2,957 693 3,650
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 30 June 2014 R2014F6 A30H - 1,286 1,286
At 30 June 2013 72013F6 H30H - 1,484 1,484
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group’s trademark protects the design and specification
of “BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” logo, and
was assessed to have an indefinite useful life. On the date
of acquisition (i.e. 31 December 2010), the fair value of this
trademark is assessed using an income approach under
the relief from royalty method by a firm of independent
professional valuers, Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”).

Franchise rights represent the right to use the name
“BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE LIMITED” under
contractual franchise agreements in the business of primary
tutoring services. The amortisation period of franchise rights is
10 years.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the trademark set out
above has been allocated to one CGU, being the operation
of primary tutoring services of Bachelor Education Centre
Limited (“Bachelor Education”), a business unit of the Group
included in the provision of private educational services
segment. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. To calculate
this, cash flow projection is based on five-year period financial
budgets approved by the management using a discount
rate of 17.33% and the estimated growth rate of 9% to
7%. The cash flow projection beyond the five-year period
is extrapolated using a zero growth rate. During the year
ended 30 June 2013, an impairment of HK$2,957,000 was
recognised for the trademark as the carrying amount of the
CGU exceeded the recoverable amount.

18. Hth ML RE (&)

NEEKEZ(R#E [BACHELOR EDUCATION
CENTRE LIMITED J {25589 5T R AR1E - WL AT E
B E MR A0S AU B HR (BD2010%F
12A318)  kEENATFEDRBEIEXME
NABEHTEETHREM AR AR ([EEA])
HARMNE SR ENRAEELR T

HHEERBE N EHERBEEBNE DOER
3% £ A [BACHELOR EDUCATION CENTRE
LIMITED | A& BRI o FERFRERVEESHER B 1045 -

BREARAME EXABEEAEE EEE— @
IR & & 4 B {7 > BlBachelor Education Centre
Limited ([Bachelor Education | » ZN 5[] ) — {2
BEA S ARBILABERS S M) BN 28
ERREER - WA ELBMMATIKE ST
FTREEEE RUEFEMS REREEAD
ERBEREEMEZ AFHNBEEFRAMIAR
17.33% A RMEEHER R AB-9% B 7% H - AEEH
BrBRenEBANERTEERETHEE R
HZE2013F6A30R EFEAN ARZRSEL
B MAREEBRREFIE S5 oI
R {E2,957,00078 TT °



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
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19. RBELTIZHEG

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Cost of unlisted investments JELEMIRE KA 54,408 -
Share of post-acquisition profits and FEE W ZR T &

other comprehensive expense Ht2mx 1,297 -

Accumulated impairment loss recognised EERAFIREEE (2,014) -

Balance at end of year REFE R &R 53,691 -

At 30 June 2014, the Group had interests in the following

associates:

Proportion of

MR2014F6A30H  REBER A THBERAREAR

nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation and capital held Proportion of
Name of associate operation by the Group voting power held  Principal activity
HEMBIR FRERFERT
BELTEE EEME BAmEELG RRELH EERH
Seasoned Leader (note i) British Virgin Islands 47% 47% Investment holding
(“BVI")
Seasoned Leader (/#5#1) EERAHES 47% 471%  BEER
(IZBRLES])
Link Resources (note i) Hong Kong 43% 43%  Investment holding
BRI & (M) B0 43% 43%  REER
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

0]

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into two sale and purchase
agreements with independent third parties, to acquire an
aggregate of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader at a consideration
of HK$45,542,000, representing cash consideration of
HK$47,000,000 less fair value of contingent consideration
receivable of approximately HK$1,458,000 as at the date of
acquisition. Seasoned Leader acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Seasoned Leader
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of higher
education services and vocational skill oriented training in Hong
Kong.

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the
supplemental agreement dated 8 November 2013), the vendors
guarantee to the Group that the average of combined NPAT for
each of the two years ending 31 December 2014 and 2015 of
Seasoned Leader Group will be not less than HK$14,000,000,
failing which the vendors shall pay to the Group the shortfall in
cash with a multiplier. On the date of acquisition, the fair value
of the contingent consideration receivable is estimated to be
approximately HK$1,458,000. The fair value is arrived based
on a discounted cash flow analysis of Seasoned Leader Group's
forecast financial budgets by reference to a valuation carried
out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited (“Ascent
Partners”), an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell back
all of the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors
in the event that the auditors have expressed a qualified
opinion or a disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial
statements of Seasoned Leader Group for the years ending
31 December 2014 and 2015 (“Qualified Event”). The fair
value of the put option was determined to be insignificant at the
date of acquisition as the Directors are of the opinion that such
Qualified Event is less likely to occur on the Seasoned Leader
Group for the respective years.

19. RBBARIZEE (£2)
Kzt

(i)

7201347108 » REB BB E = F RIS M5
B H e U B 2 AR (E A45,542,000 7T
(BNIR 4R 1B A47,000,0005 JT iR FE U S AARB L
1,458,000/ 7T ) U 8% Seasoned Leaderty & #£47%
1 7 © Seasoned Leader&— IR EZER AT AR
HHE A F (458 [Seasoned Leaderfe@E|) X &
REREBRBESEHERB IR EREBME
AZET o

BIEZHZE (KB HA2013F11 A8 2 # T %
RE—ER]) B A RASEIRE  Seasoned
Leaders B # 20144 K2015F12A31H IEW
BAEESF 2z FHBREHRBEMLTET DR
14,000,000 7t BRIB A AR A EB R & X
NEZENETeE-RNRERR BRSIAREZ
NE{ETEET 4 A1,458,00078 7T ° A FBE & 2%
NAFNEZRERAR ([XFA]) (BREEWE
BEZBYAERBEEXGHAEM RAZHERRE
¥ Seasoned Leader B 2 FEETBI G TEE 2 IR IR

EMEDMAE -

AN - i+ EET FS Seasoned Leaderss B & £2014
FENM2016F12A3IB L EE 2 T EEXTH
REPERREERUEREER ([RBERSE
H])  BIREBERER T —HRGEE UAE
77 & i Seasoned Leader2 282 YR BE G 15 - AN E
£ ASeasoned LeaderE BN EFEHEZETR
BERBMHZ RS/ PUKEE B H - SROA R
ZAFEFERETEKR-



19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources, to acquire and subscribe for an
aggregate of 43% interest in Link Resources at a consideration
of approximately HK$8,866,000, representing cash
consideration of HK$9,500,000 less fair value of contingent
consideration receivable and put option of approximately
HK$353,000 and HK$281,000 respectively as at the date of
acquisition. Link Resources acts as an investment holding
company and its subsidiary (collectively, the “Link Resources
Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of various
services in relation to corporate management consultation,
educational consultation (not including overseas studying
consultation), market information consultation and other related
services in the PRC.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 11 February
2014, the vendor guarantees to the Group that the aggregate
consolidated NPAT for the two years ending 31 December 2014
of Link Resources Group will be not less than HK$6,039,940,
failing which the vendors shall pay to the Group the shortfall
in cash with a multiplier. The fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was determined to be approximately
HK$353,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair value is arrived
based on a discounted cash flow analysis of Link Resources
Group’s forecast financial budgets by reference to a valuation
carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell all or part
of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the vendor in the
event that:

o if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2015 of Link Resources Group is less than the average
of consolidated NPAT for each of the two years ending
31 December 2013 and 2014, the Group shall become
bound to sell and the vendor shall become bound to
purchase all or part of 28% of the issued share capital of
Link Resources upon exercise of the option; and

° if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31 December
2016 of Link Resources Group is less than HK$1,500,000,
the Group shall become bound to sell and the vendor
shall become bound to purchase all or part of 43% of the
issued share capital of Link Resources upon exercise of
the option.
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19. RBBATFIZEE (&)
Wi ()

(i) PA20135F9A4H  ANEBPKEHHRE —REH L
=HRBAIAARI L~ EERBERHE B
R {E #8,866,0007% 7t ( BN IR £ X {E &9,500,000
ETOREM S A RAB R RARAERE 2 N TES I
/£353,0007% 7T 12 281,0007% 7T ) 4 B K2 32 i B4 Al
\hu'ETJE”]:n/\43A>TE/\°%&Té§@%*?ﬁ?ﬁi§?ﬁ‘”
RAIAREMBAR (SB BRI ERRE])E
ERBENPEREH ﬁfﬁm%gﬁmuﬂ HE B
(TBEgINtEER) MBEEMFHAREMA
BREEZERE -

RE BB R2014F2A11IB 2 KRR R - BEH A
M%1%2%%v@%ﬂi@fﬂﬁlﬁizomilzﬂm
H u:ﬁmifﬁzlﬁ/\ﬁﬁmé@f' mEHID
6,039,940/ 7T * & AIIE /AW$EILAEE§SEH
ZENESE - NEBAY BEIAREZA
FETERT4)/3353,000/8 7T - A FETELELTT
(BRAEEYERRE 2B AERIEEMLEN) R
Bz EERBEB A SRERZBAMBEE
FHRBSREDWAE -

RSN BT ER - AR SR B IR T — AR
EEIE URESEHBA SR ARENER
By

o (MEREAEBEEE2015F12A31H IE
FEZEABRBEMLN D NEE2013F K
2014412 A31RA It MEF E 5 F 2 1948
BBRBRARN  REBRITEBRERER
VEHUE B EEUEER A ER2 0K
OB EHITIRAN28% &

° W B ] B BB 22016512 A31H IEF
[ 2 5R A BRI LR 701,500,000 7T » A
SERITHRBRERERUELNRETE
BB E R E AP EM B EITARAR
43%
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(ii)  (Continued)

The fair value of the put option was determined to be
approximately HK$281,000 at the date of acquisition. The fair
value is arrived based on a discounted cash flow analysis of
Link Resources Group's forecast financial budgets by reference
to a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

As at 30 June 2014, the management has carried out the
impairment assessment on the investment in Link Resources.
The recoverable amount of the associate has been arrived
at on the basis of a value in use calculation carried out
by Ascent Partners, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group. Its recoverable amount is
based on certain similar key assumptions. The value in use
calculations used cash flow projections based on the financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and a discount rate of 26.59%. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated by assuming a 3.02% growth rate.
Such estimation is based on the associate’s past performance
and management’s expectation for the market development.
Since the carrying amount of the investment in an associate
exceeds its relevant recoverable amount based on the cash flow
projections, the management has recognised impairment of
approximately HK$2,014,000 for the goodwill in the investment
in an associate during the year ended 30 June 2014.

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information of each of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

19. RBBARIZEE (£2)
Wi (&)

(i)

(%)

WUEE R H - RO RS 2 R FEIEET 4)/8281,000
Bt AV ETIESE LT (EALE I EEHS
ZBIAERERMER)RE 2 ERBERE
AEASEZRAVBREZITRRERES T

| A
===
Z o

MR2014E6A30E BB HBAI LN ZEE
HITREN G - BE QR ZAIBRS BRI
(EAREBEVEBEZ BT A LRI EMGERM) R
BrEREEAE 2 EETE - Halkb &5y
BESTEUETEEREMEL FEREEETD
ERmEREEIE AF ST BEEFHMIRER
AEF2659% B REREAE -AFHE 2R
SREBTERTEA3.02% 2 R FEITHE - 2%
HEt DERBE AR BARBRLREEEBHN TS
BRZBHMEL - ARREBE R BMIRE 2R
AEBLRERSAEFE 2 EBET KL S5 -
BIEBOEANE £201456A308 I FE LB
BRRMIEE 2 B EREL2,014,0008 7T °

EXBELAFCHMBERHEE

AEBESEEABERRZHHERBERETIM0
T TXMatz B ERB R TIIEH S R RIRE
BAMBHREEARR M BHRRTATRER

B %S

BRSBTS R B 1R AR

ENER
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RBIBARZHEE (&)
Summarised financial information of material EXBEAFICMERTHEE (£)
associates (Continued)
Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leader% B
As at
30 June 2014
R2014%
6A30H
HK$’000
FET
Current assets mEEE 23,937
Non-current assets EMENE B 3,225
Current liabilities mEAaE 18,550
Period from
01/10/2013 to
30/06/2014
E2013%10A1H
F2014%F
6A30H &R
HK$’000
FET
Revenue A 39,708
Profit for the period B Y4 A 2,695
Other comprehensive income for the period B E 2w A -
Total comprehensive income for the period HAZEKABRE 2,695

Dividend received from the associate SN N -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued)

Seasoned Leader Group (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

19. RBEQFIZHES (&)

EXREQFTICHMBRHEBE (&)

Seasoned Leader$£ 8 (#Z)
B RS E R B AR A B RS TR N PR R A Bl
BARZEREREEEZHENT

As at
30 June 2014
20145
6A30H
HK$’000
F#ET
Net assets of Seasoned Leader Group Seasoned Leader(E B 2 & &= 558 8,612
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 75 B2 Seasoned Leader& &
in Seasoned Leader Group waEEEZ 2O 47%
Goodwill BES 42,760
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 7N £2 B 5 Seasoned Leaderss @ MY #E 55
Seasoned Leader Group ZIRE 46,808
Link Resources Group BT EmEE
As at
30 June 2014
20145
6A30H
HK$’000
F#ET
Current assets MEEE 7,769
Non-current assets IERENE E 384
Current liabilities neBaE 1,427




19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued)
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19. RBBEARZEE (&)
EXBEBEAFICHMBEHEE (£2)

Link Resources Group (Continued) BaUZmEm (&)

Period from

11/02/2014 to

30/06/2014

E2014%2A11H

E2014%F

6A30H iR

HK$’000

F#EITT

Revenue WA 1,479
Profit for the period B A& 74
Other comprehensive expense for the period BREMmezmEmAST (5)
Total comprehensive income for the period HAZEKA B 69
Dividend received from the associate BN N -

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

R BA TS B R B B AR A B 7 R NPT RERR I B
ERBZEREE RN T

As at

30 June 2014

20145

6HA30H

HK$’000

FEIT

Net assets of Link Resources Group B AAER 2 EEFS 6,726

Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in AEBREB I ERERE

Link Resources Group HEHREREZR 2L 43%

Goodwill EE 3,991
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REBRB I EASENER

Link Resources Group ZIERE S 6,883
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REELFIZESR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Cost of unlisted investments JEEMIRERA 14,250 14,250
Share of post-acquisition losses, FEAE U BB 12 518
net of dividends received (BB (3,314) (3,394)
Balance at end of year RERE 10,936 10,856
At 30 June 2014, the Group had interests in the following joint R2014F6A30R  AEBERUTEE QGRS
ventures: KE2S
Proportion of
nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation and capital held Proportion of
Name of joint venture operation by the Group voting power held  Principal activity
EmILR FREAMBERT
RENFEE EEME B & {E LG REMELG IEEH
Full Profit Hong Kong Development Limited (“Full Profit") Hong Kong 50% 50%  Provision of services
(note f) for kindergartens
BREFRRRERDA ([RYE]) (Hi#i) N 50% 50%  RHZERERS
Creative Education Technology Limited (formerly known as Hong Kong 50% 50% Provision of private
Green Palace Investments Limited) (“Creative Education”) educational and
(note i) training services
BIEHENRERAR (AIBHERE N 50% 50%  HREFLAHE RIEH
BRAR) ([RIZHE]) (Hti) R
Notes: Hist -

0]

On 8 April 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to acquire 50%
interest in Full Profit at a cash consideration of HK$14,000,000.
Pursuant to the agreement, the vendor guarantees to the
Group that profit after tax for each of the two years ending
30 June 2014 and 2015 of Full Profit will be not less than
HK$4,000,000, failing which the vendor shall pay to the Group
the shortfall in cash with a multiplier. The acquisition was
reflected as the purchase of intangible assets represented by
service contracts with ten years useful life as Full Profit has
not commenced its operations at the date of acquisition. For
the year ended 30 June 2014, the profit after tax of Full Profit
reached not less than HK$4,000,000 and has fulfilled the first
year's profit guarantee which it made to the Group. Based on an
analysis of Full Profit's financial budgets, the Directors are of the
opinion that it is highly likely that Full Profit will meet the profit
guarantee for the two years ending 30 June 2014 and 2015 and
hence the fair value of the profit guarantee is insignificant at the
date of acquisition and at the end of the reporting period.

(i)

2013F4A88 AEEBE—RBIE = HEIL
B E 5 UIR$ K 1B14,000,00058 7T Uk 5 & 2
HI50% i - IR EZHZE BAMAEEER &
LIAE E20144F K20156 A308 IF M EAEE S
Emﬁﬁﬁé{éxm\ # A A 124,000,000% 7T - A BI &
/Amzﬁ’ilefﬁiézﬁi%‘Ew;?ri%ﬁ SR
LU EE B R R R IA B - iR B8 I Ak
ﬁﬁ%gﬁﬁﬁ%é\%@ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ—i"fiﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/”
E-HE2014F6A30BILEE  BY Y BHEE
FJ3Z 27~ 544,000,000/ 7T IEEEXWKEI
1’5&2 i&‘/mw%h ERBLYHBEER
DT EERE BLEIGE I EENE Z£2014F
&2015¢6H 305&@1@@%%@15&%@‘% .
I EFREON A FER U B B MRS BRI
TEK-



20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

On 3 June 2013, the Group entered into an agreement with a
joint venture partner (“JV Partner”) in relation to the formation
of Creative Education. Pursuant to the agreement, each of the
Group and the JV Partner holds 50% equity interest in Creative
Education by contributing cash of HK$250,000 each by the
Group and JV Partner and may increase the investment in
Creative Education up to a total amount of HK$20,000,000 with
prior consent of each other.

Pursuant to the agreement between the Group and the JV
Partner:

in the event that the JV Partner (or the holding company of
the JV Partner or a company which is owned as to 50% or
more by the JV partner) has met the listing requirements
of the Taiwan Stock Exchange (including listing on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, listing on the GreTai Securities
Market and registration on the Emerging Stock Board)
or Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM Board”) of the Stock
Exchange, the JV Partner shall be entitled the right to
subscribe an additional 10% interest in Creative Education
at a subscription price determined at the net asset value
of Creative Education or five times of profit after tax of
Creative Education, whichever is higher (“JV Partner’s Call
Option”); and

in the event that Creative Education has met the listing
requirements of GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, the
Group shall be entitled the right to subscribe an additional
10% interest in Creative Education at a subscription price
determined at the net asset value of Creative Education
or five times of profit after tax of Creative Education,
whichever is higher (“Group’s Call Option”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of Group’s Call
Option and the JV Partner’s Call Option is insignificant at date of
incorporation and at the end of the reporting period.

Summarised financial information of material joint

ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised

financial information below represents amounts shown in the

joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs.

Annual Report 2014 4F &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R MBERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2014 # ZE2014%F6H30H ItF[E

20. REELFZHEE (&)
st (#)

(i)

R201356A3H AKBEHEAERH ([FER
HDBMK LB BERE R L — M= RIEZWD
#AREBRCAERHEAEBAARERS]
BHEBNUNERS)EE250,0008 THRHA I EHE N
S0%MHE - ARl & B FRREAER B MR
BIEHE MR EE R %45 520,000,000 7T ©

BREAEEEAERH OB

e BB (e ERHMZERARH—MH
HaERHEAL0%IA LA AF)F
EREBEARGM (BERRBEESXHMHA
£ R EAE T R EAE M) S S P
AER(TAIZERDWETER BEER
HEAERZREE (RAEHENEEFE
HEABHERVRENNAESE (ARS
ERE)VETE)RBABEREBINO%ES
(RERHABNE]) &

HEIEHE AR AEIERN LR &R
AIREEKARZREE (RABHENE
EFERAERERRBREFNNRESHE
(AEBERE)EE)RBAEHE RN
10%#E ([ AEERBHE]) -

EERR ARERENERAEBHRBE
REMAZ AR RRERRORAFELTEK-

EXGELFICHMBERHER

AEBEEEARERAIZHBERB RIS
T TXFaz B ERBEIEE ERARIE
BAEMBHREEARE M BEHRRPATER
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
Summarised financial information of material joint

ventures (Continued)

20.
) |

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method BERNRANFRAERENZSHEEVHREA
in these consolidated financial statements. BRo
Full Profit 2E
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Current assets MENEE 5,680 2,405
Non-current assets EMEEE 8 7
Current liabilities mEBEE 3,107 2,432
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the Tl EERAEESEBENATSE:
following:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEEY 5,660 2,397
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade  HEBce@mEB& (FTREZEH L
and other payables and provisions) H b fET kI8 R B ) 23 142




20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures (Continued)
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20. REBLFIZRER (&)
EXSEBEAFICHMBEHEBE (&)

Full Profit (Continued) 2E (&)
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Revenue WA 7,757 259
Profit (loss) for the year FEEM (EE) 4,100 (30)
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHEMEZEmUYA - -
Total comprehensive income (expense) FEEEWA (FAX)@BHE
for the year 4,100 (30)
Dividend received from the joint venture B& &N R ERS RS 750 -
The above profit (loss) for the year includes the following: Ll FE T (FE) BB TSIE:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEIT FET
Depreciation and amortisation 8 K 8 2 1
Interest income FLEWA 1 -
Taxation B 804 -
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20. REELAFIZEE (&)
Summarised financial information of material joint EXSEQAFICHMERHEE (&)
ventures (Continued)
Full Profit (Continued) z2g (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information Ll E R E BN R A IR R AR R
to the carrying amount of the interest in Full Profit recognised BEEDZFREEZHERNT:
in the consolidated financial statements:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Net assets of Full Profit BEMEEFE 2,581 (20)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7N 52 [B 70 21 & 7 75
in Full Profit R 2 B Eb £ 50% 50%
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition UKFERS N FEFHEFE 14,000 14,000
Other adjustments H % (4,447) (3,355)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEFERBERE
Full Profit BREE 10,843 10,635
Information of joint venture that is not individually material B EXEELFIFH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FET
The Group's share of post-tax loss REBELKRTEER (128) (24)
The Group's share of other comprehensive R E E{h E M2 E KA
income = -
The Group's share of total comprehensive REBEGEAMASEE
expense (128) (24)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBREERRER L
interests in the joint venture BERH(E 93 221
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 21. WLEHERE

On 28 September 2012, the Group entered into an agreement
with M Dream Inworld Limited (“M Dream”), a listed company
on GEM Board of the Stock Exchange, to subscribe for the
convertible notes of M Dream with coupon interest of 2%
per annum and a conversion price of HK$0.1 per share at a
cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. The investment was
initially designated as “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” as it contained a conversion option embedded
derivative. On 25 March 2013, the Group converted in
full the convertible notes into 200,000,000 shares of M
Dream, representing approximately 13.80% of the issued
share capital of M Dream as enlarged by the allotment and
issuance of the conversion shares on the date of conversion.
A gain on the fair value change in the unlisted convertible
notes of approximately HK$5,144,000 was recognised with
reference to the quoted market bid price of the shares of M
Dream on the date of conversion. The total fair value of the
M Dream shares in relation to this conversion amounted to
approximately HK$25,000,000 on the date of conversion
became the cost of available-for-sale investment.

On 17 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, to purchase the
zero-coupon convertible notes of M Dream with a conversion
price of HK$0.108 per share at a cash consideration of
HK$60,000,000. The investment was initially designated
as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” as
it contained a conversion option embedded derivative. On
28 August 2013, the Group converted in full the convertible
notes into 555,555,555 shares of M Dream, representing
approximately 21.39% of the issued share capital of M Dream
as enlarged by the allotment and issuance of the conversion
shares on the date of conversion. A gain on the fair value
change in the unlisted convertible notes of approximately
HK$556,000 was recognised with reference to the quoted
market bid price of the shares of M Dream on the date
of conversion. The total fair value of the M Dream shares
in relation to this conversion amounted to approximately
HK$60,556,000 on the date of conversion became the cost of
available-for-sale investment.

M2012F9 28R  REF MEE 2 )E HtE AFR
AE([BE]) (—HRBIFAIERLETHA
a]) ETAL— 1D Wik - PAIR & MR{E 20,000,000 T 1%
BROIBTHHRERERZES RTF2%H
AT - WA ISR A R AT EFAR
=NEREE] REAEBELILIERALTE
T A -2013F3 /250 « AREE AR R IEE
4, #25200,000,00088 B 2 A1) (5 FY 42 A B
IS PR B BT AR IR D IR 2 B 22 B BT TR AR
BI#)13.80% © A& 2 ZF 1% B BB 2 iR (5 B FT IR
MEEANE BHRIELTIRBRERLAFEE
&) UL 495,144,000 70 - B KR B HY - AR
HARAE B2 AR5 KA FE 4258 £925,000,000
BT A EE R E KA -

201356170 AEBE -2 FHIE =775
B B i PAIR & A {860,000,000/8 TTIZ F K
0.108ETH L AEREMENTERAAKRE
B WEDNNTIEER EAFEFABDZNS
RMEE] FRAAERRIMBERAITETA-
R2013F8H28H  AEE G AR Z BB
1 /3555,555, 555 B 2 A7 - 1610 K 1% B B RS
B RBITAIRBBRNBAZEEZC BITRAL
21.39% ° &2 E 10 i A BB B R VTR T 95
BEAB BHRBFLTARKREEAFEZDHN
Y25 41556,0008 7T - R R B H# - AR A
2 i Bk 2 A1) 1) 1 (B 42 8B 460,556,000/ TTAX,
AR LHE R B RS
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT
(Continued)

On 20 December 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party, to
purchase the zero-coupon convertible notes of M Dream
with a conversion price of HK$0.108 per share at a
cash consideration of approximately HK$4,547,000. The
investment was initially designated as “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” as it contained a conversion
option embedded derivative. On 30 December 2013, the
Group converted in full the convertible notes into 72,172,360
shares of M Dream, representing approximately 1.47% of
the issued share capital of M Dream as enlarged by the
allotment and issuance of conversion shares on the date of
conversion. A gain on the fair value change in the unlisted
convertible notes of approximately HK$72,000 was recognised
with reference to the quoted market bid price of the shares
of M Dream on the date of conversion. The total fair value of
the M Dream shares in relation to this conversion amounted
to approximately HK$4,619,000 on the date of conversion
became the cost of available-for-sale investment.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group disposed
of an aggregate of 419,380,000 of M Dream shares on
the market through the Stock Exchange for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$20,677,000 and
recognised loss of approximately HK$24,207,000 from the
disposal for the respective year.

At the end of the reporting period, the available-for-sale
investment represented solely the M Dream shares which
were stated at fair value with reference to the quoted
market bid price in the Stock Exchange, resulted in a loss
on the fair value change in the investment of approximately
HK$28,273,000 (2013: HK$1,628,000) recognised in
other comprehensive income, which was reflected in the
“investment revaluation reserve”. The investment was
determined to be impaired and the cumulative loss of
approximately HK$28,273,000 (2013: HK$1,628,000)
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
was reclassified to profit or loss.

21. WMERE ()

F2013F12820R - REEE - LB E=F7F]
Y BB - AR ERER4,547,0008 TR B
0.108E LML HMEREMENTERAIAKRE
B WEDNPIRER BEAFEFABZNE
RMEE] RRASEERAMMERAITETA-
MR20135F12A308  AEE K A MR RERHL
¥ 7572,172, 3600 B 2 By - 6 70 3 # B ER AR AT
B RBITAIREBENBAZEEC BITRAL
1.47% - &2 Z R 5 1% B #2080 PR m 5
BEAE CDHRBFLTARKREELFEZSHH
W #972,0008 7T - R LR A AR E A
B B0 B 2 A 10 1O 2 F (B 8 %R 494,619,00078 TTRK
AR LHE R B MRS

REE2014F6 308 L FER  NEBEE BB
RPN TES &S 2£419,380,000 %8k 2 Ak 15 -
#R(EH20,677,0008 TR ERBEBFENLE
518 4924,207,000/% 7T °

RI|BEMR - AJHIEEREER2ENB A
HHIHEANEBRAFETIRNB 2R LER
REMEZARETERIANKERTFEZSNER
#928,273,0007% 7T (20134 : 1,628,000/ 7T ) -
HIDR R B EHMREE ] ARR - R ETREE T
PUBREM AT R B B FHET Rt Rt B8R
#928,273,000/% 7T (20134 : 1,628,000/ 7T ) #&

B EERR-
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23.
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NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS 22. EFBEE
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental deposits (Note 23) Meks (Ki723) 14,296 8,328
Investment deposit (Note 39(c)) &R (Hi39(c)) 500 500
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, T E - BRE R
plant and equipment RiENZE = 2,310
14,796 11,138
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B RHEMEBEKRIE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Accrued revenue and trade receivables FERTUR A B 5 FE WER X 603 786
Rental deposits HeZs 19,822 25,913
Other deposits H itz 932 1,046
Prepayments AR A 4,609 4,885
Loan and interest receivables W E R A S 6,033 -
Other receivables H b e W FR 1B 7,327 2,806
39,326 35,436
Less: rental deposits (shown under B HeEe (PIAFERDEE)
non-current assets) (14,296) (8,328)
Trade and other receivables (shown under 5 & H b e A
current assets) (FIAREEE) 25,030 27,108
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of accrued revenue and
trade receivables, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

23. RAREMBKRIR (=)

AT REEREHREZEH (RRZWATER
HEIMEE) T2 B IRANE 5 BRI
/\/\wfl.

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T FET

Accrued revenue not yet billed A AR 3% H AR B8 MY FE AT A 145 205
Trade receivables: Z 5 W ERN :

0 - 30 days 0&30H 189 198

31 - 60 days 31%260H 1 104

61 - 90 days 61%90H 21 79

Over 90 days B iB90H 247 200

603 786

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors AEENEZRKEREHERETREAEAR

with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$247,000 (2013:
HK$200,000) which were past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group did not provide for impairment loss. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. The
aging of these receivables was over 90 days (2013: over 90
days).

As at 30 June 2014, accrued revenue and trade receivables
primarily arose from the continuing franchise income of
primary tutoring service to franchisees (2013: arose from the
continuing franchise income of primary tutoring service to
franchisees). The accrued revenue is not yet due as it is billed
in arrears. The credit periods are ranged from 30 days to 90
days. There is no credit period granted for tuition fee as they
are normally received in advance.

247,0007% 7T (20134 : 200,000/?-57[:) EONRYISE
& H BB A S B REHREBRERED
)"?‘“LBZ*”IEC’ZIKE@ji?ﬁi?ﬁEi—Ir%ﬁﬁ—iﬁﬁfﬂﬂfﬁ?ﬁﬂ

o % B MR IE M R IR R ERE90H (20134 :
ﬁgi@%ﬁ) °

2014F6 A30R @ EaH A KB 5 W R RS
TEREFEANMBRLEERE N EEHERBEH
RRFEEHA (013F : REFERMBLEE
RE N SHERBOFFEERA) - HRER
WARHRELRE R R -EEHNF
30BE0R 2 AN BEAWSE  Hit I &
RHEES



23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
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23. B RHMEKRIE (Z)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: REREHERNE T
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
At beginning of the year RE ] - 1,993
Reversal of doubtful debts RERE M - (86)
Amounts written off as uncollectible S BE Uk [B] FRIE i $A - (1,921)
Currency realignment M 5 & - 14
At end of the year MER - -

The allowance for doubtful debts as at 1 July 2012
represented an impairment loss on the receivable from 1t &%=
mEARG = MBI 2R (“Beijing Yasi School”). As there was
a dispute between the stakeholders of Beijing Yasi School,
the Directors were of the opinion that the receivable may
not be recoverable and had provided for an impairment loss
of approximately HK$1,993,000. During the year ended 30
June 2013, the Group received settlement of approximately
HK$86,000 and entered into termination agreement with
Beijing Yasi School, the receivable was then written off as
uncollectible. The Group did not hold any collateral over those
balances.

As at 30 June 2014, loan to a third party with principal and
accrued interest amounting to approximately HK$6,033,000
(2013: Nil) are unsecured, bear interest at 12% per annum
and repayable within one year and thus classified as current
assets.

A201247 A 1R B R MR 38 # 15 B Wit R 535
[ B IE DI AR ([ A BB ) &Y FE Wik 3K
BEEE AR RERERFNE 2B HFES
& BEERAREFIANE TR @I EF IR
EE 1B R B 41,993,000/ 7T » 1A E 2201356 7
0B IEFE A AL B U EAE B A #£86,000/8
T B AL FUHE R AR AT S AR LE 1 - T MR GRIRRE
BAIE RN BEM O FRIRMIEE - NEE Y B L FHE
S AERERR-

R2014%6 A30R -8 T — B F = A% K ERT
F 2. 496,033,000/ 7T (20134 - &) x ER A&
- REMKRI2%t BEXL AR —FREE R
DERRBEE-
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24,

25.

26.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 24. BIGRREALTRIA
Maximum amounts
outstanding during the year
REARNXEENERESE
At At
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 2014 2013
20145 #2013
6A30H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FHET
Modern English Limited BREBBERQA 774 273 774 273
World Wide Resources BRFERER
Management Limited BRAE 136 136 136 136
Phoenix Investment Limited BEEEBRRAA 65 65 65 65
Online Global Limited BEGR AT - 66 66 66
Creative Education BIEHE - 4 4 4
975 544

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The relationships with the Group of
each related party are disclosed in Notes 20 and 39(a).

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

The amount represents equity securities listed in Hong
Kong. The fair values of the investments are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid prices in the Stock
Exchange.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH, FIXED DEPOSITS

Bank balances carried interest at market rates ranging from
0.001% to 0.02% (2013: 0.01% to 0.02%) per annum. Fixed
deposits carried fixed-rate interest ranging from 0.7% to 2.8%
(2013: 0.9% to 2.4%) per annum.

25.

26.

ZERASEE RENARERKEE X
KB HERREA LR 20 %39(a) K EE

FEEERR

EZBRENE R LM RAR S ZFRENRQ
FEDESERBIMABRMISEABRETE -

HITHEREEAE BETEER

WITHERIE N FEF0.001%%£0.02% (20134 -
0.01%%0.02% ) T 5 F &8 o BlEF5RIRIN
FEHF0.7%%E2.8% (2013F : 0.9%%2.4% ) 1)
B E M EE S



27.

28.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 30 May 2013, the Group entered into two provisional sale
and purchase agreements with the independent third parties
to dispose of certain of its investment properties and all of
its leasehold land and building at a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$19,303,000. Accordingly, certain of
investment properties and all of the leasehold land and
building were reclassified as “assets classified as held for
sale” and the major classes of these assets as at 30 June
2013 were summarised as follows:
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27. P HBRHEHENRE

M201355A30H  AEEEBYE=FF UM
MR EEHE  URLHE $ R E 419,303,000
BTHEHETREMEREMBHAE T Rig
FoAMN HATHREVERMAHEL MW RET
BEEFOBERIDBERBIEHENEE] RZSE
EER2013F6A30BMEZ MM T -

2013
HK$'000
FET

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment  E¥% - BE RRENET 5
(Note 15) (K7at15) 7,116

Reclassified from investment properties BREMENETHE

(Note 16) (K1:t16) 11,314
Assets classified as held for sale DEEARBEHEENEE 18,430

The transaction was completed on 31 July 2013 and the
resulting gain of approximately HK$873,000 from the disposal
was recognised in the profit or loss for the year and included
in “other income, gains and losses” line item.

The above properties had been pledged to banking facilities
granted to the Group as at 30 June 2013.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ZRXSHDMN2013F7A31B =K HEFRELD
I %5 49873,0008 LB N ERN B R P ER N
ATEMEA - WEREBBIEAET-

A B MR2013F6 H30H B M T AR B &K
HERTTREE

28. AftEEMRINRERA

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FET

Other payables o FE T 5RI8 4,728 4,194
Accrued tutor contractor fee, B ERARE  FHe kit

salary and bonus 3,626 6,444

Other accruals HibpEst & A 1,977 2,929

10,331 13,567
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29.

30.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 29. BRIREALTRIA
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Amounts due to directors and/or ERFIRIEENESTR,
non-controlling shareholders of ol FEIE AR AR R AU IR
Able Investment 232 559

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and
movements thereon during both years:

30.

FZEEFVEER 2R RREREEE-

UTARMEFENERNEERBAERLE
&) :

Intangible Accelerated tax

assets depreciation Total

mLEE mERERE #st

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEIT FET

At 1 July 2012 MR2012F7H1H (764) 1,474 710
Credited (charged) to profitor Rt A (KR ) B

loss during the year 519 (2,515) (1,996)

At 30 June 2013 FA201346 4308 (245) (1,041) (1,286)
Credited (charged) to profitor Rt A (KR ) 1B

loss during the year 33 (207) (174)

Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB A A
(Note 38) (H17#38) - 438 438
At 30 June 2014 M2014F6 A30H (212) (810) (1,022)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$45,285,000 (2013:
HK$25,721,000) available for offsetting against future profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

RBERR AEENARBARBEEBRNR
45,285,000/ 7T (20134F : 25,721,0005% 7T ) 7] F
VAR S A B9 18 A B0 R 2R s ) o B3 A R AR s )
HORE) AT TERME - WA Z S HIBEERRIE
EHIBEE FIBEHIBEEA ER A



30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$8,206,000 (2013:
HK$13,000,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Able Investment

On 22 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Six
Stars Consultants Limited (“Six Stars”), a related company of
the Group, Ms. Yiu, Able Investment and the non-controlling
shareholders of Able Investment, namely, Ms. Poon Wai Sze,
Ms. Mok Sze Wan, Mr. Ng Hoi Tin and Mr. Ng Ping Lun, for
the acquisition of 60% equity interests in Able Investment and
its subsidiary, Bachelor Education, from Six Stars at a cash
consideration of HK$6,000,000 (including HK$3,000,000
which was settled in 2011 and HK$3,000,000 in 2012 and a
contingent consideration of HK$2,000,000 (which is adjusted
by reference to the financial results of Bachelor Education
for the financial years ended 31 August 2012 and ended
31 August 2013). Upon completion of the acquisition on
31 December 2010, Able Investment was owned as to 60%
by the Group and 40% by non-controlling shareholders.
Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, various call and put
options have been granted to the Group and non-controlling
shareholders of Able Investment.

The fair value of the contingent consideration is estimated
to be insignificant because the specified level of the audited
NPAT for the financial years ended 31 August 2012 and 31
August 2013 has not been achieved.
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30. BERIE (&)

31.

RBEMR AEEEATNREREZHD
8,206,0007% 7T (2013%F : 13,000,0007% 7T ) ° H
WA KR BE A & SR it 1) i BT P AF 35 88 R RS
Rt 2R LR B AT R B B 1 E AR AR
ERETHIREE -

Hth&mEE

FIERS

201061222 - AL EHEAEEMHBEEA A
NEBREARAR ([7NE]) izt FREE
MFBRSEMIE R E BNEEB 2L B3
BT REBREERRBHECERESNENUR
& X 186,000,000/ st (£ #£3,000,0007% 7t 2 7
20114 & 1+ }3,000,0005 7T & M 20124 (& 1)
K s SR X 82,000,000 L (K2 EB L HE
H Z=201298A31H K%201348A31H I B Bt 4F
ERBMEEETARAR) WIEFRIZTE RENE
NAIBTHEORKRET L EE W= ([HER
#]) o M2010F12A31 B REEER 18 » FIERIRE
HARS B E60% KB IFERRRAEBL0% < 1R
BlERZE ETRELIHEER TASE
RFIRIEE B FEITRRAR R

[

FARENRFEGBFLETEXN IR RILAREZE
BE £20124F8H31H k201358 A31H 1L BF KX
FENEEZEGERRANNTENRF -
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Able Investment (Continued)

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the Group was
granted a call option to acquire additional 40% issued share
capital of Able Investment and a put option to sell back
60% of the issued share capital of Able Investment from/
to the non-controlling shareholders. On 31 March 2014, the
Group exercised part of its call option to acquire an additional
28.75% equity interest in Able Investment (Note 40). As at 30
June 2014, the Group has unexercised call option in relation
to 11.25% (2013: 40%) of the issued share capital of Able
Investment.

In addition, the Group granted a put option to the non-
controlling shareholders (the “Vendor Put Option”) to sell
40% issued share capital of Able Investment to the Group
on 31 December 2015 upon fulfilment of various conditions,
including, the accumulated NPAT of Bachelor Education for
the five financial periods ending 31 August 2015 is equal to
or above HK$19.3 million. The exercise price of the Vendor
Put Option is determined as 40% of the audited NPAT for
the financial period ending 31 August 2015 adjusted for a
multiplier set out in the Acquisition Agreement. The fair value
of the Vendor Put Option is estimated to be insignificant as
at 30 June 2013 and 2014 since the management considers
that it is highly unlikely that the specified level of accumulated
NPAT can be achieved by reference to the latest profit forecast
of Bachelor Education.

Seasoned Leader

On 10 July 2013, the Group entered into two sale and
purchase agreements with independent third parties, to
acquire an aggregate of 47% interest in Seasoned Leader.

31. Hth e mEE (&)

FIR®RE (£

AR 32 L B 175 % - AN o [ 7 952 50 B A ARE LA (R B AR
AR SR Uk B R SRR & B BT IR AN BB INMO0% - A K
R R AR LA R R AR SR B R BRI B B 8%
1TIEAREI60% ° 20143 A31H - AEEITHFHE
EB 17 57 8 B4 LA UK RS I SR IR B RO BE IN28.75% AR
#E (F$5E40) - A201456 5308 - AEEH & K
TERBEATREREECBEITRAMNILL%
(20134 : 40% ) °

pEoh  AREBRIEER R R L RN (B
Ron R ) LAR2015F 12 A31 H E B E B 1%
HEMAEBRLENRIEESFITRANI0%
BEGEHREELHEHEE2015F8A31H 1t
FEM EBEA S Rt R BB AT AERKEIR
19,300,000 7T ° & /5 s2h AWM TTEE T E T
AUk AT BUC A £ 20158 A31
B 1E B BHA T A 48 B8 AR BR B 18 4 R B940% o 1Y
20134 K 2014F6 4308 & H R H RN A TFE
BT ER NEAERERAKSEZLH
ER R F TR R R AR E B R R IR B 40
B RE KT

Seasoned Leader

MR2013F 7108 REE BB E=FF LMW
1 B & 3% AUk BESeasoned Leaderd H47%4E
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 3. Rt &MEE (2)

Seasoned Leader (Continued)

Pursuant to the agreement (as further varied by the
supplemental agreement dated 8 November 2013), the
vendors guarantee to the Group that the average of combined
NPAT for each of the two years ending 31 December 2014
and 2015 of Seasoned Leader Group will be not less than
HK$14,000,000, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier.

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell back
all of the acquired shares of Seasoned Leader to the vendors
in the event that the auditors have expressed a qualified
opinion or a disclaimed opinion in any of the audited financial
statements of Seasoned Leader Group for the years ending
31 December 2014 and 2015. The fair value of the put
option was determined to be insignificant at 30 June 2014
as the Directors are of the opinion that such Qualified Event
is less likely to occur on the Seasoned Leader Group for the
respective years.

Link Resources

On 4 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase and subscription agreement with an independent
third party and Link Resources to acquire and subscribe for
an aggregate of 43% interest in Link Resources.

Further pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 11
February 2014, the vendor guarantees to the Group that the
aggregate consolidated NPAT for the two years ending 31
December 2014 of Link Resources Group will be not less
than HK$6,039,940, failing which the vendors shall pay to the
Group the shortfall in cash with a multiplier.

Seasoned Leader (42)

BiEZmE (KB HA2013411 888 2/
ME—HIEE])  EAMAEERE - Seasoned
Leaderss B 7 & £20144F 20154 12A31H Ik
MEFESFHFEHEHBRMELT T DR
14,000,000/ 7T * B RIE S BRAA S B UAREIZ
Bt ERE-

1A NN SR O IR R e 0
Seasoned Leaderfs BN & £20144F K 2015512
A3IBIEFEMEMEEZT B RERERRE
ERNEREREAF AIMEFEEMAER
B M Seasoned Leaderf& 5 o FRA HARE ) A FER
2014F6 A30HET AU TEXR THABESER
#Seasoned Leaderss MR BB FE N AR gEEE
BERARBEREN-

BT &8

R2013F9A4R REBEB Y E =77 KB A&
AL EERRBBE  ARE MRBE A &AL
& HA3% M o

AN - 1R 1R B #IR2014F2 A1 B MR i - B
FRAREBERE R A REBEREE2014F12
H31H IEMEFEMEARRRANERE/T D
76,039,940/ 7T BRIE S BRARBIAR S
BESNZR-
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Link Resources (Continued)

In addition, the Group was granted a put option to sell all or
part of the acquired shares of Link Resources to the vendor in
the event that:

° if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31
December 2015 of Link Resources Group is less than
the average of consolidated NPAT for each of the two
years ending 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Group
shall become bound to sell and the vendor shall become
bound to purchase all or part of 28% of the issued share
capital of Link Resources upon exercise of the option;
and

e if the consolidated NPAT for the year ending 31
December 2016 of Link Resources Group is less than
HK$1,500,000, the Group shall become bound to sell
and the vendor shall become bound to purchase all or
part of 43% of the issued share capital of Link Resources
upon exercise of the option.

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets

The following is the analysis of the Group’s other financial
assets at the end of the reporting period:

3. Kt SR E (47)
B EA (&)
LS 7N S B R R0 ER A DA B B A DA T S
1) 8 75 5 15 T e 1) 2 0 049 4 7T 5 AR 15 -

o (HEAMAAEENEE2015F12A31H Ik
FEMNGFERBEAEFENEZ2013F &
201412 A31 8 IE MEF E & F 8 F 4R
EBRBMELAT  RITEZBAEE  AEEB
PBHERE A NEEB AR
EEITIRAMN28% &

o (MBI EAEERNEE2016512A31H 1k
FE VAR A BRBRAEFIER 1,500,000/ 7T
RITREZHRER AEBBLEERENE
VIBEB A AR B BITRAN
43% °

FRERMEMBRERTHBRE

REE

JiE]

RIBEHROEMESREEDTAOT -

2014 2013

Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000

By it FET FEr

Call option R R (1) - 2,245
Put option Rom i (i) & (iv) 2,199 337
Contingent consideration receivables — FEH sk 2R KB (ii) & (iii) 1,855 -

4,054 2,582




31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Summarised information of the Group’s other
financial assets (Continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

The call option is granted to the Group for five years, which
will expire on 31 December 2015, to purchase the remaining
11.25% (2013: 40%) of the issued share capital of Able
Investment from the non-controlling shareholders. The exercise
price of the call option is determined as 11.25% (2013: 40%)
of NPAT of Bachelor Education adjusted by a multiplier set out
in the Acquisition Agreement of the respective financial period
when the call option is exercised.

The put option is granted to the Group for five years, which will
expire on 31 December 2015, to sell back to the non-controlling
shareholders 88.75% (2013: 60%) issued share capital of Able
Investment if the NPAT of Bachelor Education during the five
financial periods ending 31 August 2015 is less than 88.75%
(2013: 60%) of the guarantee NPAT set out in the Acquisition
Agreement. The exercise price is the total consideration for
the acquisition of 88.75% (2013: 60%) issued share capital of
Able Investment under the Acquisition Agreement plus 88.75%
(2013: 60%) of the net asset value of Bachelor Education at the
date the put option is exercised.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the fair values of the call option
and the put option were estimated by Vigers, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

The contingent consideration receivable is determined as the
average of combined NPAT of Seasoned Leader Group for each
of the two years ending 31 December 2014 and 2015 adjusted
by a multiplier if the actual combined NPAT for the respective
periods is less than HK$14,000,000 as set out in the sale and
purchase agreement.

As at 30 June 2014, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.

The contingent consideration is determined as the aggregated
consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group for the two years
ending 31 December 2014 adjusted by a multiplier if the actual
aggregate consolidated NPAT for the respective period is less
than HK$6,039,940 as set out in the shareholders’ agreement.

As at 30 June 2014, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the
Group.
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3. Hth e mRE (&)
FRERtEMBERTHEE (£)

Hiaz -

() BTYPAEENRERELHRFRBN2015F12
A31RZH - AmFEERREEFIREE D %
TTREARENER T 11.25% (20134 : 40% ) - :RBEERHRE
MITEENETAERBHERTERSIEH
BB RS E S AEE L HEMMRTE
HEN11.25% (20134 1 40% ) »

BT AREES L EE A AT BR2015F 12
A31AEH  WELHEEHZ2015F8A31HIER
18 B IR HA R 80 BR B 12 4 A1 D AU BE 1 s P Bk JE R
BT 1% 45 R E088.75% (20134 : 60% ) - A1 FEiz
%% 3R & Bl FI BRI & B 21T A H88.75% (2013
F:60%) TEBAREKERZWRBEFREE
OB 1TIRANEI88.75% (20134 : 60% ) NAE (B -
MEBTHERREHRERETFERRNEEFEDN
88.75% (20134 : 60% ) °

20144 20136 308 « 32 8 B i & 7200 Af
B AFEHEAEE T EBENBIEER
H R EAD AR T T AR

(il EBRSAREBNHECARESHENIGSEH (M
REE2014F K2015F12 A31 H IEMEAFE S F
B A O BRBL& AT L F214,000,000/8 7T ) 458
#Seasoned Leaderf B & BB M) F 19 & OFFR X
& 4EF)

201446 A30A - FER AR EMW A FE YR E
RNEBYWEAENBYABEREEGBEMLAT
VAR AR o

(i) MARBIHEE RILLR G PTHMEE (W E
E2014F12A31A L MEFENERGESRTZ
FERARFE 106,039,940 7T ) IR R AT B A&
BRSNS R TR AN 4 -
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31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 31. Hth &R &E (5)

Summarised information of the Group’s other FEEHMEMIETHEE (£)

financial assets (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Wit (&

(iv) The put option is granted to the Group to sell back to the (iv) TR ZAEEEZE2015F12A31H LT HRFE
vendor up to 43% issued share capital of Link Resources if the KR A BRTE MR D RELZ20134F K2014F12 A
consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group during the financial BIAIEMEFENFHLEEBRTELT] - i
year ending 31 December 2015 is less than the average £2016F 12 A31 A L BFERERE BRTZ AT
consolidated NPAT of the two years ending 31 December A 7#81,500,000% 7T+ I3 T 2 & B 50 B #E LA 1)
2013 and 2014, or if the consolidated NPAT is less than BEHERBAIEREBITRARZ43% - BH H
HK$1,500,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2016. RERTTIR (B TE R IR R s P sl 8 B A 2 B
The exercise price of the put option is determined as up to 43% AIEAEER L HEETE R BN TR A/Kk
of average consolidated NPAT of Link Resources Group adjusted R R & %43% °

by a multiplier as set out in the shareholders’ agreement at the
date the put option is exercised.

As at 30 June 2014, the fair value of the put option was 201456 4308 « fAUh BRI A T E TR AR S
estimated by Ascent Partners, an independent qualified 00 B M) B A B AR B R ERD A T UARE
professional valuer not connected to the Group. fly o
The above fair values as at 30 June 2014 are determined in MR2014F6 A30H » it A FE AW 6T 75 =
the manner described in Note 6. TLAEET °
32. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS 32. REIRB £ W
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
At beginning of year REH] 2,264 2,176
Charged to profit or loss during the year FARBZEF R 12 138
Reductions arising from payments FFREE 2 R (355) (50)
At end of year REK 1,921 2,264
The provision for long service payments is based on the REIRR S & BB B IE R RS R R AEGETE
best estimate of the future payments required to settle the HMARRNZRTIBREERET S ERIED
obligations under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in NEBEESEMNEBAEAENTT-

relation to the employees of the Group in Hong Kong.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. =&
The movements of share capital of the Company are as KRB AE BT
follows:
Number of
shares Amount
Ein @ E &8
Notes HK$'000
HrzF FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEOIB TN E B
Authorised VETE
At 1 July 2012, R2012%F7H18 »
at 30 June 2013 MR2013F6 H308 &
and 30 June 2014 20146 A30H 1,500,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid EEITRAE
At 1 July 2012 HR20129F7H1H 400,000,000 40,000
Issue of shares upon completion of MR2012910 26 H5e Ak R 8&
the subscription of shares on 26 AR 0 S PTEE 1T 2 I
October 2012 (i) 80,000,000 8,000
Issue of shares upon placing on 8 201341 A8 H it & i
January 2013 BT’ (i) 96,000,000 9,600
At 30 June 2013 72013466 308 576,000,000 57,600
Issue of shares upon placing on 29 PA2013F 11 A29H i & B
November 2013 BT’ (iii) 272,800,000 27,280
Issue of shares upon placing on 30 7201465 A30H it &
May 2014 BITZ RN (iv) 115,200,000 11,520

At 30 June 2014 201456 H30H 964,000,000 96,400
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  On 26 October 2012, an aggregate of 80,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued to Classic King Development
Limited and Beautiful Choice Investments Limited, which are
controlled by Mr. Ng Norman and Mr. Lee Wai Lok, Ignatious
respectively, at a price of HK$0.420 per share representing a
discount of approximately 11.58% to the closing market price
of the Company’s shares on 18 October 2012 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 October 2012. The net
proceeds were used to provide additional working capital and
to finance the subscription of the convertible notes of M Dream
(Note 21) by the Company.

(i)  On 8 January 2013, an aggregate of 96,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who were independent third parties, professional, institutional or
other investors, at a price of HK$0.325 per share representing a
discount of approximately 2.99% to the closing market price of
the Company’s shares on 27 December 2012 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 27 December 2012. The
net proceeds were used to provide additional working capital for
strategic investments of the Group.

(iii)  On 29 November 2013, an aggregate of 272,800,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who were professional, institutional or other investors and
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent
third parties, at a price of HK$0.220 per share representing a
discount of approximately 16.98% to the closing market price of
the Company’s shares on 18 September 2013 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 September 2013. The
net proceeds were used to provide additional working capital, for
repayment of borrowings and to finance the acquisition of 47%
interest in Seasoned Leader (Note 19).

(iv)  On 30 May 2014, an aggregate of 115,200,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each were issued to not less than six placees,
who were professional, institutional or other investors and
who and whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent
third parties, at a price of HK$0.145 per share representing a
discount of approximately 14.71% to the closing market price
of the Company’s shares on 13 May 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 May 2014. The net
proceeds were used to provide additional working capital of the
Group.

The shares issued rank pari passu with other shares of the
Company in issue in all respects. None of the Company’s
subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares during the year ended 30 June 2014.

33. B&E (&)
Kzt

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

20129108268 © & #£80,000,0000% & i% ™ &
0.8 L L @R B L3 0.4208 TR B 1% (35
AN A H B2012F 108 18H M A AT & -
WA AR RO HR2012610A188 Ml m E IT:E
#4911.58% )BT T DRI A REWIEERTELYE
9 A& 2 | ) Classic King Development Limited &2
Beautiful Choice Investments Limited ° FT{§ ZUEF
HORARRBHREINEEEST AR AR REH 2
BN AERAR ZAIRBRERIEHES (M
21) °

7201341 A8H © & $£96,000,0000% & f% @ {E0.1
BT EBRE RS MK0.325F T B (Hn
ANTHEA2012F12A8278 A s - &
NR TR 2012912 A27 B I T BT E 4
2.99% ) BT F AL RNBEBEA (REBBILE
=5 EBE MBS EMKEER) FIBRIEFHE
EARAREBNRIEEIREBIINEGEES -

M2013F11 A29H @ & $£272,800,000/% &F I |
EO0.178 L & 38 % B 12 T AR0.2208 L B 1%
(AR AR HEA2013F9 8 18H I AMEFTE -
AR QAN R2013F9 B 18H MY R T (B HT 5E 4
16.98% )EIT TR R ANEERA (BEESE
¥ BRESHMOREE MESAEEZERE
HHWEANBBYEZT) cFISFUBFEE AN
HEBINE BB S UEBEE I AW Seasoned
Leaderf)47 % izt & € (MFE19) ©

72014465 A308 » & $£115,200,0008% & B¢ & &
0.1/ L/ LB B 12 T HR0.1455 T M B (3
MR F BB A2014F5 4138 QM AT S, &
KRB R2014F5 813N HERELD
1471%)ETTFRIRANEERA (BEEAESE
¥ ORESEMKREE MESAFEEZEKER
BEABBNEZTT) - AISFUEFREE ARNRRHE
AEEBINEGEES -

EETERMNRAE T EHERRR D T2 HMK
NEBREMAL - REE20145F6 A30H IEFE

AR

A B AR EERD HEHBERERMAR
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. MRz iEstE

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted pursuant to a resolution in
writing of all shareholders passed on 11 June 2011 (the
“Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Option Scheme
are to attract and retain the best available personnel and
to provide additional incentives or rewards to full time or
part-time employees, Directors (whether executive or non-
executive), consultants, supplier, customer, joint venture
partner, business associates and advisor (professional or
otherwise) of the Company for their contribution to the
Company and to promote our success. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 4 July 2011 (the “Effective
Date”). Subject to earlier termination by the Directors and
approved in advance by the shareholders in a general
meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effecting
for a period commencing from the Effective Date and expiring
at 5:00 p.m. on the business day preceding the tenth
anniversary of the Adoption Date.

The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate,
exceed 40,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company (400,000,000 shares) at the
Effective Date.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of
the options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled or outstanding
options) to each participant (other than a substantial
shareholder, chief executive or director as explained below) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

ARBRBE 2 BRRMN2011F6 A11R ([E5R#H
H] ) BBNEMRRRRKANR R 2B E
([EBRERT 81 )) - FERAERT 81 B ol Rt B &
FET RRARANZBIFRBES 5 (&
WEITIIEITT) HRA HEH FEFP A&
B RSB RER (EXRHEM) RHBAINE
BOH WREREEARBMENER XL
{RAEAR R R EAC D) - FE R 81502011457 A4 R
(MER A AR - RS 8I B £ B #E
ERMAPFETBFEANEE R TF AR EERR
IFHEAR A HEFAERSRRRNBRAE
EEELAEBRTIRERL-

RIBRERME S AT H BT Z AR D BHA K
1578 3840,000,0008% - HER AR AR AERA
HAE 21T AR 7N (400,000,000/% ) 2 10% °

PMER+ =8 A B AR R R Sl A e X T
Bu2EE (TR TXMlzcTERR T
TTBRABRES) 2BIE (BEDITHE EiHk
RARTTE 2 A ) T m Al 1T 2 D B B
FRABEBARAREREEITRAZLI% -
it ER 2 B — PR HBRRARNBRRAS
RS BOR AL
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant, are subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing by a participant within 21 days from the date of
offer upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by
the grantee. No consideration is payable on the grant of an
option. The exercise period for the share options granted is
determined by the Directors, which period may commence
from the date of acceptance of the offer for the grant of share
options but shall end, in any event, not later than 10 years
from the date of the conditional adoption of the Share Option
Scheme by the shareholders subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Share Option Scheme.

34. BB SR (&F)

ARARREE TETRABHTIEZRRAKSE
EEZEABEAL (EER EMRADRTE
BEBFANBELIIFNTES (TEEFRE
PR AFIR N Z B SEMITE S ) LA - o
HEREERL B (BHZE) L+ = AH
A BTFARATERRIBILIFRNTESSK
RESB 2 EABMEA L ZEMBEREBL AR
AR BTN 201% 848 (RERLEBAR
Ay <z Y T (B 5+ & ) #87815,000,000/% 7T - BllZA
FERRA S EERGBIRILE

RAERABRIE Tz RERER 2EETNE
WBEMEM2IRAEmEMERBREZZN-
ROBEREHASNRE SROBREZTE
HAEERE ZHEAIREAERBREZE
AR BEERIAIARRRA G RAE
Perest 81 B HIERT 10 AR 1L - WA IBARERT
R T 2 RRB R IRXFTAIR



34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to Directors, employees, a consultant and other
eligible participants of the Company during the year and
movement in such holding during the year are as follows:

For the year ended 30 June 2014
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34, REREs® (2)

FARBEREASAARAES RBR &H
AREMAEBERBEER D 2 BB REENF
NFTR EE < BB T

#E2014F6A30HLLFE

Number of share options

WkEHE
Exercisable Outstanding Outstanding
price at 1 July Granted Forfeited Exercised at 30 June
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2013  during the year during the year  during the year 2014
H2013%F R20145F
7R1H 6A308
RHAH frEs BRITER WRTE FREH FRER FRTE WRTE
HK$
BT
Directors 25.07.2013 25.07.2013 to 24.07.2014 0.302 - 23,040,000 (5,760,000) - 17,280,000
= 2013574250 201357A25H %
201457248
Directors 09.12.2013 09.12.2013 t0 08.12.2014 0.244 - 5,456,000 - - 5,456,000
= 201312498 2013512A9H%
2014512A8H
Employees 25.07.2013 25.07.2013 to 24.07.2014 0.302 - 5,440,000 - - 5,440,000
EE 20137 A 250 201357A25HE
201457248
Employees 09.12.2013 09.12.2013 t0 08.12.2014 0.244 - 21,224,000 - - 21,224,000
E& 2013F12A9H 2013%12A9H %
2014F12A8H
Consultant 09.12.2013 09.12.2013 t0 08.12.2014 0.244 - 8,488,000 - - 8,488,000
#HAAN 2013%12A9H 2013%12A98%
2014F12A8H
Others 25.07.2013 25.07.2013 to 24.07.2014 0.302 - 11,520,000 - - 11,520,000
Eit 2013F7 4258 201357A25H %
201467 A248
Others 09.12.2013 09.12.2013 t0 08.12.2014 0.244 - 22,432,000 - - 22,432,000
Hity 2013F12A9AH 2013F12R9H %=
2014512A8H
Total - 97,600,000 (5,760,000) - 91,840,000
oty
Exercisable at the end of
the year 91,840,000
RELTTE
Weighted average exercise
price (HK$) - 0.268 0.302 - 0.266
MEFHITEE Er)

During the year ended 30 June 2014, 40,000,000 and
57,600,000 options were granted on 25 July 2013 and 9
December 2013 respectively. The Group recognised total
expense of approximately HK$5,897,000 for the year ended
30 June 2014 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

& =20149F6 A308 1EF £ A 40,000,0001%
1257,600,00017 & iz # £ 55 5l A201347 A25H
K2013F12A9A KL - ANE BB AR FR LB
B RE E2014F6 A30B L FEMM S &
8 495,897,000/ 7T
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

34. BB SR (&F)

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.

No options have been granted to eligible participants under
the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 30 June
2013.

The fair values were calculated using the binomial option
pricing model. The inputs into the binomial option pricing

PR HB RN R A EESEE -

MREE2013F6HA30B L FER B ERBEER
B ERA B RS EER D EMBARE-

RFEDEA-—BEARREEER T UG
A EEEA AR ABENT

model were as follows:

25 July 9 December
Date of grant 2013 2013

2013% 20134
BRHEH 7B 25H 12A9H
Closing share price at the date of grant RELE BB TE HK$0.275/% 7T HK$0.2437%& 7T
Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$0.302/%8 7T HK$0.2447%& 7T
Contractual option life B #1E Ax i F B 1 yearfF 1 yearsE
Risk-free rate [ g ) 0.263% 0.219%
Annualised dividend yield FEALIE B X 0% 0%
Expected volatility of underlying share 1B 8 AR 1 1) 78 B R 08 72.972% 64.248%
Expected exercise multiple TEERTTE B 1.60X — 2.47X 1.60X — 2.47X

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the most recent
period commensurate with the expected life of the share
options.

The fair values were calculated by Ascent Partners, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. The binomial option pricing model is one of
the commonly used models to estimate the fair value of the
options. The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions. Any changes in the
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimate of the
fair value of an option.

TEHRIR R T5 6 PR AN X B A (B 10 2 A s v TR 1 4 48
MR RIHNER RIBEE

NFETHEAEEY BEENBEYAEREE
HEM T T AT E :IE‘tHHT*HWETE‘ETﬁﬁH

IEEREREAFENERERAEN 2 — B
REEREE TIERKN TRAZEMNE -5t

PR A B B FE (T 2 B o A MR 2 T M 1
HEREALE -



35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for the following future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases to mainly
independent third parties in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:
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35. EEHAERE
FRER/ERBA
RBEMR REAEEERENERNIZBIE
= AEN AT REAETEE AR B RKKE
HE 2 HmT:

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FET

Within one year —F R 47,445 46,879
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEFERF

(BEEMERFBEEA) 45,181 32,701

92,626 79,580

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of
one to five years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments

BOKEFrAECHEE HHPAA—ZERF-

FRE/HAA
REEMR - AEEEEP R A TR 2 H
TAREEEHER TOARRKERSITLA

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as 7
follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFEIT TFET
Within one year —FR 618 1,731
In the second to fifth years inclusive EFE_FEERF
(EEMEBEEN) 103 1,448
721 3,179

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms of
one to three years. All of the properties held have committed
tenants for the next year.

BOKEmRREEES AR —E=%F-
Bz MECEBAPAREN AR —FH
ﬁHO
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36.

37.

COMMITMENTS 36. &iE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000
F#T FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not RUTREBFLER
provided in the consolidated financial RERE I TSk P B E S
statements in respect of: BEARY
— acquisition of property, plant and —EME BB M RE
equipment 304 1,449
— acquisition of convertible notes — BB T R AR IR = 60,000
— capital injection in a joint venture —REZENFMEE 9,750 9,750
10,054 71,199
Capital expenditure authorised but not MUATEIBEEERE
contracted for in respect of: BRETHNEARFS
— investment in a PRC learning centre —RE—EREHE RO 500 500

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 1 June 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity interests
in Online Global Limited (“Online Global”) at a cash
consideration of HK$2. Online Global was beneficially owned
as to b0% by Ms. Yiu and 50% by Mr. Lee and was inactive as
at the date of acquisition.

On 13 June 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, for the acquisition
of 100% equity interests in China Rich Finance Limited (“CR
Finance”) at a cash consideration of HK$850,000 payable on
completion. Upon completion of the acquisition on the same
date, CR Finance became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group.

CR Finance is the holder of a valid money lenders licence
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Group plans to develop money
lending business after acquisition of CR Finance and believes
that such new business will diversify the income stream of the
Group.

37. W hERR R 2 F)

R2014F6 1R AEBE AR REB THE
BERARAF ([EB)R100%M 42 - 8 i ok
LB BEAL0%E @ N F e B am EA50%E
@ BRI ARE REE-

R201456 4130 - AEBEEBY F =5V 8
Bk WEEZEEMBEARAR (NEEHF])
H100% 4 + 7 52 B B 78 32 5 38 & (B 850,000
BT NFE B TERIRER EEM B RN E
ZEEzEMBLRA-

EREMBREBEVFEISEREAMGEI TER
MEARBOFEA - AEEFENEEZEH
BRERBEED  YREZHEBHS TR
5 B A SRR ©
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. KM B AR (&)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately U g AR RER AR 491,000/8 7L E B P 2R E 5k
HK$1,000 have been excluded from the consideration WERHRNERAGEEEREMEARERA
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in (B EmMT ] HEAMAL -
the period, within the “other operating expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the REEBARFGBHRIERBRENAR
date of acquisition
Online Global CR Finance Total
s HEEMH #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property plant and equipment  #1% - E &R - 255 255
Current assets MENE B
Trade and other receivables 85 Kk E A W FKIA - 11 11
Bank balances and cash IRITHB NS 6 690 696
Current liabilities neBE
Other payables and accruals Hi e B R EE A (65) - (65)
Current tax liabilities BNERFIR B E - (166) (166)
(59) 790 731
Loss/goodwill arising on acquisition KEREENEE We
Online Global CR Finance
B EEME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consideration transferred HEENE - 850
Less: fair value of identifiable net (assets) W PTWEET RR (B EE)
liabilities acquired BEFENRNFE 59 (790)

Loss/goodwill arising on acquisition WEEFTE £ EIE 8 59 60




188

Hong Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited &5 (B ) R E =B AR A &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fe BB RMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2014 & ZE2014F6H30H It FE

37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Loss/goodwill arising on acquisition (Continued)

The Directors determined that the acquisition of Online
Global would result in a loss to the Group, since on date of
acquisition, Online Global was inactive and maintained a net
liability position of approximately HK$59,000. The Group did
not expect any goodwill arising from this acquisition in view
of the financial position and operating performance of Online
Global.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of CR Finance because
the consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the reputation and customer
relationships of CR Finance, revenue growth and future
market development as part of the acquisition. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible
assets. None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition of CR
Finance is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash (inflow)/outflow arising on acquisition

37. BKEMB AT (&)
BREENBR @8 (&)
AR ERENIE QT REXRERFRGERR
#)59,0008 T MEEETHNBERKEH ALK
EEE-ENEROMBRARREERR A&
EFEHMERMBE I EELEMEHE-

WEEEMHELRE RRARRAHIMNZR
BERBREMEEVBNBERTFARK K
AIE R RAE R — B0 R KT 35 3 R )
RegENalt REHESRER RESKSE
A R BREY & ENTERIRE - B EKEE
EVBELNBERAB AN -

WEMEENRS (RA) RHBE

Online Global CR Finance Total

HiE EEME et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FiET

Consideration paid in cash BEXNRERE - 850 850
Less: cash and cash equivalents & : FTUREEIR & K&

acquired REeEEEY (6) (690) (696)

Net cash (inflow)/outflow Be GRA) /R #% (6) 160 154




37.

38.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Online Global and CR Finance did not contributed significantly
to the revenue or results of the Group for the year since the
respective dates of their acquisition as they were completed
near the end of the reporting period.

Had the acquisitions been effected at 1 July 2013, the
revenue of the Group would have been HK$236,767,000, and
the loss for the year would have been HK$61,509,000. The
Directors of the Group consider these ‘pro forma’ information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisitions been
completed on 1 July 2013, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 21 February 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in A ALHE (bR HKEFHRER LA (“Jingli Beiya”)
upon deregistration.

On 14 March 2014, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Achieved Success Company Limited (“Achieved
Success”) to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$35,408,000.
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37.

38.

KB B AT (&

KA REXREHRE
RRERMEEVHEHNRBREIRERARE T
o BERESEMNKRERRNANR RELEY
AEBFEANBARFEFLRERNER -

fisd Y B8 © MN20135F7A1B £ A AK E
WA 1% /236,767,000 T - RFANEE R
61,509,000 T - AKBEZER R ZF [HBZE
BREERPRSE T —ERERERECDRN2013
FIAIRZR AEEERSERNKEEEE
TMEBAERARREETAR -

HEMBE LT

MR2014F 2218 AEERBEHEEMEBELEHR
REAEH (R BEERERAF ([RAdE
M) By 2 ERRL A o

M2014F3R148 A EBENUREERED
35,408,0007% 7T i & E M Achieved Success
Company Limited ([Achieved Success |) 12 &
REETEIE =T
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. HEMB LR (&)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control KXERNRENHNRERARSI
was lost
Achieved
Jingli Beiya Success Total
Achieved
HAOdeH Success ##et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties "B - 34,000 34,000
Current assets MBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E A W SRIR - 6 6
Bank balances and cash WITEBR MRS - 359 359
Current liabilities nEEaE
Other payables and accruals H b B R ERTE A - (57) (57)
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Non-current deposits EmEEE - (300) (300)
Deferred tax liabilities REERIAEE - (438) (438)
Net assets disposed of FrEEEEFE - 33,570 33,570
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR R
Achieved
Jingli Beiya Success Total
Achieved
HAOdeH Success #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Consideration received 2 UWERRA(E - 35,408 35,408
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE - (33,570) (33,570)
Cumulative translation gain BIE R EEREGRN R
released from translation W s (Iat)
reserve (note) 85 - 85
Gain on disposal &l as 85 1,838 1,923
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMIE AR (&)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) HERBATMEKE (£Z)
Note: Mat -
Jingli Beiya was an inactive company with no assets and liabilities RALEA—HEREENRAT  REEEEM A B &
on the date of deregistration. The gain on disposal represents the BERAE - B E IG5 R R R IR 6 BE H K
translation gain realised on deregistration. o
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEEMNRSRARH
Achieved
Jingli Beiya Success Total
Achieved
RhdeH Success et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET

Consideration received in cash = WHIR 4 &

and cash equivalents BEeZEYRE - 35,408 35,408
Less: cash and cash equivalents i : T ERE K&
balances disposed of ReFEWHEH - (359) (359)

- 35,049 35,049
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. REFXS
(a) Parties are considered to be related if one party has, (@) M—FHBEENEEM I 1EL IS R AC &R R

directly or indirectly, the ability to control or jointly
control the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. The management is of the view that the
following companies/persons were related parties that

R B B S AR I S KR ) - BIZ T R

REEMATNBET -EEERAR UTA
A/ AL RFREAEEE TEﬁX%EXﬁ
RERRIVBRETT o

had significant transactions or balances with the Group

during the year.

Name of related party
REHRB

Relationship with the Group
HBEEEPRAE

RN BERBEAXAERAE

China Vantage International Holdings Limited

FEEREEARA R

Creative Education Technology Limited

BIEHEMBEBERAR

Modern English Limited

BREBARAA

Online Global

Phoenix Investment Limited

ERNEARAA

Six Stars

=
INEE

Strategic Fortune Limited

ZEFRAT

65% equity interest held by Ms. Huang Hui
BEE R T HBSBE

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Seasoned Leader and an
associate of the Group with effect from 1 October 2013,
operates Compass College

Seasoned LeaderZ 2 &M B A
REEREE A A

Al W E20135F 101 AR
RERURER

A joint venture of the Group

Z’SE.Z/\**/‘\

66.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and
33.33% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
R B tm ST E 155 66.67 %AHE K ok & + 5 H33.33% A 7

50% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu and 50% equity interest
held by Mr. Lee; being acquired by the Group with effect
from 1 June 2014

Wk 22 + 5 B 0% IRAE [ 2 5 A+ B 50 % Ak -

B201456 1 BB R ANE E Ui

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
k20 T F5B 100% % #E

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu until 29 August 2011
whZ B 100% A # - EZE2011F8A29H

100% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
R0 fm 7 £ 15 H 100% A% #E



39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Name of related party
REHRB
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30. REAXH (&)

(@) (#&)

Relationship with the Group
HBEEEPRAE

Tellet Investment Limited

REREBRAA]

World Wide Resources Management Limited
RFEREEARAA

Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RiftmkE

Mr. Ng Kam Wing
RIRRTHE

Mr. Lee
ThE

Mr. Ng Norman
REMESE

Mr. Ng Hoi Tin

REREE

Ms. Mok Sze Wan

ﬂll‘
Ry
,mo
by
H_

Ms. Yiu

kit

Ms. Huang Hui

2Lt

Bt

33.33% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Wing and
16.67% equity interest held by Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RIBERFTEFFH33.33%MME N R 87w & £ R 16.67 %Ak HE

100% equity interest held by Ms. Yiu
kT F5H 100% A% #

A former director of the Company
RAFIWAIES

A brother of Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric and Mr. Ng Norman
RiFfwEERRLERTENRB

A director of the Company
KARIESE

A director of the Company until 19 November 2013
AABIEE HE2013F11A19H

A director and non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment
with 9.58% equity interest in Able Investment; ceased to
have equity interest in Able Investment with effect from 31
March 2014

MR E M EFRIFIERATR - 55 FIR IR E 699.58 % AR ;
B2014F3A31 BT HBHANRKE 2 kiE

A director and non-controlling shareholder of Able Investment
with 11.25% equity interest in Able Investment; ceased to
be director of Able Investment with effect from 21 October
2013

NMERENEFRIFZERRR  FHFAMNRIRENLL.25%
fe#E: B2013F10H21H BT HANRIKEEVES

A former director of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company

AARMNEERAATETHEATNES

The Spouse of Mr. Ng Kam Wing and the sister in law of Mr.
Ng Kam Lun, Eric
RBELENRBRRBBILEN DG
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Save as the balances with related parties as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of financial position, the

3. REHFES (&)

(b) BRE&R G WA SR P 1K B8 S22 U5 RO 4B AR
Sh REBRFREENRI LA TERR

Group entered into the following significant transactions 2 ¢
with related parties during the year:
2014 2013
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HrzF FRET FET
Rental expenses, building RIRE AN BEE AT LAY
management fee, A RBE-MENLE=T
air-conditioning charges THEeRAY  EF
and rates to independent EEB TRBEREM:
third parties under licence
arrangement with related
parties: (i)
— Online Global — B 4,492 4841
— Modern English Limited —HEREZERAA 2,623 6,365
— Phoenix Investment Limited —BFREBRAA - 1,756
— World Wide Resources -~ RFERBEEAR LA
Management Limited 9,086 9,783
Rental expenses to: MUATRARZNHESHRR
— Strategic Fortune Limited —=EBRAA - 648
— Tellet Investment Limited —REREBRAA 1,200 1,200
Management fee expenses to: MUATALTZHERERY
— Mr. Ng Hoi Tin —RBREE 365 335
— Ms. Mok Sze Wan —EFBEZzt 60 335
— Creative Education —BIEHERBEARRAA
Technology Limited 51 -
Marketing expenses to BIRE AT A L/
independent third parties under ~ FFAIZHE MBI FE=F
licence arrangement with a TRMSHERERY
related party: (i)
— Online Global —EE 220 240
Commission expenses to: RA TR EE:
— China Vantage International —HEEEREEBRAA
Holdings Limited 8,114 -
Tutor contractor fee to: MUTATZNEMEDE:
— Mr. Ng Kam Lun, Eric — SRR E - 1,686
— Mr. Ng Norman — R A 1,612 1,566
— Mr. Lee — A 819 1,971
— Ms. Yiu —gkZ L 232 180




39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)  These premises were leased initially by the above related
parties from independent third parties. These related
parties then licenced the premises to the Group at the
same rates specified in the respective lease agreements
with independent third parties.

(i) The advertising space was licenced initially by the above
related party from independent third parties. The related
party then licenced the advertising space to the Group
at the same rates specified under respective licence
agreements.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group
entered into a non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding (“MOU”) with Ms. Huang Hui for
an investment in a learning centre in the PRC. In
accordance with the MOU, the Group paid a deposit
of HK$500,000. Up to the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, the transaction has not
been completed.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group
acquired 100% equity interest in Online Global from
Ms. Yiu and Mr. Lee for a cash consideration of HK$2.
Further details of the acquisition are set out in Note 37.

The related party transactions disclosed in (b) above are
non-exempt continuing connected transactions within
the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, except
for management fee expenses, commission expenses,
rental expenses to Tellet Investment Limited, and tutor
contractor fee to Ms. Yiu.

The key management personnel includes Directors and
chief executive and the compensation paid to them is
disclosed in Note 11.
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30. AERXH (&)
(b)y (#&)

() ZEVERVH LREENRBIE=H
E-REMENHRRABIE =TT HN
MHRAM & ekt E ROAE R E S AP R AR B
RzEmE-

(i) EEL&YHEARE B E =S
FFA] e % HRE T R IR BRERT A e e E
MRRMES A ANKEEREST-

(c) MEBE201266A308 1L F A - A [ 51
EB LT ARERORN 2 SRR RS
8 ([ER]) IR E —RIR B AR A T
Lo 18 A a7 3% 42 £:500,00078
ToREFBESHEAMBRRL LR
SRR -

(d) EZE2014F6A308 I-FE  AEBEN2ETT
ZReRERARZTRFTEENEER
100% M 1 - W RE ETHM#E — HFIFEIIR
P 5E37 ©

(e) MLEX(D)ERFIWFENRET RS A LETRA
FUABFTREHERER R ERERS
HERBH BERX BNARKESR
RA RIS RS RN T BRIAR
BRSO

h FTEERABBREZRRIETHRAR M
AR E ST R 11358 -
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. EEMEBLF
Particulars of Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June RREFR20145%F K2013F6 A30B 2 EZHWE R
2014 and 2013 are set out as follows: AIEBEET
Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BEERE/
FTEMBLTRE M, B HEEE HEfEF FEARERFERE TERH
2014 2013
Able Investment BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 88.75% 60%  Investment holding
FREE RERUEE ) 10,000% 7T 88.75% 60% JREZER
Bachelor Education Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 88.75% 60%  Provision of primary tutoring
services, skill courses and
test preparation courses
BAHE Bt B 10,000/ 7t 88.75% 60% RENZHBRYE RERE
RIEHRIE
Beijing Strength Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
RNERAE EEEZES N 100E7T 100% 100% ®EZER
Dignity Choice Limited BVI Hong Kong USs$1 100% 100%  Property investments
RERIES N IE 100% 100% W#ERE
Intelligent Education Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of secondary school
education services
RRABEHEERLA ) e 1007t 100% 100% REERBRRZRS
Modern Beiya (Hong Kong) Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRILM (BB)BERDA N B 100% 7T 100% 100% #®EZER
Modern Education (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Provision of tutoring services
Limited
BRHE (BB)ERAR ) e 10,0007 7T 100% 100% REHBRS
Platinum Success Limited® Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Property investments
0 B BT - 100% MEEE
Rosy Lane Investments Limited! BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

EREAHS B IE 100% 100% ®REZKR



40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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40. T EMB LT (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Attributable equity
Name of principal subsidiary establishment operation registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
BEBTR
WEERE
TEMBLFEE 10 Yok} BEBR HREE FROBKRFEE IEXH
2014 2013
Sky Link Management Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ATEEERAE 0 ) 100/ 7T 100% 100% $HEZRE
Sino Network! BVI Hong Kong US$13,983 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERZES e 13983% 7T 100% 100% $HEZRE
Utmost Vantage Limited BVI Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Property investments
EERZES A5 IEY 100% 100% MEFRE
Wise Action Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment in securities
REERAT 0 s 10,000/ 7T 100% 100% #KEES
Jingli Beiya? PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of educational
consultant and
management services
RO FE e AR #1,000,0007C - 100% REABFHREERB
BMANBEZAERA AR PRC PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of educational
consultant and
management services
F i AR %1,000,0007C 100% 100% IREEHEHHRERRE
CR Finance* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% - Money lending
XS 0 e 1,000/ T 100% - &

! The companies are directly held by the Company. All other

subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

2 These companies were established in the PRC in the form

of wholly-foreign owned enterprises. Jingli Beiya went into
deregistration on 21 February 2014.

3 Disposed on 14 March 2014.

4 Acquired on 13 June 2014.

ZERFRARBEERISH A EMLHEAF

MARRMEEA -

ZERARFPELIINEEEACERNKRIL 7N
b HER201445E2 821 B 2 s s 1 o

M2014F3 148 HE -

201456 8130 U iE -
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40. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of, or during, either reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

40. T EMBLT (&)
RREB R R EHE  BENB AT HEE TR
M ARITIE N ERE S

ERAIIZARBMBLAT DEEFRREAE

BeRXEREEAEAREZMNBAR EER
B O EMMBAR ZHIEHEEAHE

FBR T -

RBEMR ARBFEEUAEEMSALIFEE
AROEMMERT - AZBZEWNBERTNEE
BE-ZENBARZEEZXBHEMMNT

Number of subsidiaries

EEBEEB ETEEEME MELTZ®E

2014 2013

Investment holding Hong Kong 13 10
&R BH
Provision of educational consultant and PRC

management services 1 -
REHEFBAREERRY Y

14 10

The Group had no subsidiaries which have material non-
controlling interests for both years.

Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary

During the year ended 30 June 2014, the Group exercised
part of its call option (see Note 31) to acquire an additional
28.75% equity interest in Able Investment at a nil
consideration as determined by the Acquisition Agreement,
increasing its continuing interest to 88.75%. The fair value
of the call option at the date of exercise was estimated to be
insignificant. An amount of approximately HK$727,000 (being
the proportionate share of the carrying amount of consolidated
net assets of Able Investment and its subsidiary) has been
transferred out of non-controlling interests. The difference of
approximately HK$727,000 between the decrease in the non-
controlling interests and the fair value of consideration paid
has been credited to accumulated losses.

RRESFER  AEEYWERAERIFEBREDS
Z KB A7)

R—HBEARZHRBFESER

B E2014F6H30R IEFE - AEBTHFEEI D
REHE (AWESD NZKBHHEFETZT
REWEFIRIEE 2 5IN8.75% Mk - W1 fnE
SERESE88.75% - REEHAHENTE B I A F
EFTIEAER - 49727,0008 02 £ 88 (RIF)R
RENEMBRARIZFEEEFECEREZL
Bl K8 ) B 88 ) FE 450 AR 4 2 o FE 4% IR A 2 U i B
ENREAFEZEZEFELNT727,0008 LE A
2T EE-
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 41. iR tkiR 5t &

The Group operated a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme were held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rate specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
was to make the required contributions under the scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees and
each required to make contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014 for
the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
PRC government. Each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,832,000 (2013: HK$2,084,000) represented contributions
payable to the above schemes by the Group during the year.

AEBREBERVEABSFAENGINSETLERE
BEREBERIABFMEAESE ([RERF
) BEDFINEEEBR - BBIUITEA
EHONESEARERTEEDFFA - RiFR
REFEMARA BEREEER D HIBZRAET
BH R A EBMEH R - AR B S iE 25t 8
B — EERRIEZ AT BIE L AR 3 - IRIE R
Beid BRI RERESEBAREERBKA
(XB2014F6 A1HEEMNEABBBAZ £
FR30,000/8 TTAT IR ) Z5%[A T &R - W WE
V8 WA SR AT P A R R 2R A T R A K

R B ENERAZETPBRBRNRINERE
BRAEME - ZFEMBARAKERER
FEEE T B bR RARRENE EH B
FEMEHRES - NEEERIREFET 8 Ay M —
RERREBAEEL AR HEK -

RiFeEaEME2ERERT IR ZEERD
1,832,000/ 7T (20134 : 2,084,000 7T ) & A &
B 7 A ) s a8 PR AR 2 SRR e
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42.

43.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 May 2014, the Company entered into a conditional
placing agreement with placing agent in relation to the
placing of a maximum of 394,080,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.10 each to not less than six placees
who are not acting in concert with connected persons of
the Company at HK$0.145 per placing share, representing
a discount of approximately 14.71% to the closing price
on 13 May 2014. The net proceeds will be used for the
development of the existing business and the development
of online education business of the Group. The placing
shares placed under the placing agreement were issued
pursuant to a specific mandate obtained at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2014.
The completion of the placing took place on 31 July 2014.
Details were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 13 May 2014 and 31 July 2014 and the circular of the
company dated 2 July 2014.

On 15 August 2014, the Group entered into a non-binding
cooperation framework agreement (“Cooperation Framework
Agreement”) with LB BIZREEF KK EIE R A A (unofficial
English translation being Shanghai Chuang-yi Enterprise
Image Planning Company Limited) in relation to the proposed
cooperation in developing the online education platform
(“Platform”) which will mainly involve online international
English courses and related theme contests to primary
and secondary school students in the PRC. Pursuant to
the Cooperation Framework Agreement, the Group will be
responsible for providing the fundings for the development
of the Platform and the supply of the appropriate course
materials and teachers for the online courses operated on the
Platform and intends to invest not more than RMB12,000,000
as the cost for the research and development of the Platform.
Details of the Cooperation Framework Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17
August 2014.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

In prior year, the Group’s impairment loss on listed available-
for-sale investment was included in “other income, gains
and losses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. In current year, the
comparative amount of such impairment loss on listed
available-for-sale investment has been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation and presented in the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

42.

43.

BENMXRESER

M2014F5F8138 AR A B E R IERT A 5
HERERD  AD A NERESR{7H0.145%8
TTEES (RR201445 A 138 IR BT E 4
14.71% ) fit & 5 %394,080,0000% 7Zx A &) &F A%
BO.I0BTLHFEBR T RPN AZAREA (K
WIFEARNFIRAEA LT —HITE) - B FHIEF
BEREEEAEBOEEESRERBLEHE
X% - BERSHARENEERNDEREAR
AIF2014F7 B 18 RITH IR E R K EEE
BRI AE ST - BLE N 201457 A31E =k - B
B ER AR T HEA2014F5 130 £20144F
7A31HMAMIA R A AT HEA2014F7 A28
Y3 R A B FE o

R2014F8H15H  RNEBE EBRAIREETR
REARDFFL-ETENRNZ A FERD
#([AFERBZ]) AT BHRRAFER
BEHEFE([FE]) ESTELEAES
Al /N2 A FR (A | B PR S FE ARAE AR
BE-REAFERGZ ASESARRTER
FazBEe RRHEBR TR EEZHE LRI
ZAEREEHRHE  ARRETERARE
12,000,000TCtE R R ERFEZEM - A 1F
R F BN A AR HHA201458H17H
AN AL

Lg#F

REF AEBEz EmAHEERE ZREER
it A BRakEMEmEmRa Rz [HiK
AW R EE] -RAFE - B LTAHEE
REZHEBEZLBRREEEN D EUAFE
AEEZ2GR YERGEBEREMERH
Wk E27 -
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Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is set out below:

ARTRBE BROH HAHRTIMT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AERIEE 322 322
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N EENGIE S 238,081 173,928
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR LIRS 18,725 13,563
Other current assets HimEh & E 177 170
Amount due to a subsidiary e —E M B AR FRIE (1,364) -
Other current liabilities HEfnsaE (645) (52)
Net assets BEFE 255,296 187,931
Share capital A& A 96,400 57,600
Reserves (Note) Wt (W) 158,896 130,331
Total equity PR 255,296 187,931
Note: Kt
Reserves Gk
Share
Share Merger options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
B fn i@ (& Rl Rl B 48 6 RiER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 July 2012 HR20129F7H1H 125,624 (28,079) - (10,239) 87,306
Loss for the year FEEIE - - - (1,474) (1,474)
Issue of ordinary shares BITERR 47,200 - - - 47,200
Transaction costs attributable to BT RKENZ
issue of new ordinary shares 3T 5 AN (2,701) - - - (2,701)
At 30 June 2013 201346 A30H 170,123 (28,079) - (11,713) 130,331
Loss for the year FEEIE - - - (13,334) (13,334)
Issue of ordinary shares LT EE 37,920 - - - 37,920
Transaction costs attributable to B ERKENZ
issue of new ordinary shares T 5 KA (1,918) - - - (1,918)
Recognition of equity-settled WA R EE AR D
share-based payments BEBS - - 5,897 - 5,897
Share options forfeited B ISR IS - - (398) 398 -
At 30 June 2014 R2014F6 A30H 206,125 (28,079) 5,499 (24,649) 158,896

At 30 June 2014, the Company had reserves of HK$181,476,000 (2013:
HK$158,410,000) available for distribution in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

20146 A30F AR RIBEM SRS R RDEN Al H o AL
f##5 /181,476,0007% 7t (20134 : 158,410,000/ 7t.) °
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on

the basis set out in the notes below.

AT RAEEZ T XM EMEEEREEE T EM K
FENCDTRXENEERBEHRE-

RESULTS 4|
Year ended 30 June
B E6A30HLLERE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FEIT FET
Revenue A 235,805 248,348 318,654 268,614 353,213
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA (B8,
gl (66,312) (24,676) 38,270 26,106 48,535
Income tax expense Fri8fis X (195) (1,990) (6,298) (5,596) (8,477)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB
ikl (66,507) (26,666) 31,972 20,510 40,058
Attributable to: AT AT AL
Owners of the Company VNI =N (66,517) (25,239) 31,157 20,538 40,076
Non-controlling interests FEFRE AR i 2 10 (1,427) 815 (28) (18)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREE
As at 30 June
"6HA30R
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEIT FET FHET
Total assets EEE 233,393 228,104 187,664 98,462 96,821
Total liabilities FE=Kr 21,200 30,018 24,995 95,018 38,398




(2)

(3)

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2010 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 30 June 2010 have been extracted from the Company’s
listing prospectus dated 20 June 2011. Such summary was prepared
as if the current structure of the Group had been in existence
throughout the financial year.

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended
30 June 2011 and 2012 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 30 June 2011 and 2012 have been extracted from
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2012. Such
summary was prepared as if the current structure of the Group had
been in existence throughout these financial years.

The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended
30 June 2013 and 2014 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of
the Group as at 30 June 2013 and 2014 are those set out on pages
63 to 66 of this annual report.

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

(1

(2)

(3)

RNEFMEE2010F6 A308 ILEEMGAEERAELEER
R2010F6 A30RMSAEERBENME Yt E A
AF A A2011F6H20R M EHBERER - BRI E
BN AEBNRAEEBECAMREE —&EGF4EN
mE.

ANEBEHE2011FK201246 A30A It MEFEREH
URAEE R AREBR2011F 201296 A30H M4 A %
ERBEREEEARAREHE201266 8308 EFER
FR-BEBENEBENAEENRERECRNZSY
BREE—HEFEMERE-

ANEEHE2013F % 201456 A30H It MEFERFEH
ARA FERAEEM2013F K2014F6 A0 M4 AE
ERBEDHNA KT RFECIECOHE

EFRES T EREEZS B RERO— B0
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Location Existing use Lease term

nE HAHE A

Office No. 1303 on 13th Floor, Argyle Centre Phase |, Shops Medium-term lease
No. 688 Nathan Road, No. 65 Argyle Street, Mong Kok,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

B8 JLBERE A T BB 688 K I8 & 655, i RHIRE

i AL —HI13181303%
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